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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

| Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of ta Securities Exchange Act of 193
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007
OR
O Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) bthe Securities Exchange Act of 193¢

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 000-23186
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None
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YesO NoHM
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to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K ($®t229.405 of this chapter) is not
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reference in Part lll of this Form 10-K or any arderent to this Form 10-K4

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantler@e accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
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The Registrant estimates that the aggregate meaket of the Common Stock on June 30, 2007 (baped the closing price shown on the
NASDAQ Global MarkeSMon June 30, 2007) held by non-affiliates was appnately $228,232,733.

The number of shares of Common Stock, par valuk, $0the Registrant outstanding as of February2P08 was 38,080,905 shares.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This report includes forward-looking statensem particular, statements about our expectatioelefs, plans, objectives or assumptions of
future events or performance are contained or parated by reference in this report. We have b#sesk forward-looking statements on our
current expectations about future events. Whildeleeve these expectations are reasonable, forleaking statements are inherently subject
to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyour control. Our actual results may differ mathyifrom those suggested by these forward-
looking statements for various reasons; includirgsé discussed in this report under the headingk‘Ractors” beginning at page 20. Given
these risks and uncertainties, you are cautionétbrgace undue reliance on forward-looking staets. The forward-looking statements
included in this report are made only as of the desreof. We do not undertake and specificallyideany obligation to update any of these
statements or to publicly announce the resultqgfravisions to any forward looking statementsetbect future events or developments. When
used in the report, unless otherwise indicated,™ar,” “us,” the “Company” and “BioCryst” referto BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Overview

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is a biotechgglcompany that designs, optimizes and developslmugs that block key enzymes
involved in cancer, viral infections and autoimmuligeases. BioCryst integrates the necessary tisspof biology, crystallography,
medicinal chemistry and computer modeling to effety use structure-based drug design to discomdrdevelop small molecule
pharmaceuticals.

Our lead product candidate, forodesine HC4, tisansition-state analog inhibitor of the targetyme purine nucleoside phosphorylase
(“PNP"). An oral formulation of the compound is cemtly in a Phase Ilb trial, which is planned toabgivotal trial, for patients with Cutaneous
T-cell Lymphoma (“CTCL"). The trial is being condied under a special protocol assessment (“SPA"dtietgd with the United States Food
and Drug Administration (“FDA”)Additionally, forodesine HCl is currently being dted in a Phase Il trial with an oral formulationChronic
Lymphocytic Leukemia (“CLL"). Forodesine HCI hasdpegranted Orphan Drug status by the FDA for timdisations: T-cell non-Hodgkin
lymphoma, including CTCL; CLL and related leukemiasluding T-cell prolymphocytic leukemia, adultcBll leukemia, and hairy cell
leukemia; and for treatment of B-cell acute lymplashic leukemia (“B-ALL”). In December 2007, we anmced the presentation of data
related to the Phase I/ll clinical study of foroidesHCI in subjects with refractory CTCL and a posletailing the in vitro activity of
forodesine HCI and the synergistic in vitro activif forodesine HCI with bendamustine in primarji£éom 29 patients with CLL. These data
were presented at the 2007 American Society of Helogy meeting. Also, use of forodesine HCI is lge@xplored, alone and in combination
with other commonly used cancer treatments, forimsgher cancers. Since February 2006, we haveahakclusive licensing agreement with
Mundipharma International Holdings Limited (“Mundii@rma”) to develop and commercialize forodesine H@harkets across the European
Union (the “EU”), Asia and Australia for use in aagy.

Our second most advanced drug candidate &peir, an inhibitor of influenza neuraminidaserdaivir is in development for the
treatment of influenza with two parenteral formidas, intramuscular (“i.m.”) and intravenous (“I)v.We recently completed a double-blind
placebo-controlled Phase Il clinical trial with i.peramivir testing two different dose levels ofgraivir (150mg and 300mg) versus placebo in
adults with acute uncomplicated influenza. While thal did not demonstrate statistically signifitdifferences for its primary endpoint of
time to alleviation of symptoms, the preliminaryadysis of the virologic data indicated that perami@emonstrated statistically significant
reductions in influenza virus shedding in both pakar treatment groups compared to placebo, witatgr reductions in the 300mg dose. With
this information and the additional pharmacokin@tformation we have obtained subsequent to tlag tsie are planning to initiate another
Phase Il clinical trial later in 2008 to evaluate B00mg dose of peramivir as well as a higher dbperamivir versus placebo. In addition, in
July 2007, we announced the initiation of a Phasérical trial in hospitalized patients using iewm formulation of peramivir to compare the
efficacy and safety of i.v. peramivir to orally athistered oseltamivir in patients who require htalation due to acute influenza.
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In January 2007, we announced the United S@é&partment of Health and Human Services (“HH®Y hwarded the Company a
$102.6 million, four-year contract for the advandedelopment of peramivir. In January 2008, we amced that the development costs of our
peramivir program to anticipated product approvalls cost in excess of the $102.6 million contsinte the development plan for peramivir
had changed from that outlined in the original @sgd to HHS. HHS has indicated that they will funsiitain elements of our revised program,
including the ongoing Phase Il i.v. study evalugtireramivir in hospitalized subjects, the planrang conduct of the planned Phase Il study of
i.m. peramivir and the manufacturing and toxicolagynponents of the program. Each of these elenmastspecific HHS funding limits and
any costs outside the amounts approved by HHS malyebresponsibility of the Company. The originahitact of $102.6 million and the four
year term remain unchange

In March 2007, we announced our collaboratiith Shionogi & Co., Ltd. (“Shionogi”) for the delement and commercialization of
peramivir in Japan. This exclusive license agredarf@nlapan included an upfront payment of $14iorilland future clinical event milestone
payments of up to $21 million. In December 2007 raeeived a $7 million milestone payment for theitiation of a Phase Il clinical trial wit
the i.v. formulation of peramivir for the treatmeaitseasonal influenza.

Our other drug candidate in clinical trialoigr second generation PNP inhibitor, BCX-4208c8iNovember 2005, this program has been
funded through an exclusive worldwide licensingesgnent with F.Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd and HoffmannRache Inc. (“Roche™o develog
and commercialize BCX-4208/R3421 for the preventibacute rejection in transplantation and forttieatment of autoimmune diseases. In
July 2007, we announced that Roche had initiatetlase Il clinical trial with oral doses of BCX-42B8421, which is designed to evaluate the
drug candidate in patients with moderate to sepkrgue psoriasis.

BioCryst is a Delaware corporation origindthyinded in 1986. Our Alabama office is located 8@ Parkway Lake Drive, Birmingham,
Alabama 35244, where the telephone number is (2054600 and our North Carolina office is locate@425 Kildaire Farm Road, Cary,
North Carolina 27518 where the telephone numbgd1i8) 85¢-1302. For more information about BioCryst, pleais# our website at
www.biocryst.com. The information on our website@ incorporated into this Form 10-K.

Our Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to increase the v@loer drug candidate portfolio. We believe tlidest achieved by retaining full product rights
to our drug candidates within specialty marketsijewtelying on collaborative arrangements with dhprarties for drug candidates within larger
markets or outside our area of expertise. Potethiii@ party alliances could include preclinicavdbpment, clinical development, regulatory
approval, marketing, sales and distribution of duwug candidates.

We use structure-based drug design technadgidevelop innovative, small-molecule pharmacaigito treat a variety of diseases and
disorders. We focus our drug discovery efforts oifding potent, selective inhibitors of enzymesaoasated with targeted diseases. Enzyme
proteins that cause or enable biological reactimtessary for the progression of the disease orddis The specific enzymes on which we
focus are called enzyme targets. We aim to desigipounds that will inhibit an enzyme target byirigtthe active site of a particular enzyme.
Inhibition means interfering with the functionin§an enzyme target, thereby stopping or slowingpttegression of the disease or disorder.
principal elements of our strategy are:

. Develop or License Inhibitorsthat are Promising Candidates for Commercialization. We test multiple compounds to identify those that
are most promising for clinical development. Weébasr selection of promising development candidatedesirable product
characteristics, such as initial indications okesafind efficacy. We believe that this focusedtsga allows us to eliminate unpromising
candidates from consideration sooner without iringrsubstantial clinical costs. In addition, weesgldrug candidates on the basis of
their potential for relatively efficient Phase IdaRhase Il clinical trials that require fewer patgeto initially indicate safety and efficacy.
We will consider, however, more complex candidatéh longer development cycles if we believe theyt offer promising commercial
opportunities
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Select and License Promising Enzyme Targets for the Discovery of Small-Molecule Pharmaceuticals. We use our technical experti
and network of academic and industry contacts &uate and select promising enzyme targets todieéor the discovery of small-
molecule pharmaceuticals. We choose enzyme tafggtsneet as many of the following criteria as fues

—  serve important functions in disease pathw

—  have known animal or c-based models that would be indicative of resultsuimans
—  address large potential markets or niche areassigttificant unmet medical need; a
—  have multiple potential clinical applicatior

Focus on High Value-Added Structure-Based Drug Design Technologies. We focus our drug discovery activities and expamdi or
applications of structure-based drug design teagies to design and develop drug candidates. Stexttased drug design is a process
by which we design a drug candidate through detaitealysis of the enzyme target, which the druglichkate must inhibit in order to stop
the progression of the disease or disorder. Wewelihat structure-based drug design is a powdlifor efficient development of
small-molecule drug candidates that have the pleantbe safe, effective and relatively inexpepdiv manufacture. Our structure-based
drug design technologies typically allow us to dasind synthesize multiple drug candidates thabintihe same enzyme target. We
believe this strategy can lead to broad pateneptioin and enhance the competitive advantagesrafaupounds

An important element of our business straisdy control fixed costs and overhead through remting and entering into license agreements

with other parties. We maintain a streamlined coaf@infrastructure that focuses on our strongestsaof expertise. By contracting with other
specialty organizations, we believe that we canrobnosts, enable our drug candidates to reacimémixet more quickly and reduce our
business risk. Key elements of our contractingegainclude:

Entering I nto Relationships with Academic I nstitutions. Many academic institutions perform extensive regean the molecular ar
structural biology of potential drug developmemgtds. By entering into relationships with thesitntions, we believe we can leverage
this respective research to significantly redu@etiime, cost and risks involved in drug developm@nir collaborative relationships with
such organizations may lead to the licensing of@mm@ore drug targets or compounds. Upon licenaidgug target or promising
compound from one of these institutions, the s@&nfrom the institution typically become workipgrtners as members of our structure-
based drug design teams. We believe this makesnesaattractive development partner to these 8istsrsince they can continue to
have some involvement in the continuing developroéitihe program. In addition, we collaborate witltsiade experts in a number of
areas, including crystallography, molecular modglicombinatorial chemistry, biology, pharmacologgcology, cardiology,
immunology and infectious diseases. These colldlmmsenable us to complement our internal cagagslivithout adding costly
overhead. We believe this strategy allows us te sauable time and expense, and further divessify strengthen our portfolio of drug
candidates. An example of such a collaborativeticgiahip is the arrangement that we have with AlBémstein College of Medicine of
Yeshiva University“AECOM”) and Industrial Research Limite“IRL") who are the licensors of our PNP inhibitor progra

Developing Drug Candidates or Licensing Them to Other Parties. We generally plan to advance drug candidates thranital and/or
early-stage drug development. For larger diseadiedtions requiring complex clinical trials, ouragegy is to license drug candidates to
pharmaceutical or biotechnology partners for filedelopment and global marketing. We believe pastrips are a good source of
development payments, license fees, future evamheats and royalties. They also reduce the costsisks, and increase the
effectiveness, of late-stage product developmegulatory approval, manufacturing and marketing.d&keve that focusing on
discovery and early-stage drug development whifeefitng from our partners’ proven development ancthmercialization expertise will
reduce our internal expenses and allow us to hdasgar number of drug candidates progress to &gres of drug development.
However, after establishing a lead product candidae are willing to license that candidate durdng stage of the development proc
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we determine to be beneficial to the company arttiéailtimate development and commercializatiothaf drug candidate. For sor
smaller niche disease indications markets, we rhapse to develop, manufacture, and where apprepratket and distribute any
approved drugs ourselves, such as forodesinefor certain 7-cell and E-cell cancers in the United States (“U.S”).

Products in Development

The following table summarizes BioCryst's dieandidates in clinical development as of Febr24ry2008:

Program and Candidate Diseas:

Category/Indication Delivery Form Development Stage Worldwide Rights
PNP Inhibitor (forodesine HCI BioCryst (U.S.)/Mundipharm
CTCL Oral Pivotal (EU, Australia, Asia
CLL Oral Phase |
Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivir) BioCryst (Rest of World)/Shionog
Viral V. Phase | (Japan)/Green Cross (Kore
Viral i.m. Phase |
PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208/R3421 Oral Phase | Roche/BioCryst has ~promotion right
Psoriasis in the U.S. in limitec
indications

Additional Products

In addition to the programs shown above, \8e attain exclusive rights to potent inhibitorgafainfluenza neuraminidase, hepatitis C and
additional PNP inhibitors. We will continue to evate and test each of these compounds to detewmhiicé should be taken into clinical
testing.

PNP Inhibitors
T-cell Related Diseases

Overview. The human immune system employs specialized, ¢éetlsiding T-cells, to control infection by recagimg and attacking
disease-causing viruses, bacteria and parasitesliSare an essential part of the body’s immurstesy that serve a dual purpose to both
orchestrate and participate in the body’s immuspaease. For the most part, this system works flsst§eto protect the body. However, when
T-cells multiply uncontrollably, T-cell proliferate diseases, such as T-cell cancers, can occur.

The link between T-cell proliferation and fh&rine nucleoside phosphorylase, or PNP, enzymdivgasliscovered approximately twenty-
five years ago when a patient, who was geneticidficient in PNP, exhibited limited T-cell activjtput reasonably normal activity of other
immune functions. In other patients lacking PNRvétgt the T-cell population was selectively dejglét however, B-cell function tended to be
normal. Based on these findings and the resultelbtulture studies, inhibiting PNP appears tadpice primarily suppression of T-cells
without significantly impairing the function of athnon-lymphoid cells.

Acute Lymphoblastic Leukemidhe most common form of leukemia in childrendsta lymphoblastic leukemia (“ALL")According to th
American Cancer Society, 5,200 new cases (adulthitdren combined) will be diagnosed in the Unigtdtes in 2007 (T-cell and B-cell).
ALL results from an acquired injury to the DNA ofmgle cell in the bone marrow.

T-cell Lymphoma Lymphoma is a general term for a group of cantt@soriginate in the lymphatic system. About &8, Americans will
be diagnosed with a non-Hodgkin lymphoma in 200 agpproximately 15% of

5




Table of Contents

these will be considered T-cell lymphomas. T-cgthphoma results when a T-lymphocyte (a type of @hlbod cell) undergoes a malignant
change and begins to multiply, eventually crowddng healthy cells and creating tumors, which edalg lymph nodes and invade other sites
in the body. CTCL is a primary skin neoplasm ancbaats for nearly 50% of all T-cell malignancies.

T-cell Mediated Autoimmune Diseas€kere are more than 80 clinically distinct autoirmauliseases such as psoriasis, rheumatoid
arthritis, multiple sclerosis, and Crohn’s diseagleich appear to have activated T-cells as a ngarof their pathogenesis. These diseases
occur when the immune system attacks the body’saella rather than invading microorganisms. Therfmhibition and/or elimination of
activated T-cells could have a beneficial effectloese diseases.

Transplant RejectioriThe greatest threat to transplant patients is tiejeof the transplanted organ by the body’s owmume system. For
this reason, transplant recipients must take dimgsippress the immune response and prevent mjactually for the rest of their lives. A
regimen combining several drugs is usually givea s treatment has to be continued indefinitBly: kidney transplant recipients, rejection
of the new kidney by the patient’s immune systemlead to loss of the transplanted organ and arrétudialysis. For heart, lung and liver
transplant patients, loss of the transplanted opgasents an immediate threat to life.

B-cell Related Cancers

Overview. There are two types of lymphocytes in the broasesse — T-cells and B-cells. Although PNP inlwitsitwere developed
specifically to block the T-cells, recent work indies that the same biochemical event — the intidaeaccumulation of deoxyguanosine
triphosphate (“dGTP”) also occurs in malignant Blscé-urthermore, work of Dr. Varsha Gandhi at MDderson Cancer Center has shown
that PNP inhibitors, when actinig vitro on B-cells from patients with CLL induce accumudatiof dGTP with resultant apoptosis (cell death).

These studies open the possibility of trea@hd,, B-ALL and B-cell non-Hodgkin Lymphoma (“NHL"vith forodesine HCI. Importantly,
B-cell malignancies are considerably more prevalesm are the T-cell leukemias and lymphomas.

Our PNP Inhibitor(s)

PNP Inhibition. PNP is an enzyme that plays an important role-gell proliferation, because it is necessary tomaén normal DNA
synthesis in human T-cells. Selective inhibitiorP&§P causes certain nucleosides, including deoxy@giae, to accumulate. As the
concentration of deoxyguanosine increases withaells, it is converted by specific enzymes to dGARigh concentration of dGTP in T-cells
causes an imbalance in the intra-cellular trinudieopool and thus causes cell death.

In June 2000, we licensed a series of pothift hibitors from AECOM and IRL. The lead drug datate from this collaboration,
forodesine HCI, is a more potent inhibitor of hunimphocyte proliferation than other previously kmoPNP inhibitors. Clinical data in our
past and ongoing clinical trials, plus extensivegtinical studies indicate that forodesine HCI camdulate T-cell activities. Forodesine HCl is
an investigational PNP inhibitor for the potenti@atment of T-cell leukemias and lymphomas. Inrkaty 2006, we licensed forodesine HCI
to Mundipharma to develop and commercialize in ratrlacross Europe, Asia and Australia for use cology.

During 2002, we exercised the option to adéw compound, BCX208, to the series of inhibitors of PNP licenseanf AECOM and IRL
Preclinical results indicated that BCX-4208 wasaerpotent inhibitor than forodesine HCI. We contgdiea Phase | single ascending dose
clinical trial and a Phase Ib multi-dose cliniaddl, both in healthy volunteers. In November 2088, licensed BCX-4208 to Roche for the
world wide development and commercialization inodmtnune diseases and transplant rejection.

6




Table of Contents

PNP Inhibitor (forodesine HCI)
Overview

The first clinical trial with an intravenousrfnulation of forodesine HCI, which began in 2082s a Phase | clinical trial that enrolled T-
ALL patients at the M.D. Anderson Cancer Centad@uston, Texas. Simultaneously, there were predirstudies being conducted at the
M.D. Anderson Cancer Center which indicated theddesine HCI induces the same biochemical chamgearious other types of leukemia
cells that are responsible for the inhibition ofeTikemia cells. The results of these preclinicadligs led us to expand beyond the single sta
trial in T-ALL by initiating additional clinical fls for refractory patients with BLL, CTCL, CLL, and other hematologic malignanci@aset
on the encouraging results of these initial studiesare working with our partner, Mundipharmagévelop a strategy for the simultaneous
development of forodesine HCI in multiple indicai$oand in potential combination therapies.

Current Development Strategy (T-ALL, CTCL, B-ALL, and CLL)

Forodesine HCI Clinical DevelopmenFollowing the completion of a Phase I/11 clini¢ahl in patients with refractory CTCL, in
October 2007, we initiated a planned pivotal twéh an oral formulation of forodesine HCI for ttegent of patients with CTCL. This trial is
being conducted under an SPA agreement negotidtbdhe FDA and will serve as a basis for a newgdxpplication to the FDA using the @
formulations in patients with relapsed CTCL.

Based on preclinical studies conducted aiti2. Anderson Cancer Center which indicated theddesine HCI induces the same
biochemical changes in various other types of leikecells that are responsible for the inhibitidiTdeukemia cells, we initiated two small
clinical studies late in 2005 in B-cell leukemiagich are more prevalent than T-cell leukemiasstFive initiated a Phase Il trial with oral
forodesine HCI in patients with CLL in an advanstalge and refractory to fludarabine, a currentdsteshtherapy. Our initial trial has been
amended so that any potential subject who had fhlgilae treatment in the past is now eligible. Tihed is on-going.

We initiated a Phase I/11 clinical trial ofrfmdlesine HCI to determine the safety of repeatslo$an i.v. formulation of the drug in patients
with B-ALL. This trial is completed. Once the datee thoroughly analyzed, we will review the resulth Mundipharma to determine the best
clinical development strategy going forward.

In January 2007, we initiated a Phase llb imediter, open-label, non-randomized repeat-dosstration study to evaluate an intravenous
treatment of forodesine HCI followed by an orabtreent of forodesine HCI in patients with relapsedefractory TALL. This study was beir
conducted under an SPA negotiated with the FDAveasl designed to determine the rate of completesseam achieved with forodesine HCI.
In March 2007, we announced that as a result tdlzility issue with the i.v. formulation, that weeve voluntarily placing this Phase Ilb clinii
trial on hold pending internal review and discussiavith our partner, Mundipharma. In December 200¥ announced the formal termination
of this study.

In February 2006, we and Mundipharma entem&alan exclusive license agreement to develop andrercialize forodesine HCl in
markets across Europe, Asia and Australia for nsecology. The agreement covers a number of mamketsia and Australasia including
Japan, Australia, New Zealand, China and Indias Thilaboration should help maximize the globaledepment, commercialization, and
market potential of forodesine HCI in a varietysefious medical conditions potentially includinga@l leukemia, CTCL, CLL, T-cell non-
Hodgkin lymphoma and B-cell non-Hodgkin lymphoma.

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208/R3421)
Overview

During 2004, we began clinical developmenB@GiX-4208, another PNP inhibitor, as a drug candidat the treatment of T-cell mediated
autoimmune diseases, including psoriasis, andptansrejection. Although BCX-
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4208 and forodesine HCI are both investigationaPRhhibitors, BCX-4208 differs from forodesine Hi@lsignificant ways. For example,
BCX-4208 is more potent, and has the ability topsaps PNP for longer periods of time. Thus, BCX8B8s potential advantages over
forodesine HCI for the treatment of diseases réuggiiong-term, chronic administration of a PNP bitor. Psoriasis is a chronic and often
painful and debilitating disease which affects stineated 2-3 percent of the world’s population,aotting for nearly 125 million persons
worldwide. The National Institute of Health estiesthat 5.8-7.5 million Americans have psoriasis.

Current Development Strategy

We completed our initial Phase | study, a kermpse pharmacokinetic trial in healthy volunteeegly in 2005 and during the third quarte
2005, we initiated a Phase Ib multi dose trial @althy volunteers to evaluate the safety, toleitgbéind pharmacokinetics of multiple oral
doses of BCX-4208. In November 2005, we and Rodm@anced an exclusive license agreement for thédwite development and
commercialization of BCX-4208 for the preventionagiute rejection in transplantation and for thattreent of autoimmune diseases. This
collaboration provided substantial strategic anshemic benefit to us and also all the essentiahelds for the rapid, comprehensive and
competitive development of BCX-4208. The two conipamave established a joint committee to setlihical development strategy and the
future development program for BCX-4208.

During the third quarter of 2007, we annountted Roche had initiated a Phase lla clinical tosevaluate BCX-4208/R3421 in patients
with moderate to severe plaque psoriasis.

Neuraminidase Inhibitor

Influenza

Seasonal Influenz&easonal influenza, commonly known as the flu,vsal infection characterized by symptoms incluglfiever, cough,
sore throat, fatigue, headache, and/or chills. Adiog to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control amd/&htion (“CDC”"), an estimated 5% to
20% of the American population suffers from inflaarannually, there are an estimated 200,000 irda@ssociated hospitalizations, and
influenza is responsible for approximately 36,0@attis annually. Influenza is particularly dangeruthe elderly, young children and people
with certain health conditions. Outbreaks of seattin tend to follow predictable patterns usuallycurring in the winter. New vaccines are
developed annually based on known flu strains aedigually available for the annual flu season.r&lage also antiviral treatments available
for the treatment of people infected with influenza

Avian Influenza According to information from the CDC, avian iinza, or bird flu is an infection caused by visugdich occur natural
among birds. This form of flu is very contagiousang birds and can lead to serious illness and sorastdeath. There are two main forms of
disease that infect domestic poultry, one a lowagenic form and the other a highly pathogenic foFhe latter form can cause disease that
affects multiple internal organs and with a motyalate between 90-100% in these birds within 2sday

While there are many different subtypes ofittiienza A virus, only two subtypes are knowrb&currently circulating among humans.
Avian influenza A viruses are found chiefly in k8rdut there have been confirmed cases of infeatitlmmans, generally as a result of contact
with infected birds. These infections have ledyimgtoms ranging from those of normal flu to moreese and life threatening conditions.
Influenza A (“H5N1") is a subtype of an influenzaus that is highly contagious among birds andlwawery deadly to them. Of the avian
influenza viruses that have crossed the speciegbty infect humans, the H5N1 virus has causeddigest number of detected cases of
severe disease and death in humans. Thus farpergerson spread of this virus is consideredeex#ly rare, but as influenza A viruses
constantly change, they could mutate over timeateehthe ability to spread rapidly among humans.

Pandemic InfluenzaPandemic influenza is a global disease outbitegtkdccurs when a new influenza virus emergesatgople have
had no previous exposure. This situation occurg kagely and only occurred three times in thehz@ntury.
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Influenza Prevention and Treatmerfhe development of effective therapeutics haletged medical researchers due to the seasonal
variation in viral strains and the highly infectinoature of influenza. Patients, therefore, hawédid treatment options. Amantadine and
rimantadine are used for treatment of influenzauAdre ineffective against influenza B. In addititese drugs cause some adverse side
effects, and the virus tends to develop resistémtizese drugs. The CDC has recommended againsséhef amantadine and rimantadine for
the treatment or prophylaxis of influenza in theted States until susceptibility to these antiviredications has been re-established among
circulating influenza A viruses.

Vaccines are available against the diseashdué limitations: people require advance vacamatvaccines are limited by their specificity
particular strains of the virus; and vaccines ofitde protection if the strain of influenza theitculates is different from that present in the
vaccine. In addition, many people decline the negfliinjections because of fear and/or discomfdre &bility of the virus to change its
structure to avoid the body’s natural defensessisraus obstacle to developing an effective varaigainst influenza. Different strains can
arise when surface antigens on the virus (thegodf the virus that causes an immune reactioumans) undergo minor genetic mutations
each year as the virus replicates. Because ofrthtability, the immunity acquired in response tfeation by a particular strain of the virus
does not provide adequate protection against \arthest subsequently arise. The production of avesine each year is not only complex and
expensive, but also an inefficient method of glatiakase control.

Inhibiting Influenza Neuraminidas®esearch during the past two decades has seentaraoheances in understanding the molecular
structure and function of the influenza virus. ddaesable attention has been focused on the enzy@meminidase, which is located on the
surface of the virus. Neuraminidase assists indlease and spread of the flu virus by breaking:tiemical strands that hold the new viruse
the cell surface, allowing the replicated viruspsead and infect other cells. This process pregeesntil the host’s immune response can
produce enough antibodies to bring the infectiodaurcontrol. Inhibiting the neuraminidase enzymepsenew viruses attached to the cell
surface, thereby preventing the spread of the dnasthe further infection of other cells. The sdagent quantities of virus in the bloodstream
are not enough to cause disease but are sufficientuce the body to mount an immune response.

In addition to our neuraminidase inhibitor gleandidate, peramivir, both Roche, in collaboratidth Gilead Sciences, and
GlaxoSmithKline (“GSK”) have neuraminidase inhilsgamn the market. Roche’s neuraminidase inhibga@ fwice-a-day, orally active
neuraminidase inhibitor, while GSK’s neuraminidaggbitor is administered by dry powder inhalerdia day. Both drugs are approved for
marketing in the United States and other counfdesreatment of influenza and are to be adminéstdor 5 days. Roche’s neuraminidase
inhibitor is also approved for prophylaxis use fioevention of influenza. In addition to these comipa with neuraminidase inhibitors, there
other companies working to develop additional arghdrugs to be used against various strainsfafénza.

Some studies in laboratories suggest that sirtteese neuraminidase inhibitor drugs should wirtkeating avian influenza infections in
humans, but additional studies are needed to demnadmshe effectiveness of these drugs.

Government StockpilingVith the concern of avian influenza and the possibteat of a pandemic, many governments througheuworld
have been stockpiling antiviral drugs, such as Racheuraminidase inhibitor, oseltamivir. Theréigrest in many of these governments,
including the U.S. government to find additionatemes and antivirals to address a potential paigsituation.

Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivir)

Overview

BackgroundIn 1987, scientists at The University of Alabam@&gtningham (“UAB”), in collaboration with our samists, began
determining the molecular structure of the influemeuraminidase enzyme from several differentrsraf influenza, using X-ray
crystallography. Subsequently, our scientists aA® dcientists developed numerous new inhibitortheke enzymes using structure-based
drug design. We licensed the influenza
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neuraminidase program from UAB in 1994 and procdeédeomplete the studies of the enzyme’s moleatlaicture needed to advance the
development of neuraminidase inhibitors. The stmecdf the active site of influenza neuraminidassiinilar among different viral strains.
Because of this similarity, we believe that ournaminidase inhibitors may be effective in the tneait and prevention of influenza, regardless
of changes in the virus.

Previous development of peramivir in an ocairfulation was conducted through a worldwide lieeagreement between the Company and
the R.W. Johnson Pharmaceutical Research InstideOrtho-McNeil Pharmaceutical Inc. (both John&afohnson companies). Johnson &
Johnson made the business decision to terminatagiéement in 2001 and returned all rights térudune 2002, we completed an ongoing
Phase Il clinical trial that had been started blgnson & Johnson and subsequently terminated dewelot of our oral peramivir program as a
result of missing the primary endpoint in the paldtial.

Current status of peramiviDue to the recent international concern about amgil influenza pandemic that could be initiatgdalvian
strains of the virus, peramivir has received comsilile attention, since it is positioned to be oheery few advanced antiviral alternatives to
oral oseltamivir, or Tamiflu, for addressing a pdial pandemic. As a result, we filed an IND in 80ind re-initiated the clinical development
of peramivir during 2006.

Current Development Strategy

Preclinical studies comparing peramivir wither anti-influenza drugs have demonstrated thatmizir has outstanding broad-spectrum
potency against multiple strains of influenza, irdthg the avian strain HSN1. In addition, peramigitains activity against nearly all
oseltamivir-resistant strains of influenza thatdéeen identified to date. We are currently foogigin injectable formulations of peramivir that
may achieve high blood levels that should be dffecigainst most strains of influenza, includingisis that may be resistant to oseltmivir
(Tamiflu). Our investigational new drug applicati¢/hND”) for i.v. peramivir became effective in Dember 2005 and for i.m. in
December 2006. We received fast track designatmm the FDA in January 2006 and initiated a Phadmical trial with i.v. peramivir in
March 2006. During 2006, we conducted multiple RHadinical trials in healthy volunteers in preation for the Phase Il trials to be initiated
during the 2006-2007 influenza season, which beg#nthe initiation of a Phase 1l study with thei.formulation in January 2007.

Intramuscular peramivirln September 2007, we announced the results odPbase Il study with i.m. peramivir injection. THady was a
randomized, double-blind placebo-controlled clihicial designed to test whether peramivir, whemadstered acutely in high doses
intramuscularly, could reduce the duration of syonmg during seasonal influenza. During the study, (stients who had a positive rapid
antigen test indicating influenza were randomizeceteive i.m. injections of either placebo or ofitwo dose levels of peramivir (150mg and
300mg) as a single dose administered within 48hofisymptom onset. The primary endpoint of thestuas the time to alleviation of
symptoms in the patients confirmed with influenzgection, of which there were 313. The resultsdatid that in these 313 subjects, a single
dose of peramivir demonstrated a treatment impr@verover placebo, but the improvement was notssiedily significant. Following the
release of these results, we completed additiamelais of the clinical data and performed a priglary analysis of the virologic data from this
trial. We also conducted further pharmacokinet") studies in healthy volunteers.

Preliminary analysis of the virologic datarfreéhis Phase Il i.m. trial indicated that i.m. parar demonstrated statistically significant
reductions in influenza virus shedding in bothaetreatment groups when compared to placebo,guéthter reductions in the 300mg group.
Additionally, PK studies have been completed, whitticate that needle length impacts adequate ansigtent systemic exposure to i.m.
peramivir. Based on these clinical results andlogiz data, we believe that a single i.m. doseGffrig peramivir can be a potentially clinica
effective dose. However, given the dose-responserabd between the 150mg and 300mg doses in thee Phaial, we believe it is prudent to
evaluate whether doses higher than 300mg providiiaagal efficacy. As a result, we are planningdritiate a Phase Il clinical trial that will
evaluate the 300mg dose and a higher dose of pardater this year.

Intravenous peramiviin July 2007, we announced the initiation of a Rhi&slinical trial of i.v. peramivir to comparedtefficacy and
safety of i.v. peramivir to orally administered tamivir in patients who require
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hospitalization due to acute influenza. This twals initiated in the Southern Hemisphere and isectlly ongoing in the Northern Hemisphere.

SummaryQur plan is to continue developing both injectdblenulations in the in-patient and out-patientisgts. In addition to the
progress made clinically in both programs, we helge made significant progress in the manufactuaimg) toxicology work required to
advance both programs forward toward product aggr®reclinical studies have indicated that a sinigjection of peramivir is effective at
preventing death in mice from infections with veat strains of influenza. If this finding can benfioned in clinical trials, we believe the
injectable formulations of peramivir will have cdtesrable potential for treating patients with seeddanfluenza infections, in addition to
providing an effective mechanism for treating langenbers of patients rapidly in the event of godundemic.

Congress approved an appropriation of $3I®bifor 2006 to support the development of varicoantermeasures for a flu pandemic. The
appropriation included funding for the developmeihew antiviral agents. In January 2007, we anoedrthat HHS had awarded the
Company a $102.6 million, four-year contract fae eidvanced development of peramivir for U.S. liceasin January 2008, we announced
that the development cost of our peramivir progtaranticipated product approval would cost in esagfsthe $102.6 million contract since the
development plan for peramivir had changed fron dliélined in the original proposal to HHS. HHS liredicated that they will fund certain
elements of our revised program, including the amg®hase Il i.v. study evaluating peramivir in pitalized subjects, the planning and
conduct of the planned Phase Il study of i.m. péreipand the manufacturing and toxicology compdsenf the program. Each of these
elements has specific HHS funding limits and arstgoutside the approved amounts by HHS may beetponsibility of the Company. The
original contract of $102.6 million and the fouraygerm remain unchanged.

In addition to the contract with HHS, we hasgtablished collaborative relationships with Shgiremd Green Cross for the development
commercialization in Japan and Korea, respectivihg Shionogi agreement was established in Feb2G0Y, which resulted in an upfront
payment of $14 million. In December 2007, we reedia $7 milestone payment from Shionogi for thatration of a Phase I clinical trial
with i.v. peramivir.

Structure-Based Drug Design

Structurebased drug design is a drug discovery approachhighwve design synthetic compounds from detaileactiral knowledge of th
active sites of enzyme targets associated withqodatt diseases. Enzymes are proteins that acitalysts for many vital biological reactions.
Our goal generally is to design a compound thdtfiviin the active site of an enzyme (the actiite ®f an enzyme is the area into which a
chemical or biological molecule fits to initiatdbachemical reaction) and thereby interfere with pinogression of disease.

Our structure-based drug design involves pgieation of both traditional biology and medidimaemistry and an array of advanced
technologies. We use X-ray crystallography, compniedeling of molecular structures and advancednistey techniques to focus on the
three-dimensional molecular structure and actiteeciaracteristics of the enzymes that controlutailbiology.

We believe that structure-based drug desigmtelogies are superior to drug screening techsigBe identifying the target enzyme in
advance and by discovering the chemical and malestlucture of the enzyme, we believe it is pdedib design a better drug to interact with
the enzyme. In addition, the structural data olet@iby X-ray crystallographic analysis allow addigbanalysis and compound modification at
each stage of the biological evaluation. This cdipalnakes structurdsased drug design a powerful tool for efficientelepment of drugs th
are highly specific for particular enzyme targeesi

Research and Development

We initiated our research and developmentharogn 1986, with drug synthesis beginning in 19872 have assembled a scientific research
staff with expertise in a broad base of advancedarch technologies including protein biochemistryay crystallography, chemistry and
pharmacology. Our research facilities include groleochemistry and organic synthesis laboratotiestjing facilities, X-ray crystallography,
computer and graphics equipment and facilities axerdrug candidates on a small scale for earlyesthigical trials. Beginning in June
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2006, we began building an internal clinical depet@nt and regulatory team, based in Cary, Nortlol®e&rto manage the development
strategy for our later stage products.

During the years ended December 31, 2007, 26062005, we spent $94.1, $47.1 and $23.6 millespectively, on research and
development. Approximately $19.5, $12.2 and $8.tHaniof those respective amounts were spent dmoinse research and development, and
$74.6, $34.9 and $15.4 million, respectively weyerg on contract research and development.

Collaboration and In-License Relationships

We seek to enter into collaborations with leggpharmaceutical and biotechnology companies whefeel it is advantageous to leverage
these companies’ resources to develop and comrtireciaur drug candidates on a global basis. Thisesl us to remain focused on our
strength of early stage discovery and developmidtuy candidates. To date, we have two major bollations for the development and
commercialization of our lead PNP inhibitors and wollaborations for the development and commeratbn of peramivir in certain
countries outside the U.S. In addition, in Jani2097, we announced that HHS had awarded the Cong&t@2.6 million, four-year contract
for the advanced development of peramivir for Uicknsure.

Another important component of our strateggpiaugment our internal discovery programs throthghselective in-licensing of potential
drug development targets or early stage compowrdsése specific targets. For example, our PNiioins were in-licensed from AECOM
and IRL in June 2000.

Corporate Alliances

Roche. In November 2005, we entered into an exclusisense with Roche for the development and commératain of our second
generation PNP inhibitor, BCX-4208, for the preventof acute rejection in transplantation and far treatment of autoimmune diseases.
Under the terms of the agreement, Roche obtaineliwidle rights to BCX-4208 in exchange for an uprfr payment of $30 million, which
included a payment as reimbursement for a limitguply of material during the first 24 months of ttwlaboration. There could also be future
event payments for achieving specified developnregtilatory and commercial milestones (includinigséevel milestones following a
product’s launch) for certain indications. In adtit we will receive royalties based on a percem@ignet product sales, which varies
depending upon when certain indications receive Beug Application (“NDA”) approval in a major markeountry and can vary by country
depending on the patent coverage or sales of gec@mpounds in a particular country. We licensésl ¢tbmpound and other PNP inhibitors
from AECOM and IRL and will owe sublicense paymeotshese third parties on any upfront paymentriievent payments and royalties
received by us for the sublicense of these inhibito

Roche has a right of first negotiation, unckentain conditions, on existing backup PNP inhilsitwe develop through Phase 1lb in transplant
rejection and autoimmune diseases, but any newiRNBitors are exempt from this agreement and vemell rights to such compounds. We
retain the right to co-promote BCX-4208 in the U@.certain indications. Roche has certain obiaret under the terms of the agreement to
use commercially reasonable efforts to develop,ufeanture and commercialize the licensed produce. dgreement may be terminated by
either party following an uncured material breaght®e other party or may be either fully or pafjigerminated by Roche without cause under
certain conditions and all rights, data, materipisducts and other information would be transfétreus at no cost.

Mundipharma. In February 2006, we entered into an exclusiegalty bearing right and license in the specifieditory (primarily Europe,
Asia and Australia) with Mundipharma for the deymtent and commercialization of our lead PNP inbibitorodesine HCI, for use in
oncology. Under the terms of the agreement, Muratipla obtained oncology rights to forodesine HGhim specified territory in exchange for
a $10 million up-front payment. Mundipharma willash 50% of the documented third party developmestscdncurred by us in respect of our
current and planned trials as of the effective déthe agreement provided that Mundipharma’s maxmntontribution to these trials shall be
$10 million. In addition, Mundipharma will conduatiditional clinical trials at their own cost upaanaximum of $15 million. The license
provides for future event payments for achievingcsiied development, regulatory and commercial &/éincluding certain sales level
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amounts following a product’s launch) for certaidications. In addition, we will receive royaltieased on a percentage of net product sales,
which varies depending upon when certain indicati@teive NDA approval in a major market countrgl aan vary by country depending on
the patent coverage or sales of generic compoumagarticular country. Generally, all paymentsanttie agreement are nonrefundable and
non-creditable, but they are subject to audit. tenised this compound and other PNP inhibitors fade€OM and IRL and will owe
sublicense payments to these third parties ongfrent payment, future event payments and royatgesived by us for the sublicense of these
inhibitors.

Within five years of the effective date of thgreement, Mundipharma has a right of first negjath on existing backup PNP inhibitors we
develop through Phase IlIb in oncology, but any R&® inhibitors are exempt from this agreement aadetain all rights to such compounds.
We retain the rights to forodesine HCI in the LaBd Mundipharma is obligated by the terms of thre@gent to use commercially reasonable
efforts to develop the licensed product in theiteny specified by the agreement. The agreemertowiitinue for the commercial life of the
licensed products, but may be terminated by ejtlaety following an uncured material breach by theeo party or in the event the pre-existing
third party license with AECOM and IRL expiresmty be terminated by Mundipharma upon 60 daysenrrittotice without cause or under
certain other conditions as specified in the agexgrand all rights, data, materials, products ahdranformation would be transferred to us at
no cost. In the event we terminate the agreememhé&terial default or insolvency, we could have#&y Mundipharma 50% of the costs of any
independent data owned by Mundipharma in accordaitbethe terms of the agreement.

Shionogi.ln March 2007, the Company entered into an exckubense agreement with Shionogi to develop amdnsercialize the
Company'’s lead influenza neuraminidase inhibitergmivir, in Japan for the treatment of seasondl@tentially life-threatening human
influenza. Under the terms of the agreement, Slgbobtained rights to injectable formulations ofgmivir in Japan in exchange for a
$14 million up-front payment. The license providesfuture event payments for achieving specifiedelopment, regulatory and commercial
events (including certain sales level amounts Yalg a product’s launch) for certain indications.December 2007, the Company received a
$7 million milestone payment from Shionogi for thiitiation of a Phase I clinical trial with i.yperamivir. In addition, the Company will
receive royalties based on a percentage of neuptadles. Generally, all payments under the ageatare nonrefundable and non-creditable,
but they are subject to audit. The Company devel@azamivir under a license from UAB and will owebbcense payments to them on the
upfront payment and any future event payments amdj@lties received by the Company from Shiondgie Company retains all rights to
commercialize peramivir in North America, Europedather countries outside of Korea and Japan.

Green Cross Corporation (“Green Cross'n June 2006, the Company entered into an agreewigtnGreen Cross to develop and
commercialize peramivir in Korea. Under the terrhthe agreement, Green Cross will be responsiblalfalevelopment, regulatory, and
commercialization costs in Korea. The Company ke one-time license fee and may also receivedigvent payments as well as royalties
on product sales of peramivir. In addition, the @amy will share in any profits resulting from theesof peramivir to the Korean government
for stockpiling purposes. Furthermore, Green Crafipay the Company a premium over its cost tomyperamivir for development and any
future marketing of peramivir products in Korea.

Academic Alliances

Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva @nsity and Industrial Research, Ltd, New Zealaha June 2000, we licensed a series of
potent inhibitors of PNP from AECOM and IRL. Thadkdrug candidates from this collaboration aredesine HCIl and BCX-4208. We have
obtained worldwide exclusive rights to develop aitinately distribute these compounds or any othrag candidates that might arise from
research on these inhibitors. We have agreed tag@dagin milestone payments for future developneémihese inhibitors, certain royalties on
sales of any resulting product, and to share iareupayments received from other thparty partners, if any. In addition, we have agreepay
an annual license fee that is non-refundable,datdditable against actual royalties and othemags due to AECOM and IRL. This
agreement may be terminated by us at any timeggb0 days advance notice or in the event of rietencured breach by AECOM and/or
IRL.
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The University of Alabama at Birminghand/e have had a close relationship with UAB sinaeformation. Our former Chairman,
Dr. Charles E. Bugg, was the previous Directohef ) AB Center for Macromolecular Crystallographyd aur Chief Operating Officer, Dr. J.
Claude Bennett, was the former President of UAB fthmer Chairman of the Department of MedicineAB and a former Chairman of the
Department of Microbiology at UAB. Several of oarly programs originated at UAB.

We currently have agreements with UAB foruefhza neuraminidase and complement inhibitors. Uthgeterms of these agreements, L
performed specific research for us in return faesrch payments and license fees. UAB has grastedrtain rights to any discoveries in these
areas resulting from research developed by UABIotly developed with us. We have agreed to paglt@®s on sales of any resulting product
and to share in future payments received from dthied-party partners. We have completed the rebeander both the complement and
influenza agreements. These two agreements haiad B8-year terms, are automatically renewabldfif@-year terms throughout the life of
the last patent and are terminable by us upon thiga@hs notice and by UAB under certain circumstandhere is currently no activity
between us and UAB on these agreements, but wiee@dmpany licenses this technology, such as icake of the Shionogi and Green Cross
agreements, or commercialize products relatedasetiprograms, we will owe sublicense fees or riggatin amounts we receive.

Emory. In June 2000, we licensed intellectual propemdyrf Emory related to the HCV polymerase targetceiasad with hepatitis C viral
infections. Under the original terms of the agreetnthe research investigators from Emory providedavith materials and technical insight
into the target. We have agreed to pay Emory riggatin sales of any resulting product and to simafigture payments received from other
third party partners, if any. We can terminate #tgseement at any time by giving 90 days advantieao

Government Contracts

In January 2007, we announced that HHS haddrdahe Company a $102.6 million, four-year carttfar the advanced development of
peramivir. In January 2008, we announced the dewedmt cost of our peramivir program to product appt would cost in excess of the
$102.6 million contract since the development ftarperamivir has changed from that outlined in dhiginal proposal to HHS. HHS has
indicated that they will fund certain elements af cevised program, including the ongoing Phase listudy in hospitalized subjects, planning
and conduct of the planned Phase Il i.m. study,ufsenturing and toxicology. Each of these elementsdpecific HHS funding limits and costs
outside the approved amounts by HHS may be thenasdplity of the Company. The original contract®if02.6 million and the four year term
remain unchanged. HHS has indicated that antidinadis are an important element of their pandenfioénza preparedness efforts and that
their strategy includes not only stockpiling of &tkig antiviral drugs but also seeking out new\argi medications to further broaden their
capabilities to treat and prevent all forms ofiifhza. Peramivir is in the same class of neura@agidnhibitors as oseltamivir (Tamiflu) and
zanamivir (Relenza), all of which are antiviral gsii but the method of delivery for peramivir wié parenteral (i.m. and i.v.) as compared to
the oral Tamiflu or inhaled Relenza. We are comedito working with HHS for the development of theseenteral formulations of peramivir
which could be especially useful in hospital sefior pandemic situations due to the ability toeah high levels of the drug rapidly
throughout the body.

This contract is a cost-plus-fixed-fee cortiradich is milestone-driven. HHS will make periodissessments of progress and the
continuation of the contract is based on our perforce, timeliness and quality of deliverables, afer factors. The government has rights
under certain contract clauses to terminate thigraot.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our success will depend in part on our abtlitpbtain and enforce patent protection for omdpicts, methods, processes and other
proprietary technologies, preserve our trade secaetd operate without infringing on the proprigtaghts of other parties, both in the United
States and in other countries. We own or havesightertain proprietary information, proprietagghnology, issued and allowed patents and
patent applications which relate to compounds wedaveloping. We actively seek, when appropriatetegption for our products, proprietary
technology and proprietary information by meant/@. and foreign patents, trademarks and
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contractual arrangements. In addition, we rely upade secrets and contractual arrangements tegbregrtain of our proprietary information,
proprietary technology and products.

The patent positions of companies like ouesgamerally uncertain and involve complex legal faadual questions. Our ability to maintain
and solidify our proprietary position for our tecthogy will depend on our success in obtaining effecpatent claims and enforcing those
claims once granted. We do not know whether aryuofpatent applications or those patent applicattbat we license will result in the
issuance of any patents. Our issued patents asd that may issue in the future, or those licetsers, may be challenged, invalidated,
rendered unenforceable or circumvented, which chionid our ability to stop competitors from markagi related products or the length of term
of patent protection that we may have for our potslulin addition, the rights granted under anyesspatents may not provide us with
competitive advantages against competitors withlairmompounds or technology. Furthermore, our cetibtgrs may independently develop
similar technologies or duplicate any technologyadeped by us in a manner that does not infringepatents or other intellectual property.
Because of the extensive time required for devebantesting and regulatory review of a potentradpict, it is possible that, before any of
drug candidates or those developed by our partzerde commercialized, any related patent may exgiremain in force for only a short
period following commercialization, thereby redugizny advantage of the patent.

As of February 20, 2008, we have been iss@ed.3. patents that expire between 2009 and 20@5he relate to our PNP, serine protease
and neuraminidase inhibitor compounds. We havadied six different class of compounds represemtévg composition of matter patents
from AECOM and IRL for our PNP inhibitors, plus afilthal manufacturing patents related to these Rifiibitors and one patent from Emory
related to hepatitis C. Additionally, we have 15TR& U.S. patent applications pending related t¢®Pieuraminidase, RNA viral polymerase,
paramyxovirus neuraminidase, and serine protedslitors. Our pending applications may not resulissued patents, and our patents may not
provide us with sufficient protection against cottipee products or otherwise be commercially viable

Our success is also dependent upon the dkiltsyledge and experience of our scientific antinézal personnel, none of which is
patentable. To help protect our rights, we regalfemployees, consultants, advisors and partoegster into confidentiality agreements,
which prohibit the disclosure of confidential infioaition to anyone outside of our company and, whessible, requires disclosure and
assignment to us of their ideas, developmentspd&tes and inventions. These agreements may neider adequate protection for our trade
secrets, know-how or other proprietary informatiothe event of any unauthorized use or disclosutée lawful development by others of
such information.

Marketing and Sales

We may decide to market, distribute and sethdesine HCl in the U.S. for use in treatmentariaus cancers. Although our general stra
is to rely on major marketing companies for worldevcommercialization of most products we may dgyele believe that we can manage
highly specialized oncology market for forodesin@liithin the U.S. However, in general, we lack esipnce in marketing, distributing and
selling pharmaceutical products. Our general gsate to rely on partners, licensees or arrangeswith others to provide for the marketing,
distribution and sales of products we may develgp.may not be able to establish and maintain aabéptommercial arrangements with
partners, licensees or others to perform suchidety

Competition

The pharmaceutical and biotechnology industi® intensely competitive. Many companies, inagdbiotechnology, chemical and
pharmaceutical companies, are actively engagedtivities similar to ours, including research arevelopment of drugs for the treatment of
cancer, infectious, autoimmune, and inflammatospriers. Many of these companies have substangigter financial and other resources,
larger research and development staffs, and maemsixe marketing and manufacturing organizatibias twe do. In addition, some of them
have considerable experience in preclinical testfigical trials and other regulatory approval gedures. There are also academic institutions,
governmental agencies and other research orgasmzati
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that are conducting research in areas in whichreevarking. They may also market commercial progiueither on their own or through
collaborative efforts.

We expect to encounter significant competifimmany of the pharmaceutical products we pladeeelop. Companies that complete clinical
trials, obtain required regulatory approvals ancheence commercial sales of their products befa® tompetitors may achieve a significant
competitive advantage. Such is the case with ESargretin for CTCL and the current neuraminidabébitors marketed by GSK and Roche
for influenza. In addition, several pharmaceutaradl biotechnology firms, including major pharmagmltcompanies and specialized structure-
based drug design companies, have announced éffdhs field of structure-based drug design anthéfields of PNP, HCV, influenza, and
other therapeutic areas where we are focusing gy discovery efforts.

In order to compete successfully, we must gwproprietary positions in patented drugs fordpeutic markets that have not been
satisfactorily addressed by conventional resedareltegiies and, in the process, expand our expéntisteucture-based drug design. Our
products, even if successfully tested and developeg not be adopted by physicians over other misdand may not offer economically
feasible alternatives to other therapies.

Government Regulation

The FDA regulates the pharmaceutical and biotelogy industries in the U.S., and our drug cdatdis are subject to extensive and rigo
domestic government regulations prior to commeimaibn. The FDA regulates, among other things,déeelopment, testing, manufacture,
safety, efficacy, record-keeping, labeling, storaggroval, advertising, promotion, sale and distibn of pharmaceutical products. In foreign
countries, our products are also subject to extensigulation by foreign governments. These goventmegulations will be a significant fac
in the production and marketing of any pharmacalfpcoducts that we develop. Failure to comply veiiplicable FDA and other regulatory
requirements at any stage during the regulatorgge®may subject us to sanctions, including:

. delays;

. warning letters

. fines;

. product recalls or seizure

. injunctions;

. penalties

. refusal of the FDA to review pending market appt@gplications or supplements to approval applared;
. total or partial suspension of productit

. civil penalties;

. withdrawals of previously approved marketing apgtiions; anc
. criminal prosecutions

The regulatory review and approval procedsrigthy, expensive and uncertain. Before obtaingggilatory approvals for the commercial
sale of any products, we or our partners must detnate that our product candidates are safe apdtafé for use in humans. The approval
process takes many years, substantial expensebariagurred and significant time may be devoteditacal development.
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Before testing potential candidates in humamscarry out laboratory and animal studies tomeitee safety and biological activity. After
completing preclinical trials, we must file an INID¢luding a proposal to begin clinical trials, lwthe FDA. We have filed thirteen INDs to
date and plan to file, or rely on future partnersile, additional INDs in the future as our pofahtirug candidates advance to that stage of
development. Thirty days after filing an IND, a Bad human clinical trial can start, unless the Hiddces a hold on the study.

Our Phase | trials are designed to determafietysin a small group of patients or healthy vodans. We also assess tolerances and the
metabolic and pharmacologic actions of our druglaates at different doses. After we complete tiiigai trials, we conduct Phase Il trials to
assess safety and efficacy and establish the dpdiose in patients. If Phase Il trials are sucedssfe or our partners conduct Phase Ill trial
verify the results in a larger patient populatiBhase Il trials are required for FDA approval tarket a drug. A Phase Il trial may require
hundreds or even thousands of patients and is tis¢ expensive to conduct. The goal in Phase tb ollect enough safety and efficacy data
to obtain FDA approval of a drug for treatment gfaaticular disease. For some clinical indicatitived are especially serious and for which
there are no effective treatments, such as refnacancers, conditional approval can be obtainddviing Phase I trials.

Initiation and completion of the clinical trighases are dependent on several factors inclullings that are beyond our control. For
example, the clinical trials cannot begin at aipalar site until that site receives approval frieninstitutional Review Board (“IRB”), which
reviews the protocol and related documents. Trosgss can take from several weeks to several mdnthsldition, clinical trials are
dependent on patient enroliment, but the rate athwpatients enroll in the study depends on:

. willingness of investigators to participate in adt;

. ability of clinical sites to obtain approval froneir IRB;

. the availability of the required number of eligilslebjects to be enrolled in a given tri

. the availability of existing or other experimendaligs for the disease we intend to tr

. the willingness of patients to participate; ¢

. the patients meeting the eligibility criter

Delays in planned patient enrollment may reisuincreased expense and longer developmentitieel

After completion of the clinical trials of aq@uct, we or our partners must submit a NDA toRB& for marketing approval before
commercialization of the product. The FDA may ni@rg approval on a timely basis, if at all. The F2& a result of the Food and Drug
Administration Modernization Act of 1997, has sixmths to review and act upon license applicationpfiority therapeutics that are for life-
threatening or unmet medical needs. Standard reviaw take between one and two years, and cana@kefonger if significant questions
arise during the review process. The FDA may walkdany required approvals, once obtained.

In addition to clinical development regulaomve and our contract manufacturers and partnass comply with the applicable FDA curri
good manufacturing practice (“GMP”) regulations. 8¥egulations include requirements relating to igiabntrol and quality assurance as
well as the corresponding maintenance of recordsdacumentation. Manufacturing facilities are sabje inspection by the FDA. Such
facilities must be approved before we can use timeconmmercial manufacturing of our potential produ®e or our contract manufacturers
may not be able to comply with the applicable GMBuirements and other FDA regulatory requiremehtge or our contract manufacturers
fail to comply, our business, financial conditiamdaresults of operations will be materially advérsdfected.
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Human Resources

As of February 20, 2008, we had 106 employeeshom 79 were engaged in research and developamein27 were in general and
administrative functions. Our scientific staff, 88whom hold Ph.D. or M.D. degrees, has diversiiggerience in biochemistry,
pharmacology, Xay crystallography, synthetic organic chemistymputational chemistry, and medicinal chemistry. &asider our relatiot
with our employees to be satisfactory.

Scientific Advisory Board and Consultants

Our scientific advisory board (“SAB”) is coniged of six scientific advisors who are leadersartain of our core disciplines or who
otherwise have specific expertise in our therapdotius areas. The SAB meets as a group at sclieshdetings and consists of the following
individuals:

Name Position
Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D. (Chairme Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Big& Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; Forn
Professor of Biochemistry and Molecular Genetidse®or of the Center for
Macromolecular Crystallography, and Associate Doeof the Comprehensive Cancer
Center, University of Alabama at Birminghe

Albert F. LoBuglio, M.D. Director Emeritusand Distinguished Profess:
Comprehensive Cancer Center , University Of Alabama
Birmingham
Gordon N. Gill, M.D. Professor of Medicine and Cellular and Moleculardidme; Dean of Translational

Medicine, University of California, San Diego SchobMedicine.

Lorraine J. Gudas, Ph.l Professor and Chairman, Department of Pharmacc
Weill Medical College of Cornell University, Revl
Pharmaceutical Professor of Pharmacology and Todgo

Herbert A. Hauptman, Ph.l President of the Hauptm-Woodward Medical Researt
Institute, Inc. (formerly the Medical Foundationufi&lo), Inc.), and Research Professor
in Biophysical Sciences at
Distinguished Professor in Structural Biolog)
the State University of New York (Buffalo). Recipte
of the Nobel Prize in Chemistry (198!

Hamilton O. Smith, M.D Professor, Molecular Biology and Genetics Departr
at The Johns Hopkins University School of Medici
retired, and Scientific Director of the SynthetimBgy and Biological Energy Groups
the J. Craig Vente
Institute in Rockville, Maryland. Recipient of tiNobel
Prize in Medicine (1978

The SAB members are reimbursed for their egspemnd receive periodic options to purchase slsh@snmon stock. We also have
consulting agreements with the Chairman of our $&B a number of other scientists with expertiseuncore disciplines or who are
specialists in diseases or treatments on whichoaest The SAB members and other consultants aesrgdloyed by or may have consulting
agreements with entities other than us, some ofhlwitiay compete with us in the future. They are etqukto devote only a small portion of
their time to our business, although no specifiteticommitment has been established. They are petted to participate actively in our affi
or in the development of our technology. Severahefinstitutions with which the SAB members anel tbnsultants are affiliated may adopt
new regulations or policies that limit their ahyjltb consult with us. The loss of the serviceshef EAB members and the consultants could
adversely affect us to the extent that we are pogstesearch or development in areas relevanteio éxpertise.
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Any inventions or processes independentlyalisced by the SAB members or the consultants mapemome our property and will
probably remain the property of such persons @uech persongmployers. In addition, the institutions with whitttey are affiliated may ma
available the research services of their persomma&lding the SAB members and the consultanteutocompetitors pursuant to sponsored
research agreements. We require the SAB membertharmbnsultants to enter into confidentiality agnents which prohibit the disclosure of
confidential information to anyone outside of oompany and require disclosure and assignment ¢ their ideas, developments, discoveries
or inventions. However, our competitors may gaiceas to trade secrets and other proprietary infoomaeveloped by us and disclosed to the
SAB members and the consultants.

Financial Information

For information related to our revenues, psofiiet loss and total assets, in addition to dihancial information, please refer to the
Financial Statement and Notes to Financial Stat¢sramtained in this Annual Report.

Available Information

We have available a website on the Internat.&dress is www.biocryst.com. We make availdide of charge, at our website our Annual
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on FormQl@urrent Reports on Form 8-K, and amendmentsdaset reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchakgieas soon as reasonably practicable after weretdcally file such material with, or
furnish it to, the SEC. We also make availablewatwebsite copies of our audit committee chartemgensation committee charter, corporate
governance and nominating committee charter and¢ade of business conduct, which applies to allleyges of BioCryst as well as the
members of our Board of Directors.

19




Table of Contents

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our stock involves a high degfaéshk. You should consider carefully the followitigks, along with all of the other
information included in our other filings with tt8ecurities and Exchange Commission, before dectdibgly our common stock. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known to ushat we currently deem to be immaterial may afspair our business operations. If we are
unable to prevent events that have a negativetdffan occurring, then our business may suffer.dfieg events are likely to decrease our
revenue, increase our costs, make our financialltepoorer and/or decrease our financial strengthd may cause our stock price to decline.
In that case, you may lose all or a part of yourdstment in our common sto

Risks Relating to Our Business
We have incurred substantial losses since our inception in 1986, expect to continue to incur such losses, and may never be profitable.

Since our inception in 1986, we have not beefitable. We expect to incur additional lossestfe foreseeable future, and our losses could
increase as our research and development effartgges. As of December 31, 2007, our accumulatBdtdeas approximately $224.5 millio
To become profitable, we must successfully manufacand develop drug product candidates, recemdatory approval, and successfully
commercialize or enter into profitable agreemerith wther parties. It could be several years, drebefore we receive royalties from any
current or future license agreements or revenuesttli from product sales.

Because of the numerous risks and uncertaiasociated with developing our product candidatelstheir potential for commercialization,
we are unable to predict the extent of any futassés or when we will become profitable, if at &ilen if we do achieve profitability, we may
not be able to sustain or increase profitabilityaoquarterly or annual basis. If we are unablectdeve and sustain profitability, the market
value of our common stock would likely decline.

Our success depends upon our ability to advance our products through the various stages of development, especially through the clinical trial
process.

To receive the regulatory approvals necesiairthe sale of our product candidates, we or @utners must demonstrate through preclinical
studies and clinical trials that each product cdatdi is safe and effective. The clinical trial pregis complex and uncertain. Because of the
cost and duration of clinical trials, we may dedideliscontinue development of product candiddtas are unlikely to show good results in the
trials, unlikely to help advance a product to tlknpof a meaningful collaboration, or unlikelyhave a reasonable commercial potential. We
may suffer significant setbacks in pivotal clinit@hls, even after earlier clinical trials showpprising results. Clinical trials may not be
adequately designed or executed, which could affecpotential outcome and analysis of study resi@ly of our product candidates may
produce undesirable side effects in humans. THdseeffects could cause us or regulatory autharitieinterrupt, delay or halt clinical trials of
a product candidate. These side effects couldrakadt in the FDA or foreign regulatory authoritiefusing to approve the product candidate
for any targeted indications. We, our partners,RB& or foreign regulatory authorities may suspenderminate clinical trials at any time if '
or they believe the trial participants face unatakele health risks. Clinical trials may fail to denstrate that our product candidates are safe or
effective and have acceptable commercial viability.

Our ability to successfully complete clini¢ahls is dependent upon many factors, includingrmt limited to:
. our ability to find suitable clinical sites and &stigators to enroll patient
. the availability of and willingness of patientsgarticipate in our clinical trials

. difficulty in maintaining contact with patients psovide complete data after treatme
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. our product candidates may not prove to be eithfer ar effective

. clinical protocols or study procedures may not teecaately designed or followed by the investigat
. manufacturing of quality problems could affect gupply of drug product for our trials; a

. delays or changes in requirements by governmegtai@es

Clinical trials are lengthy and expensive. @eur partners incur substantial expense for,dmabte significant time to, preclinical testing
and clinical trials, yet cannot be certain thattéss and trials will ever result in the commdrsale of a product. For example, clinical trials
require adequate supplies of drug and sufficietiepaenrollment. Delays in patient enrollment casult in increased costs and longer
development times. Even if we or our partners ssgfcdly complete clinical trials for our productnchdates, we or our partners might not file
the required regulatory submissions in a timely nearand may not receive regulatory approval fompttegluct candidate.

Our later stage clinical trials may not adequately show our drugs are safe or effective.

Progression of our drug products through thcal development process is dependent uponrails indicating our drugs have adequate
safety profiles and show positive therapeutic affé the patients being treated by achieving memnined endpoints according to the trial
protocols. Failure to achieve either of these coafallt in delays in our trials or even require pleeformance of additional unplanned trials.
This could result in delays in the developmentwf drug candidates and could result in signifiaamxpected costs.

If wefail to obtain additional financing, we may be unable to complete the devel opment and commer cialization of our product candidates or
continue our research and development programs.

As our clinical programs continue to grow guradient enrollment increases, our costs will insee@®ur current and planned clinical trials
plus the related development, manufacturing, régotaapproval process requirements, and additipaesonnel resources and testing required
for supporting the development of our drug candigatill consume significant capital resources. ©yenses, revenues and burn rate could
vary significantly depending on many factors, intthg our ability to raise additional capital, theveélopment progress of our collaborative
agreements for our drug candidates, the amounirwfifig we receive from HHS for peramivir, the amioofifunding or assistance, if any, we
receive from other governmental agencies or otber partnerships with third parties for the develeptrof our drug candidates, the progress
and results of our current and proposed clinid¢alsfor our most advanced drug products, the megmade in the manufacturing of our lead
products and the progression of our other programs.

We expect that we will be required to raisdigonal capital to complete the development anghiercialization of our current product
candidates. Additional funding, whether throughitiddal sales of securities or collaborative orestarrangements with corporate partners or
from other sources, including governmental agenamegeneral and from the HHS contract specificaityay not be available when needed or
on terms acceptable to us. The issuance of preferreommon stock or convertible securities, wéthrts and prices significantly more
favorable than those of the currently outstandimignimon stock, could have the effect of diluting dversely affecting the holdings or rights of
our existing stockholders. In addition, collaboratarrangements may require us to transfer camaterial rights to such corporate partners.
Insufficient funds may require us to delay, scaelbor eliminate certain of our research and derabnt programs.

If HHS were to eliminate, reduce or delay funding from our contract or dispute some of our incurred costs, this would have a significant
negative impact on our revenues, cash flows and the devel opment of peramivir.

Our projections of revenues and incoming dbsis are substantially dependent upon HHS reimdraent for the costs related to our
peramivir program. If HHS were to eliminate, redacelelay the funding for this program or disallseme of our incurred costs, we would
have to obtain additional funding for developmeint o

21




Table of Contents

this drug candidate or significantly reduce or stopdevelopment effort. For example, in Janua@82@e announced the development cost of
our peramivir program to product approval wouldtéogexcess of the $102.6 million contract since development plan for peramivir has
changed from that outlined in the original propdsaHHS. HHS has indicated that they will fund eértelements of our revised program,
including the ongoing Phase Il i.v. study in hoslied subjects, planning and conduct of the pldriftease 1l i.m. study, manufacturing and
toxicology. Each of these elements has specific Hk8ing limits and costs outside the approved amoby HHS may be the responsibility
the Company. The original contract of $102.6 millend the four year term remain unchanged.

In contracting with HHS, we are subject toieas U.S. government contract requirements, indgdjeneral clauses for a cost-
reimbursement research and development contraathwaiay limit our reimbursement or if we are foundoe in violation could result in
contract termination. U.S. government contract&cslfy contain unfavorable termination provisiomslaare subject to audit and modification
by the government at its sole discretion. The lgd¥ernment may terminate its contract with us eifbeits convenience or if we default by
failing to perform in accordance with the contrachedule and terms, which would have a significagiative impact on our cash flows and
operations.

Our contract with HHS has special contracting requirements, which create additional risks of reduction or loss of funding.

We have entered into a contract with HHS fier advanced development of our neuraminidase iolnjlieramivir. In contracting with HH:
we are subject to various U.S. government contegtirements, including general clauses for a oeigtbursement research and development
contract. U.S. government contracts typically contenfavorable termination provisions and are scitje audit and modification by the
government at its sole discretion, which subjestsouadditional risks. These risks include theighdf the U.S. government to unilaterally:

. terminate or reduce the scope of our contract;
. audit and object to our contr-related costs and fees, including allocated indlicests.

The U.S. government may terminate its contnattt us either for its convenience or if we defay failing to perform in accordance with
the contract schedule and terms. Termination favenience provisions generally enable us to recomrour costs incurred or committed,
and settlement expenses and profit on the work tetegbprior to termination. Termination for defaptbvisions does not permit these
recoveries.

As a U.S. government contractor, we are reguio comply with applicable laws, regulations atahdards relating to our accounting
practices and are subject to periodic audits aniéwes. As part of any such audit or review, the \§§@ernment may review the adequacy of,
and our compliance with, our internal control sgséeand policies, including those relating to ourcpasing, property, estimating,
compensation and management information systensedan the results of its audits, the U.S. govenmimmey adjust our contractlated cos
and fees, including allocated indirect costs. Iditoh, if an audit or review uncovers any impropeillegal activity, we may be subject to ci
and criminal penalties and administrative sanctiomduding termination of our contracts, forfegunf profits, suspension of payments, fines
and suspension or prohibition from doing busineik the U.S. government. We could also suffer sexibarm to our reputation if allegations
of impropriety were made against us. In additiarder U.S. government purchasing regulations, sdneeirocosts may not be reimbursable or
allowed under our contracts. Further, as a U.Seguowent contractor, we are subject to an incredskaf investigations, criminal prosecutit
civil fraud, whistleblower lawsuits and other legations and liabilities as compared to privaté@emommercial companies.

If we fail to successfully commercialize or establish collaborative relationships to commercialize certain of our drug product candidates or if
any partner terminates or failsto perform its obligations under agreementswith us, potential revenues from commercialization of our
product candidates could be reduced, delayed or eliminated.
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Our business strategy is to increase the aatgt of our drug candidate portfolio. We belighis is best achieved by retaining full product
rights or through collaborative arrangements whihdt parties as appropriate. As needed, poteitial party alliances could include preclinical
development, clinical development, regulatory apptomarketing, sales and distribution of our dpugduct candidates.

Currently, we have established collaboratalationships with four pharmaceutical companies;ieo Mundipharma, and both Shionogi
Green Cross for development and commercializatfdGX-4208, forodesine HCI and peramivir, respeelyv The process of establishing and
implementing collaborative relationships is difficdime-consuming and involves significant uncamyg, including:

. our partners may seek to renegotiate or termithatie relationships with us due to unsatisfacidiyical results, a change in business
strategy, a change of control or other reas

. our contracts for collaborative arrangements majrex

. our partners may choose to pursue alternative tdopies, including those of our competitc

. we may have disputes with a partner that could teditigation or arbitration

. we do not have day to day control over the acésitif our partners and have limited control oveirtecisions

. our ability to generate future event paymentsraydlties from our partners depends upon theiitisi to establish the safety and
efficacy of our drug candidates, obtain regulatpprovals and achieve market acceptance of prodegtdoped from our drug
candidates

. we or our partners may fail to properly initiateaintain or defend our intellectual property righwhere applicable, or a party may
utilize our proprietary information in such a wayta invite litigation that could jeopardize or enotially invalidate our proprietary
information or expose us to potential liabili

. our partners may not devote sufficient capitalesources towards our product candidates;
. our partners may not comply with applicable goveentiregulatory requirement

If any partner fails to fulfill its responsiities in a timely manner, or at all, our commeligi@tion efforts related to that collaboration adul
be reduced, delayed or terminated, or it may bessary for us to assume responsibility for actigithat would otherwise have been the
responsibility of our partner. If we are unablesgtablish and maintain collaborative relationshipscceptable terms, we may have to delay or
discontinue further development of one or morewfmroduct candidates, undertake commercializaivities at our own expense or find
alternative sources of funding. Any delay in theelepment or commercialization of our compounds M@everely affect our business,
because if our compounds do not progress throughekielopment process or reach the market in dytimanner, or at all, we may not rece
additional future event payments and may neveriveq@oduct or royalty payments.

We are currently in dispute with Mundipharregarding the contractual obligations of the paniéh respect to certain costs related to the
manufacturing and development of forodesine HCkwithstanding, we do not believe that we are resjfime for any of the disputed amounts.
We are engaged in ongoing discussion to resolgedibpute. The maximum potential exposure to gstisnated to be approximately $5 mill
(approximately 3.4 million euro). Because of theljpninary nature of the discussions, no amounteHmeen accrued as of December 31, 2007.

We have not commercialized any products or technologies and our future revenue generation is uncertain.

We have not commercialized any products diretogies, and we may never be able to do so. Wemtly have no marketing capability
and no direct or third-party sales or distributaapabilities and may be unable to establish thapehilities for products we plan to
commercialize. In addition, our revenue from codleddive agreements is dependent upon the statmsrgfreclinical and clinical programs. If
we fail to advance these programs to the poinedidpable to enter into successful collaboratiareswill not receive any future event or other
collaborative payments.

Our ability to receive revenue from products @@mmercialize presents several risks, including:
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. we or our collaborators may fail to successfullynpete clinical trials sufficient to obtain FDA nkating approval

. many competitors are more experienced and hgwisantly more resources and their products cdaglanore cost effective or have a
better efficacy or tolerability profile than ourgguct candidate:

. we may fail to employ a comprehensive and effedtitellectual property strategy which could resnltiecreased commercial value
our company and our produc

. we may fail to employ a comprehensive and effectegulatory strategy which could result in a gedafailure in commercialization
of our products

. our ability to successfully commercialize our prottuare affected by the competitive landscape, lwbamnot be fully known at th
time;

. reimbursement is constantly changing which coutshtly affect usage of our products; ¢

. any future revenue directly from product salesildaepend on our ability to successfully compldieical studies, obtain regulatory
approvals, manufacture, market and commercialigeapproved drugs

If our development collaborations with third parties, such as our development partners and contract research organizations, fail, the
development of our drug product candidates will be delayed or stopped.

We rely heavily upon other parties for manypartant stages of our drug development progranstyding but not limited to:

. discovery of compounds that cause or enable bicddgéactions necessary for the progression oflisemse or disorder, called enzy
targets;

. licensing or design of enzyme inhibitors for deysi®nt as drug product candidat

. execution of some preclinical studies and-stage development for our compounds and produclidates;

. management of our clinical trials, including mediizenitoring and data manageme

. execution of additional toxicology studies that nieyrequired to obtain approval for our productdidates; ant

. manufacturing the starting materials and drug sutrst required to formulate our drug products aeditlug products to be used
both our clinical trials and toxicology studit

Our failure to engage in successful collabiorat at any one of these stages would greatly itnparcbusiness. If we do not license enzyme
targets or inhibitors from academic institutiondrom other biotechnology companies on acceptadtad, our product development efforts
would suffer. Similarly, if the contract researaiganizations that conduct our initial or late-stafieical trials, conduct our toxicology studies,
manufacture our starting materials, drug substandedrug products or manage our regulatory fundii@ached their obligations to us or
perform their services inconsistent with industgnslards and not in accordance with the requirgdlations, this would delay or prevent the
development of our product candidates.

If we lose our relationship with any one orrmof these parties, we could experience a signifidelay in both identifying another
comparable provider and then contracting for itsises. We may be unable to retain an alternatregigder on reasonable terms, if at all. Even
if we locate an alternative provider, it is likehat this provider may need additional time to cegpto our needs and may not provide the same
type or level of service as the original provideraddition, any provider that we retain will bebfect to current Good Laboratory Practices
(“cGLP"), current Good Manufacturing Practices (‘"dB”), or current Good Clinical Practices (“cGCP&nd similar foreign standards and we
do not have control over compliance with these l&gns by these providers. Consequently, if ti@setices and standards are not adhered to
by these providers, the development and commezat#in of our product candidates could be delayed.
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Our development of both intravenous and intramuscular dosing of peramivir for avian and seasonal influenza is subject to all disclosed drug
development and potential commercialization risks and numerous additional risks. Any potential revenue benefitsto us are highly
speculative.

Further development and potential commeratitim of peramivir is subject to all the risks amttertainties disclosed in our other risk
factors relating to drug development and commereitibn. In addition, potential commercializatiohpgramivir is subject to further risks,
including but not limited to the following:

. the injectable versions of peramivir are curngimlPhase Il clinical development and have bestetkin a limited number of humans
and may not be safe or effecti

. necessary government or other third party fundimgy@inical testing for further development of parair may not be available timel
at all, or in sufficient amount:

. the avian flu prevention or treatment concerns maymaterialize at all, or in the near futu
. advances in flu vaccines could substantially replaatential demand for an antiviral such as perajr
. any substantial demand for avian flu treatments owyr before peramivir can be adequately develapeltested in clinical trial:

. injectable forms of peramivir may not prove to loeepted by patients and physicians as a treatroesefisonal influenza comparec
the other currently marketed antiviral drugs, whiatuld limit revenue from nc-governmental entitie:

. numerous large and well-established pharmacéuatichbiotech companies will be competing to meetrharket demand for avian flu
drugs and vaccine

. regulatory authorities may not make needed accomatimts to accelerate the drug testing and apprrealess for peramivir; ar

. in the next few years, it is expected that a lichitimber of governmental entities will be the priynpotential customers for perami
and if we are not successful at marketing perantivihese entities for any reason, we will not ieesubstantial revenues from
stockpiling orders from these entitit

If any or all of these and other risk factocgur, we will not attain significant revenues oogs margins from peramivir and our stock price
will be adversely affected.

Because we have limited manufacturing experience, we depend on third-party manufacturersto manufacture our drug product candidates
and the materials for our product candidates. |f we cannot rely on third-party manufacturers, we will be required to incur significant costs
and potential delaysin finding new third-party manufacturers.

We have limited manufacturing experience amlgt @ small scale manufacturing facility. We cutthgmely upon thirdparty manufacturers
manufacture the materials required for our druglpod candidates and most of the preclinical andaai quantities of our product candidates.
We depend on these third-party manufacturers timpartheir obligations in a timely manner and ik@alance with applicable governmental
regulations. Our third-party manufacturers may emeer difficulties with meeting our requirementsgluding but not limited to problems
involving:
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. inconsistent production yield

. product liability claims

. difficulties in scaling production to commercialdavalidation sizes

. interruption of the delivery of materials required the manufacturing proces
. scheduling of plant time with other vendors or yrexted equipment failur

. potential catastrophes that could strike theirlitées;

. potential impurities in our drug substance or dougducts that could affect availability of proddiot our clinical trials or future
commercialization

. poor quality control and assurance or inadequategss controls; ar
. lack of compliance with regulations and specificas set forth by the FDA or other foreign regulptagencies

These contract manufacturers may not be abieainufacture the materials required or our draglpet candidates at a cost or in quantities
necessary to make them commercially viable. We lsds@ no control over whether third-party manufestsibreach their agreements with us
or whether they may terminate or decline to rengmre@ments with us. To date, our third party martufaecs have met our manufacturing
requirements, but they may not continue to do sathermore, changes in the manufacturing procepsomedure, including a change in the
location where the drug is manufactured or a chafigethirdparty manufacturer, may require prior review angdrapal in accordance with tl
FDA’s cGMPs, and comparable foreign requirementés Teview may be costly and tineensuming and could delay or prevent the launch
product. The FDA or similar foreign regulatory agixs at any time may also implement new standardshange their interpretation and
enforcement of existing standards for manufactpmekaging or testing of products. If we or our caat manufacturers are unable to comply,
we or they may be subject to regulatory actioni] eietions or penalties.

If we are unable to enter into agreements adttiitional manufacturers on commercially reasamédarims, or if there is poor manufacturing
performance on the part of our third party manufeats, we may not be able to complete developmigr enarket, our product candidates.

Our raw materials, drug substances, and droduets are manufactured by a limited group of §appand some at a single facility. If any
of these suppliers were unable to produce thesesjtthis could significantly impact our supply etigs for further preclinical testing and
clinical trials.

If we or our partners do not obtain and maintain governmental approvals for our products under development, we or our partnerswill not be
able to sell these potential products, which would significantly harm our business because we will receive no revenue.

We or our partners must obtain regulatory apalrbefore marketing or selling our future druggucts. If we or our partners are unable to
receive regulatory approval and do not market brose future drug products, we will never receasgy revenue from such product sales. In
United States, we or our partners must obtain FPppraval for each drug that we intend to commerz@liThe process of preparing for and
obtaining FDA approval may be lengthy and expensanel approval is never certain. Products disteitatbroad are also subject to foreign
government regulation. Neither the FDA nor foreiggulatory agencies have approved any of our dradyet candidates. Because of the risks
and uncertainties in biopharmaceutical developrmamntproduct candidates could take a significalathger time to gain regulatory approval
than we expect or may never gain
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approval. If the FDA delays regulatory approvabaf product candidates, our management’s credipdiir company’s value and our
operating results may suffer. Even if the FDA aefgn regulatory agencies approve a product catelittee approval may limit the indicated
uses for a product candidate and/or may requirepasketing studies.

The FDA regulates, among other things, theme&eeping and storage of data pertaining to giailgpharmaceutical products. We currently
store most of our preclinical research data, omiagl data and our manufacturing data at our itgc¥While we do store duplicate copies of
most of our clinical data offsite and a significaettion of our data is included in regular backopsur systems, we could lose important data
if our facility incurs damage. If we get approvalmarket our potential products, whether in thetéthStates or internationally, we will
continue to be subject to extensive regulatory irequents. These requirements are wide ranging axdrg, among other things:

. adverse drug experience reporting regulati

. product promotion

. product manufacturing, including good manufactugngctice requirements; a
. product changes or modificatior

Our failure to comply with existing or futuregulatory requirements, or our loss of, or charigepreviously obtained approvals, could h
a material adverse effect on our business becaeaseilvnot receive product or royalty revenues & ar our partners do not receive approvi
our products for marketing.

In June 1995, we notified the FDA that we sitted incorrect data for our Phase 1l studies oXB&! applied to the skin for CTCL and
psoriasis. In November 1995, the FDA issued adfishspectional Observations, Form FDA 483, whiitkd our failure to follow good clinic.
practices. The FDA also inspected us in June 1886 focus was on the two 1995 Phase Il dose-rargjirdjes of topical BCX-34 for the
treatment of CTCL and psoriasis. As a result ofitivestigation, the FDA issued us a Form FDA 48Bich cited our failure to follow good
clinical practices. We are no longer developing B&K however, as a consequence of these two igatisths, our ongoing and future clinical
studies may receive increased scrutiny, which nedgydthe regulatory review process.

We face intense competition, and if we are unable to compete effectively, the demand for our products, if any, may be reduced.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industi® highly competitive and subject to rapid amasgantial technological change. We face,
and will continue to face, competition in the lisérg of desirable disease targets, licensing afalgle drug product candidates, and
development and marketing of our product candidiates academic institutions, government agencesearch institutions and biotechnology
and pharmaceutical companies. Competition mayaise from, among other things:

. other drug development technologi

. methods of preventing or reducing the incidencdisdase, including vaccines; a

. new small molecule or other classes of therapagtnts

Developments by others may render our product daels or technologies obsolete or noncompeti

We and our partners are performing researabr @eveloping products for the treatment of sewdismrders including T-cell mediated
disorders (T-cell cancers, transplant rejectionyipsis and other autoimmune indications), oncolaguenza, and hepatitis C. We expect to
encounter significant competition for any of thephaceutical products we plan to develop. Compahgtscomplete clinical trials, obtain
required regulatory
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approvals and commence commercial sales of thedtymts before their competitors may achieve a Sigmit competitive advantage. Such is
the case with Eisai's Targretin for CTCL and therent neuraminidase inhibitors marketed by GlaxadtStiline and Roche for influenza. In
addition, several pharmaceutical and biotechnofagys, including major pharmaceutical companies spelcialized structure-based drug
design companies, have announced efforts in thi diestructurebased drug design and in the fields of PNP, infhaghepatitis C, and in ott
therapeutic areas where we have discovery effoigeiog. If one or more of our competitors’ produsiprograms are successful, the market
for our products may be reduced or eliminated.

Compared to us, many of our competitors artdrgi@l competitors have substantially greater:
. capital resource

. research and development resources, including peesand technology

. regulatory experienct

. preclinical study and clinical testing experien

. manufacturing and marketing experience;

. production facilities

Any of these competitive factors could reddeenand for our products.

If we fail to adequately protect or enforce our intellectual property rights or securerights to patents of others, the value of those rights would
diminish.

Our success will depend in part on our abdityl the abilities of our partners to obtain, protnd enforce viable intellectual property rights
including but not limited to trade name, trade mankl patent protection for our company and its petel methods, processes and other
technologies we may license or develop, to preseuveérade secrets, and to operate without infrigghe proprietary rights of third parties
both domestically and abroad. The patent positfdsiaiechnology and pharmaceutical companies iegaly highly uncertain, involves
complex legal and factual questions and has recbetn the subject of much litigation. Neither thated States Patent and Trademark Office
(“USPTO"), the Patent Cooperation Treaty officesr, the courts of the United States and other jigigzhs have consistent policies nor
predictable rulings regarding the breadth of cla@thewed or the degree of protection afforded undeny biotechnology and pharmaceutical
patents. The validity, scope, enforceability anthowercial value of these rights, therefore, is higiicertain.

Our success depends in part on avoiding thiegement of other parties’ patents and otherdlietéual property rights as well as avoiding
the breach of any licenses relating to our tectgiekand products. In the U.S., patent applicatibed in recent years are confidential for
18 months, while older applications are not puldishntil the patent issues. As a result, avoidiatgmt infringement may be difficult and we
may inadvertently infringe third-party patents ooprietary rights. These third parties could brat@ms against us, our partners or our
licensors that even if resolved in our favor, cocddise us to incur substantial expenses and,dfvex$ against us, could additionally cause L
pay substantial damages. Further, if a patentigéinent suit were brought against us, our partressir licensors, we or they could be forced
to stop or delay research, development, manufagfuni sales of any infringing product in the coyrdr countries covered by the patent we
infringe, unless we can obtain a license from thept holder. Such a license may not be availablacoeptable terms, or at all, particularly if
the third party is developing or marketing a pradrampetitive with the infringing product. Evermi, our partners or our licensors were able
to obtain a license, the rights may be nonexclysitech would give our competitors access to thmesitellectual property.

If we or our partners are unable or fail tequiately, initiate, protect, defend or enforce iatgllectual property rights in any area of
commercial interest or in any part of the world weheve wish to seek regulatory approval for our piaid, methods, processes and other
technologies, the value of the drug product carndilt
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produce revenue would diminish. Additionally, ifrquroducts, methods, processes, and other techieslogour commercial use of such
products, processes, and other technologies, imguxlt not limited to any tradename, trademarkanmercial strategy infringe the
proprietary rights of other parties, we could insubstantial costs. The USPTO and the patent sfi€®ther jurisdictions have issued to us a
number of patents for our various inventions anchaee in-licensed several patents from varioustutgins. We have filed additional patent
applications and provisional patent applicationthwlie USPTO. We have filed a number of correspuétireign patent applications and
intend to file additional foreign and U.S. patepplcations, as appropriate. We have also filethgeitrademark and tradename applications
worldwide. We cannot assure you as to:

. the degree and range of protection any patentsaffidrd against competitors with similar produc
. if and when patents will issu

. if patents do issue we can not be sure that Wéwiable to adequately defend such patents amdh&hor not we will be able to
adequately enforce such patents

. whether or not others will obtain patents claiméspects similar to those covered by our patenicgifuins.

If the USPTO or other foreign patent officenofuls patents issued to others or if the USPTOtgnaatent applications filed by others, we
may have to:

. obtain licenses or redesign our products or prasegsavoid infringemen
. stop using the subject matter claimed in thosenpsiter
. pay damage:

We may initiate, or others may bring agairsstlitigation or administrative proceedings relatedtellectual property rights, including
proceedings before the USPTO or other foreign patéice. Any judgment adverse to us in any litigator other proceeding arising in
connection with a patent or patent application daunhterially and adversely affect our businessrfaial condition and results of operations
addition, the costs of any such proceeding mayubstantial whether or not we are successful.

Our success is also dependent upon the diiltsyledge and experience, none of which is pabdataf our scientific and technical
personnel. To help protect our rights, we requireraployees, consultants, advisors and partneesiter into confidentiality agreements that
prohibit the disclosure of confidential informatitmanyone outside of our company and require aéscke and assignment to us of their ideas,
developments, discoveries and inventions. Theseeaggnts may not provide adequate protection fotrade secrets, know-how or other
proprietary information in the event of any unauthed use or disclosure or the lawful developmentthers of such information, and if any
our proprietary information is disclosed, our besie will suffer because our revenues depend upoability to license or commercialize our
product candidates and any such events would ggnify impair the value of such product candidates

Thereisa substantial risk of product liability claimsin our business. |f we are unable to obtain sufficient insurance, a product liability claim
against us could adversely affect our business.

We face an inherent risk of product liabikyposure related to the testing of our product icktes in human clinical trials and will face
even greater risks upon any commercialization bgfumur product candidates. We have product ligbitisurance covering our clinical trials
the amount of $11 million. Clinical trial and prartdiability insurance is becoming increasingly erpive. As a result, we may be unable to
obtain sufficient insurance or increase our existioverage at a reasonable cost to protect ussidasses that could have a material adverse
effect on our business. An individual may bringraduct liability claim against us if one of our pikects or product candidates causes, or is
claimed to have caused, an injury or is found talguitable for consumer use. Any product liabititgim brought against us, with or without
merit, could result in:
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. liabilities that substantially exceed our produability insurance, which we would then be requitegbay from other sources,
available;

. an increase of our product liability insurance sasethe inability to maintain insurance coveragéhe future on acceptable terms, c
all;

. withdrawal of clinical trial volunteers or patien

. damage to our reputation and the reputation opoaducts, resulting in lower sale
. regulatory investigations that could require costiyalls or product modification

. litigation costs; ant

. the diversion of managem(s attention from managing our busine

If our facility incurs damage or power islost for a significant length of time, our business will suffer.

We currently store numerous clinical and ditylsamples at our facility that could be damagemlr facility incurred physical damage or in
the event of an extended power failure. We havé&ulgapower systems in addition to backup generdtonsaintain power to all critical
functions, but any loss of these samples couldtréssignificant delays in our drug developmenbgess.

In addition, we currently store most of ouegmical and clinical data at our facility. Dupi® copies of most critical data are stored o#-sit
in a bank vault. Any significant degradation ofdeé of our computer systems could cause us taimately calculate or lose our data. Loss of
data could result in significant delays in our ddé&yelopment process and any system failure caareh four business and operations.

If we fail to retain our existing key personnel or fail to attract and retain additional key personnel, the development of our drug product
candidates and the expansion of our businesswill be delayed or stopped.

We are highly dependent upon our senior manageand scientific team, the loss of whose sesvisight impede the achievement of our
development and commercial objectives. Competiidorkey personnel with the experience that we nexjisi intense and is expected to
continue to increase. Our inability to attract aethin the required number of skilled and expegenmanagement, operational and scientific
personnel, will harm our business because we @iy these personnel for many critical functionswf business.

Our stock priceislikely to be highly volatile and the value of your investment could decline significantly.

The market prices for securities of biotecligglcompanies in general have been highly volatile may continue to be highly volatile in
future. Moreover, our stock price has fluctuatetjfrently, and these fluctuations are often notedl&o our financial results. For the twelve
months ended December 31, 2007, the 52-week rdrthe market price of our stock was from $5.68 18.48 per share. The following
factors, in addition to other risk factors desadilire this section, may have a significant impacttoamarket price of our common stock:

. announcements of technological innovations or nevdycts by us or our competito
. developments or disputes concerning patents orrigtapy rights;
. additional dilution through sales of our commorcg&tor other derivative securitie

. status of new or existing licensing or collaboratagreements and government contre
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. announcements relating to the status of our progy

. we or our partners achieving or failing to achieeeelopment milestone

. publicity regarding actual or potential medicaluis relating to products under development byrusus competitors
. publicity regarding certain public health concefmswhich we are or may be developing treatme

. regulatory developments in both the United Statesfareign countries

. public concern as to the safety of pharmaceuticadyrcts;

. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;

. changes in financial estimates or recommendatigreeburities analyst:

. changes in the structure of healthcare paymenessstincluding developments in price control lesish;

. announcements by us or our competitors of sigmfiegquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint veas$ or capital commitment
. additions or departures of key personnel or memdsieosir board of director:

. purchases or sales of substantial amounts of ook $ly existing stockholders, including officersdirectors;

. economic and other external factors or other désagir crises; an

. perioc-to-period fluctuations in our financial resul

If, because of our use of hazardous materials, we violate any environmental controls or regulations that apply to such materials, we may
incur substantial costs and expensesin our remediation efforts.

Our research and development involves therabbedl use of hazardous materials, chemicals andwsradioactive compounds. We are
subject to federal, state and local laws and reigums governing the use, storage, handling andodedpof these materials and some waste
products. Accidental contamination or injury frone$e materials could occur. In the event of andactj we could be liable for any damages
that result and any liabilities could exceed osorgces. Compliance with environmental laws andleggpns could require us to incur
substantial unexpected costs, which would matgraid adversely affect our results of operations.

Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This discussion contains forward-looking staets, which are subject to risks and uncertainfibese forward-looking statements can
generally be identified by the use of words suctnaay,” “will,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “articipates,” “expects,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “potential,” “hope,” the negative oféhe words or similar expressions. Statements teirihe our future plans, strategies,
intentions, expectations, objectives, goals or pects are also forward-looking statements. Disomsstontaining these forward-looking
statements are principally contained in “Busines®i “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fiir€ondition and Results of
Operations”, as well as any amendments we makss®etsections in filings with the SEC. These fodsaoking statements include, but are
not limited to, statements about:

. the initiation, timing, progress and results of preclinical and clinical trials, research and depment programs
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. the further preclinical or clinical development asammercialization of our product candidal
. the implementation of our business model, stratplgins for our business, product candidates arithtdogy;

. our ability to establish and maintain collaborasiavith biotechnology or pharmaceutical companiesgovernmental agencies
other third parties

. the scope of protection we are able to establighmaintain for intellectual property rights camgrour product candidates and
technology;

. our ability to operate our business without infiimgythe intellectual property rights of othe

. estimates of our expenses, future revenues, capgalrements and our needs for additional finagic
. the timing or likelihood of regulatory filings aragpprovals

. our negotiations with the FDA for a special protoassessmen

. our financial performance; ar

. competitive companies, technologies and our ingu

These statements reflect our current viewh vaspect to future events and are based on assmspind subject to risks and uncertainties
which may cause our actual results, performan@elbievements to be materially different from antyfe results, performances or
achievements expressed or implied by the forwaoltitey statements. Given these uncertainties, youldmot place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements. We discuss many ofdhiesks in greater detail in “Risk Factors.” Alsbese forward-looking statements represent
our estimates and assumptions only as of the dakésadocument.

You should read this discussion completelyaitd the understanding that our actual future Itssnay be materially different from what
we expect. We may not update these forward-looktatements, even though our situation may chanteifuture. We qualify all of our
forward-looking statements by these cautionarestants.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our administrative offices and principal resbefacilities are located in 50,150 square fedea$ed space in Riverchase Industrial/Researct
Park in Birmingham, Alabama. The lease runs thraligie 30, 2015 with an option to renew the leasaricadditional five years at current
market rates. In addition, we currently lease 5.8@%are feet of office space in Cary, North Camtinrough February 28, 2010 for our clinical
and regulatory operation. We believe that our fied are adequate for our current operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ GlobalkétSMunder the symbol BCRX. The following table setdldhe low and high sales
prices of our common stock as reported by NASDAQbW@l MarketSM for each quarter in 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
Low High Low High
First quarte! $7.8C $12.5( $15.8( $23.0(
Second quarte 6.57 10.0¢ 10.8¢ 18.11
Third quartel 7.2C 13.1¢ 8.2C 14.9¢
Fourth quarte 5.6¢ 8.3¢ 10.8( 12.8¢

The last sale price of the common stock on FebrB@rn2008 as reported by NASDAQ Global Mark®ivas $3.98 per share.

Holders

As of February 20, 2008, there were approximatély Rolders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends and do not patieipaying cash dividends in the foreseeabledutur
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Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph is not “soliciting matefiéd,not deemed filed with the SEC and is not tdramrporated by reference in any filing by
us under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended‘8hcurities Act”), or the Exchange Act, whethead®a before or after the date hereof and

irrespective of any general incorporation languiageny such filing. The stock price performancevshon the graph is not necessarily

indicative of future price performance.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH FOR BIOCRYST
Indexed Comparison Since 2002
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12/31/02 at 12/31/03 at 12/31/04 at 12/31/05 at 12/31/06 at 12/31/07
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In $100.0( $713.5¢ $602.0¢ $1,744.7! $1,204.1 $643.7¢
The NASDAQ Stock Marke 100.0( 149.5: 162.7: 166.1¢ 182.57 197.9¢
NASDAQ Pharmaceutical Stoc 100.0( 146.5¢ 156.1: 171.9: 168.2¢ 176.9"

The above graph measures the change in a $10Grmemisin the Company’s common stock based ondisirogy price of $0.96 on
December 31, 2002 and its year-end closing priegetifter. The Company’s relative performance ia twmmpared with the CRSP Total

Return Indexes for the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S Wl IASDAQ Pharmaceutical Stocks.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We did not repurchase any of our equity securdigsng the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides the specified inforinatas of December 31, 2007.

(a) Number of securitie: (b) Weighted-average (c) Number of securitie:

to be issued upon exercise price of  remaining available for
exercise of outstanding  outstanding stock  future issuance under
stock option awards, option awards, equity compensation
restricted stock awards restricted stock plans (excluding
warrants and awards, securities reflected in
Plan Category rights warrants and rights column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrgl
Stock Option Awards (1 5,023,25! $ 9.2(C 592,02°
Restricted Stock Awards (. 50,00( — —
Stock Purchase Plan ( — — 64,75¢
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtgers
Stock Option Inducement Grant { 110,00( $ 8.2(C —
Restricted Stock Awards (¢ 10,00(¢ — —
Total 5,193,25! $ 9.07 656,78!

(1) Consists of awards granted under the Stock InceiRlan.

(2) Consists of shares granted under the Empl6yeek Purchase Plan. The number of shares thabm#sued pursuant to the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan during a given period and thehpse price of such shares cannot be determingdiviance of such purchas

(3) Consists of shares granted by the Board of Dirsedtrecruit a new employee to a key position witihie Company

Notes to (1-(3)-The plans noted in this table are describedenfigly in Note 8 of the Financial Statements ut#d in Item 8 of this Annual
Report.
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Statement of Operations Data:

Total revenue

Research and development exper
Net loss

Amounts per common shai
Basic and diluted net loss per sh

Weighted average shares outstanc

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and secur
Total asset

Long-term deferred revent
Accumulated defici

Total stockholder equity

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31
(In thousands, except per share date

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$ 71,23¢ $ 6,212 $ 152 $ 337 $ 652
94,05: 47,08¢ 23,64 18,86¢ 11,52
(29,055 (43,618 (26,099 (21,109 (12,700
$ (0.89 $ (150 $ (1.0 $ (100 $ (72
32,77 29,14 25,721 21,16¢ 17,70:
December 31,
(In thousands)
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$ 85,00¢ $ 46,23¢ $ 59,98¢ $ 28,70 $ 25,73.
142,71 68,48¢ 99,24¢ 32,46¢ 30,09¢
49,69 36,59¢ 29,42¢ 30C 30C
(224,53f) (195,487 (151,867 (125,769 (104,66()
64,90¢ 21,15¢ 58,44( 29,33¢ 28,441
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaatestnents of a forward-looking nature relating ttufie events or the future financial
performance of BioCryst. Such statements are amgliptions and the actual events or results mafedihaterially from the results discuss
in the forward-looking statements. Factors thatldozause or contribute to such differences incltidese discussed below as well as those
discussed in other filings made by BioCryst with 8ecurities and Exchange Commission.

The following Management’s Discussion and Analf$itb&A”) is intended to help the reader understandr results of operations and
financial condition. MD&A is provided as a supplaem#, and should be read in conjunction with, audited Financial Statements and
accompanying notes to the financial statementsather disclosures included in this Annual ReporfFanm 10-K (including the disclosures
under “ltem 1A. Risk Factors”).

Overview
2007 Corporate Highlights

Forodesine HCI

Following the completion of a Phase I/l ctial trial of forodesine HCI in patients with reftay CTCL, in October 2007 we initiated a
planned pivotal trial with an oral formulation afrbdesine HCI for treatment of patients with CTQhis trial is being conducted under an SPA
agreement negotiated with the FDA and will serva assis for a new drug application to the FDA gghre oral formulations in patients with
relapsed CTCL. In February 2007, we announcedtttta€ommittee for Orphan Medicinal Products of Hueopean Medicines Agency had
granted orphan drug designation to forodesine laCttfe treatment of CTCL.

At the December 2007 meeting of the Americani&y of Hematology (“ASH”) Madeline Duvic, M.DQeputy Chair, Dermatology, The
University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Centespreged interim data from the Phase I/l clinicabst of oral forodesine HCI in the
treatment of subjects with refractory CTCL. The mleresponse rate for these subjects was 39%ydimay 2 subjects with complete response
(6%) and 12 subjects with partial response (33%gs€ data indicated that in addition to a goodggi®file, forodesine HCl demonstrated
clinical activity as a single oral agent in patgentth advanced refractory CTCL.

In January 2007, we initiated a Phase llb imediter, open-label, non-randomized repeat-dosstration study to evaluate an intravenous
treatment of forodesine HCI followed by an orabtreent of forodesine HCI in patients with relapsedefractory TALL. This study was beir
conducted under an SPA negotiated with the FDAveasl designed to determine the rate of completesssam achieved with forodesine HCI.
In March 2007, we announced that as a result tdlzility issue with the i.v. formulation, that weeve voluntarily placing this Phase Ilb clinii
trial on hold pending internal review and discussiwith the our partner, Mundipharma. In Decemlf¥}72 we announced the formal
termination of this study.

Peramivir

In January 2007, we announced that HHS haddrdahe Company a $102.6 million, four-year cattfar the advanced development of
peramivir. In January 2008, we announced the dewedmt cost of our peramivir program to product appt would cost in excess of the
$102.6 million contract since the development ftarperamivir has changed from that outlined in dhiginal proposal to HHS. HHS has
indicated that it will fund certain elements of @avised program, including the ongoing Phaserlistudy evaluating peramivir in hospitalized
subjects, the planning and conduct of the planeb® Il study of i.m. peramivir in subjects witrcamplicated influenza and the
manufacturing and toxicology components of the paog Each of these elements has specific HHS figndimits and any costs outside the
approved amounts by HHS may be the responsibilitied Company. The original contract of $102.6 imilland the four year term remain
unchanged.
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In addition to the contract with HHS, in Fedary1 2007, we established a collaborative relatigmalith Shionogi for the development and
commercialization of peramivir in Japan. This agneat resulted in an upfront payment of $14 millionDecember 2007, we received a $7
milestone payment from Shionogi for their initiatiof a Phase Il clinical trial with i.v. peramivir.

Intramuscular peramivitn September 2007, we announced the results dPbase 1l study with i.m. peramivir injection. Thady was a
randomized, double-blind placebo-controlled clihicial designed to test whether peramivir, whemadstered acutely in high doses
intramuscularly, could reduce the duration of syonmd during seasonal influenza. During the study, gients who had a positive rapid
antigen test indicating influenza were randomizeteteive i.m. injections of either placebo or ohévo dose levels of peramivir (150mg and
300mg) as a single dose administered within 48hofisymptom onset. The primary endpoint of thestuas the time to alleviation of
symptoms in the patients confirmed with influenziection, of which there were 313. The results¢atid that in the 313 subjects, a single
dose of peramivir demonstrated a treatment impr@verover placebo, but the improvement was notssiedily significant. Following the
release of these results, we completed additiamelyais of the clinical data and performed a priglary analysis of the virologic data from this
trial. We also conducted further pharmacokineti€)(Btudies in healthy volunteers.

Preliminary analysis of the virologic datarfrahis Phase Il i.m. trial indicated that i.m. panair demonstrated statistically significant
reductions in influenza virus shedding in bothaetreatment groups when compared to placebo,guéthter reductions in the 300mg group.
Additionally, PK studies have been completed, whitdicate that needle length impacts adequate anslistent systemic exposure to i.m.
peramivir. Based on these clinical results andlogiz data, we believe that a single i.m. doseQffrBg peramivir can be a potentially clinica
effective dose. However, given the dose-responsergbd between the 150mg and 300mg doses in thee Phaial, we believe it is prudent to
evaluate whether doses higher than 300mg providitiackl efficacy. As a result, we are planningrtitiate a Phase Il clinical trial that will
evaluate the 300mg dose and a higher dose of pérdater this year.

In January, 2008 we announced that we wouldoatinue to pursue the peramivir i.m. Phaseillbfal program in the current flu season
and would work toward the initiation of a Phaselihical trial later this year that would evalu@&00mg dose and a higher dose of peramivir
compared to placebo. The decision to terminatétieese 11l program was made by us after furtheruatidn of the Phase |l study data,
additional pk studies, the potential availabilifyam alternative formulation and additional diséass with FDA and HHS. At the time of
termination of the program we had enrolled 82 sttbjen the Northern Hemisphere. We plan to gathdranalyze the data from these enrolled
subjects to assist in the design of future studies.

Intravenous peramiviin July 2007, we announced the initiation of a Rhaslinical trial of i.v. peramivir to comparedtefficacy and
safety of i.v. peramivir to orally administered tamivir in patients who require hospitalizationedio acute influenza. This trial was initiatec
the Southern Hemisphere and is currently ongoirtgerNorthern Hemisphere.

BCX-4208/R3421

During the third quarter of 2007, we annountted Roche had initiated a Phase lla clinical tosevaluate oral doses of BCX-4208/R3421
in patients with moderate to severe plaque psartiasi
Other Corporate Events-Completion of $65.3 million financing

In August, we completed a $65.3 million prev@lacement financing with a group of existing ktholders. The offering was composed of
approximately 8.3 million shares of our common kfas well as warrants to purchase an additionalcgimately 3.2 million shares.
Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2006

Collaborative and other research and developmewenue was $71.2 million for the year compaee$6.2 million for 2006. The increase
2007 was primarily due to revenue from HHS reldtedur contract for the development of peramiviratdition, we received a $7.0 million
milestone payment from Shionogi in December 2007Heir initiation of a Phase Il clinical trial artdere was an increase of $3.1 million in
amortization of deferred revenue compared to 2006he continuing amortization of the upfront paynsefinom the Roche, Shionogi and
Mundipharma agreements. These increases in reweergepartially offset by a decrease of $1.5 milliomeimbursement from Mundipharma
for our clinical trial costs compared to 2006.
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Research and development expenses for 200¥ $@€r.1 million, a 100.0% increase from 2006 expsmd $47.1 million, primarily
attributable to the clinical and manufacturing easttour expanded peramivir and forodesine HCI @ot, increases in personnel and related
costs to support the advanced development of @alipe, and increases in consulting and toxicoldggluded in R&D expenses for 2007 is
approximately $2.3 million of pre-contract costeedily related to the Phase 2 trials for both theand i.m. peramivir products. These costs
were incurred during 2006 in anticipation of a cant award from HHS and were required to meet $iely schedule of the proposed
contract. In accordance with the provisions of Fad&cquisition Regulation 31.205-32, the costsenviacluded in the Company’s request for
proposal and were eligible for reimbursement froriS The $2.3 million of costs incurred prior to tentract award date were deferred and
included in other current assets on the Compahglance sheet at December 31, 2006. In theffiestter of 2007, the $2.3 million in costs w
billed and expensed. Concurrently, revenue waggrézed for these costs plus the applicable fixed fe

General and administrative expenses for 2082 \89.5 million, an increase of 55.7% over the@&@pense of $6.1 million, primarily due
to additional compensation, which also includedranease of $1.2 million non-cash share-based cosgimn charge related to Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(revised 20Bdare Based PaymefiStatement No. 123R"). In addition, there was meréase in
professional fees, including legal, which were ipdlyt offset by an increase in costs allocated &R

Interest income for 2007 was $3.2 million camrga to $3.4 million in 2006.

The net loss for the year ended December @17 vas $29.1 million, or $0.89 per share, comp&veanet loss of $43.6 million, or $1.50
per share in 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2005

Collaborative and other research and developmeenue was $6.2 million for the year compacefitt.2 million for 2005. The increase for
2006 was primarily due to amounts earned purswaotit collaboration agreements with MundipharmaRodhe, plus the continuing
amortization of the upfront payments from thosesagrents.

Research and development expenses for 2006$4&r.1 million, a 98.7% increase from 2005 expeid&23.7 million, primarily
attributable to the clinical and manufacturing sasttour expanded peramivir and forodesine HCI @, a $1.5 million non-cash shdrase:
compensation charge related to Statement No. lib8Reases in personnel and related costs to sugiEodinical development of our pipeline,
and increases in consulting and toxicology.

General and administrative expenses for 208@$6.1 million, an increase of 64.9% over the2&dpense of $3.7 million, primarily due
to the $1.8 million non-cash shabased compensation charge related to Statemert28&, an increase in professional fees, and araserir
personnel related expenses. These increases wérdlyaffset by an increase in costs allocatedesearch and development.

Interest income for 2006 was $3.4 million,G® A% increase compared to $1.1 million in 2005s Tircrease was due to a higher average
cash balance during 2006 and a more favorableeisiteate environment as compared to 2005.

The net loss for the year ended December @16 2vas $43.6 million, or $1.50 per share, compé&reaxinet loss of $26.1 million, or $1.01
per share in 2005.
Changes in Financial Condition since December 31026

Since our most recent fiscal year end, tharetbeen several factors that have had an impamtiofinancial condition. Effective in
January 2007, we received the contract from HHSHerdevelopment of peramivir which has had a §igant impact on our financial
condition. Our combined billed and unbilled recéils related to this contract as of December 3Q7 2@ere approximately $37 million. As
our costs for the development of
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peramivir and our other programs have increasedave also had a corresponding increase in oubpesyand accrued expenses.

With the payments received from our collabwmbgreements existing at December 31, 2006, entract with HHS and the addition of the
Shionogi collaboration announced in March 2007 haree received approximately $51.7 million durin20The $14.0 million upfront
payment from Shionogi in March has been deferrddchvhas been the major cause of the increasefénrdd revenue on our balance sheet.

Lastly, with the private placement announgedigust 2007, our cash and stockholder’s equityeiased by $65.3 million related to this
transaction.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash expenditures have exceeded revenuesain@gception. Our operations have principallymé&esded through public offerings and
private placements of equity and debt securitiescash from collaborative and other research amdldpment agreements, including
government contracts, and to a lesser extent sttefer example, during 2007, we received cash froltaborative and other research and
development agreements and government contradtsailly Shionogi, Mundipharma and HHS) of approxteig $51.7 million and on
August 9, 2007 we announced the closing of a $68l8n private placement of common stock to certexisting stockholders, which
increased our outstanding common stock by appraeim8.3 million shares and our fully-diluted oatistiing shares by an additional
approximately 3.2 million shares pursuant to wals@xercisable at $10.25 per share. As of DeceBibe2007, we have approximately
$39.1 million due from our collaborators, primarifHS. Other sources of funding have included thiedong:

. other collaborative and other research and devetopregreement:
. government grants and contrac

. equipment lease financin

. facility leases

. research grants; ai

. interest income

In addition, we have attempted to containasid reduce cash flow requirements by rentingificequipment and facilities, contracting
with other parties to conduct certain researchdmalopment and using consultants. We expect to iadditional expenses, potentially
resulting in significant losses, as we continupucsue our research and development activitiesrtaie additional preclinical studies and
clinical trials of compounds which have been or rhaydiscovered and as we increase the manufactofiogr compounds for clinical trials
and for the continuation of the validation procé¥& also expect to incur substantial expensesecttatthe filing, prosecution, maintenance,
defense and enforcement of patent and other inteliéproperty claims and additional regulatoryts@s our clinical products advance thro
later stages of development.

We invest our excess cash principally in Wn@rketable securities from a diversified portfalfanstitutions with strong credit ratings anc
U.S. government and agency bills and notes, arubbgy, limit the amount of credit exposure at ame institution. These investments are
generally not collateralized and mature within tyears. We have not realized any losses from suasiments.

On August 7, 2007, we amended our lease focouent Birmingham facilities, consisting of 58QLsquare feet, through June 30, 2015. We
have an option to renew the lease for an additifimalyears at the current market rate in effecone 30, 2015. The lease requires us to pay
monthly rent currently at $39,100 per month in OY7 and escalating annually to a minimum of $48 8er month in the final year, plus our
pro rata share of
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operating expenses and real estate taxes in eatbase year amounts. In addition, the lease amentprovides an allowance of $300,000
our use in making certain improvements to the psemi

In August 2006, we opened an office in CargrtN Carolina for the establishment of our cliniaald regulatory operation. We currently
have 5,565 square feet under lease through Feb28a010. This lease requires us to pay $7,65Mpath and escalates annually to $8,118
per month in the final year.

During 2007, we incurred capital costs of amately $3.3 million. Included in 2007 capitalst® were amounts related to a renovation of
our facility to build additional laboratory spadéhe cost of this expansion will be partially fundgda $300,000 tenant allowance in our 2007
lease amendment.

At December 31, 2007, we had long-term opegdtase obligations, which provide for aggregaitémmum payments of $619,346 in 2008,
$623,894 in 2009 and $554,287 in 2010. These diigainclude the future rental of our operatingilfaes.

We plan to finance our needs principally frtra following:

. payments under our contract with HF

. our existing capital resources and interest eaometthat capital

. payments under collaborative and licensing agreésneith corporate partners; a
. lease or loan financing and future public or prviihancing.

In March 2007, we announced a collaborativeagent with Shionogi for rights to peramivir irpda. This agreement required an upfront
payment of $14 million that was received in ApI(Z. In December 2007, we received a $7 milliorestdne payment from Shionogi for th
initiation of a Phase Il clinical trial with i.v.gpamivir.

In January 2007, we announced that HHS haddrdahe Company a $102.6 million, four-year cattfar the advanced development of
peramivir. The contract is a standard cost plusdifee contract, which we expect will continue &vé a significant positive impact on our
financial position and cash flow. We bill our inced costs to HHS on a monthly basis. Any significdelays in payment, rejection of
significant costs by HHS or cancellation of thiswtract by HHS would have a significant negativesefffon our financial position. In
January 2008, we announced that the developmetst cbsur peramivir program to anticipated prodagproval would cost in excess of the
$102.6 million contract since the development ftarperamivir had changed from that outlined in ¢higinal proposal to HHS. HHS has
indicated that they will fund certain elements af cevised program, including the ongoing Phase listudy evaluating peramivir in
hospitalized subjects, the planning and conduth@fiplanned Phase Il study of i.m. peramivir arerttanufacturing and toxicology
components of the program. Each of these elemastspecific HHS funding limits and any costs owshie approved amounts by HHS may
be the responsibility of the Company. The origicahtract of $102.6 million and the four year teemain unchanged.

In February 2006, we licensed forodesine Wundipharma for the development and commercitidinaof this drug in Europe, Asia and
Australasia. In addition to the upfront paymen$0 million, which was received in February 2006idipharma is paying 50% of the clini
development costs we are incurring for forodesi# ¢h existing and planned clinical trials, butitiportion shall not exceed $10 million. In
addition, Mundipharma will conduct additional ctal trials at their own cost up to a maximum of $iilion. The agreement also provides for
future event payments and royalties to be made bydipharma upon the achievement of certain cliniegjulatory and sales events. In
January 2007, we initiated our pivotal study withodesine HCI in T-cell leukemia patients undeS&#A negotiated with the FDA, which
triggered a $5 million event payment from Mundiphar Subsequently, in March 2007, the Company matiigion to put this trial on
voluntary hold to investigate particulates thatevErund in some batches of i.v. formulation. In Baber 2007, we announced the termination
of our development in T-ALL with forodesine HCI. July 2007, we
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announced the Company had received an SPA foradgbitrial of forodesine HCI in CTCL patients. Ttr@l is a multicenter, multinational,
open-label, single-arm, repeat dose pivotal triaicly began enrollment during October 2007.

The collaboration with Roche for the worldwidevelopment and commercialization of BCX-4208 wvBmber 2005 provided an upfront
payment of $30 million, which was received in 20B@&che has taken over the development and is pajiicgsts associated with this progr:
The agreement also provides for future event paysreand royalties to be made by Roche upon the aeimient of certain clinical, regulatory
and sales events.

For the year, our cash, cash equivalents ar#tatable securities balance has increased fron2 $d#lion as of December 31, 2006 to
$85.0 million as of December 31, 2007, primarilyda cash received from collaborations and the368llion received from the private
placement of common stock and warrants in AuguB72@hich were offset by the monthly cash burn froperations. As a result of these
items and the reimbursement from our contract WittS, our net cash burn rate for 2007 was approxtyp&2.2 million per month. We
caution that our revenues, our expenses and ohrfloaes will vary significantly from quarter to quer throughout 2008 due to the nature of
the trials in influenza and the reimbursement fitdhiS. We are projecting our 2008 net cash use ®25e$30 million, partially due to the
reduction of our receivable balance from HHS atdbaloer 31, 2007. This burn rate could vary signifisadepending on the timing of
Company expenses and the related reimbursementHiegh

As our clinical programs continue to prograsd patient enroliment increases, our costs willdase. Our current and planned clinical trials
plus the related development, manufacturing, regofapproval process requirements and additioaedgnnel resources and testing required
for the continuing development of our drug candédawill consume significant capital resources ailtimcrease our expenses. Our expenses,
revenues and burn rate could vary significantlyeshefing on many factors, including our ability tiseaadditional capital, the development
progress of our collaborative agreements for oug dandidates, the amount and timing of fundingeeeive from HHS for peramivir, the
amount of funding or assistance, if any, we rec&iom other governmental agencies or other newnpaships with third parties for the
development of our drug candidates, the progredsesults of our current and proposed clinicaldriar our most advanced drug products, the
progress made in the manufacturing of our leadyetsdand the progression of our other programs.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $85.0 millionash, cash equivalents and marketable secuynittgsh included the $65.3 million from
the private placement of unregistered common samckwarrants to certain existing stockholders, Witiosed on August 9, 2007. With our
currently available funds and the amounts to beived from HHS, Shionogi and our other collaborstere believe these resources will be
sufficient to fund our operations for at least tiext twelve months. However, this is a forward ogkstatement, and there may be changes
would consume available resources significantlytesuch time.

Our long-term capital requirements and thegadey of our available funds will depend upon méagtors, including:
. our ability to perform under the contract with Hid&d receive reimburseme

. the progress and magnitude of our research, deapdéry and development prograr

. changes in existing collaborative relationshipg@vernment contract

. our ability to establish additional collaborativeationships with academic institutions, bioteclogyl or pharmaceutical companies
governmental agencies or other third pari

. the extent to which our partners, including goveental agencies will share in the costs associattdtive development of ot
programs or run the development programs themse

. our ability to negotiate favorable developmerd ararketing strategic alliances for certain drugdidates; or a decision to build or
expand internal development and commercial capigisil
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. successful commercialization of marketed produgtsither us or a partne

. the scope and results of preclinical studies amicell trials to identify and evaluate drug candéig

. our ability to engage sites and enroll subjectsuinclinical trials;

. the scope of manufacturing of our drug candidaiesupport our preclinical research and clinicallg;i
. increases in personnel and related costs to suiodevelopment of our drug candida

. the scope of manufacturing of our drug substandedang products required for future NDA filing

. competitive and technological advanc

. the time and costs involved in obtaining regulatpyprovals; an

. the costs involved in all aspects of intellectmalperty strategy and protection including theteasvolved in preparing, filing,
prosecuting, maintaining, defending and enforciatgpt claims

We expect that we will be required to raisdigonal capital to complete the development anghiercialization of our current product
candidates. Additional funding, whether throughitiddal sales of securities or collaborative orestarrangements with corporate partners or
from other sources, including governmental agencigeneral and from the HHS contract specificaitygy not be available when needed o
terms acceptable to us. The issuance of preferredromon stock or convertible securities, with teramd prices significantly more favorable
than those of the currently outstanding commonkstoauld have the effect of diluting or adverseffgeting the holdings or rights of our
existing stockholders. In addition, collaborativeeagements may require us to transfer certainnatéghts to such corporate partners.
Insufficient funds may require us to delay, scaelbor eliminate certain of our research and derabnt programs.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do notigpate in transactions that generate relatiorsshijpth unconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred &irastured finance or special purpose entitie®ES’), which would have been established for
the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet ageaments or other contractually narrow or limitedgmses. As of December 31, 2007, we are
not involved in any material unconsolidated SPBféibalance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

In the table below, we set forth our enfordeatnd legally binding obligations and future cortmeénts and obligations related to all
contracts that we are likely to continue regardte#fahe fact that they are cancelable as of Dece@bg2007. Some of the amounts we include
in this table are based on management’s estimateassumptions about these obligations, includieq turation, the possibility of renewal,
anticipated actions by third parties, and othetdiac Because these estimates and assumptions@ssarily subjective, the obligations we
actually pay in future periods may vary from thos#ected in the table.

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating Lease Obligatiol $ 4,268,10: $ 619,34¢ $1,178,18. $1,061,78: $1,408,79:
Purchase Obligations ( 38,563,16' 37,333,16' 410,00( 410,00( 410,00(
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on BioCryst's
Balance Sheet Under GAZA 300,00( — — — 300,00(
Total $43,131,26 $37,952,50 $1,588,18 $1,471,78 $2,118,79:
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(1) Purchase obligations include commitmentsteel#o clinical development, manufacturing and aesle operations and other significant
purchase commitment

Included above are certain contractual obiligetthat existed at December 31, 2007 that wdrsesjuently cancelled during 2008. The total
amount of these obligations outstanding at Decer@be2007 was approximately $19 million. We ar¢hia process of negotiating final
payments for services performed under these cdatrac

In addition to the above, we have committethtike potential future “sublicense” payments toddgarties as part of in-licensing and
development programs. Payments under these agréeegesrerally become due and payable only upon eement of certain developmental,
regulatory and/or commercial milestones. Becausathievement of these milestones is neither ptelrady reasonably estimable, such
contingencies have not been recorded on our bakirest.

Critical Accounting Policies

We have established various accounting palitiat govern the application of accounting prifesgenerally accepted in the United States,
which were utilized in the preparation of our fig&l statements. Certain accounting policies ingdignificant judgments and assumptions by
management that have a material impact on theingraalue of certain assets and liabilities. Mamaget considers such accounting policie
be critical accounting policies. The judgments asgumptions used by management are based ondasexperience and other factors, which
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstaBecause of the nature of the judgments andngéigins made by management, actual
results could differ from these judgments and est@®, which could have a material impact on theyoay values of assets and liabilities and
the results of operations.

While our significant accounting policies anere fully described in Note 1 to our financialtstaents included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007helieve that the following accounting policies #re most critical to aid you in fully
understanding and evaluating our reported finamesults and affect the more significant judgmemtd estimates that we use in the prepar
of our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenues have generally been limitedcenie fees, event payments, research and develbfeaengovernment contracts, and interest
income. Revenue is recognized in accordance waff 8tcounting Bulletin No. 104Revenue Recognitiand Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue 00-21Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveralff&dTF Issue 00-21"). License fees, event paymeans research and
development fees are recognized as revenue whexath@gs process is complete and we have no furthrginuing performance obligations
or we have completed the performance obligatiomeuthe terms of the agreement. Fees received lindasing agreements that are relate
future performance are deferred and recognizedaeed over an estimated period determined by mamagiebased on the terms of the
agreement and the products licensed. For exanmpteeiRoche and Mundipharma licenses agreementdefeered the upfront payments over
the remaining life of the patents which are 2028 2017, respectively. In the event a license agem¢rontains multiple deliverables, we
evaluate whether the deliverables are separatenobioed units of accounting in accordance with EI§$ue 00-21. Revisions to revenue or
profit estimates as a result of changes in theneséid revenue period are recognized prospectively.

Under the guidance of EITF Emerging Issuek Fasce Issue 99-1Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus BenaAgenand
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 01Hidome Statement Characterization of Reimburseni®eteived for “Out-of-Pocket” Expensges
reimbursements received for direct out-of-pockgtemses related to research and development cestscrded as revenue in the income
statement rather than as a reduction in expensegxample, the amounts received from our collaimravith Mundipharma for the
reimbursement of clinical trial costs and the costeived from HHS for reimbursement will be re@tds revenue in the period the related
costs were recorded.

Event payments are recognized as revenue theaschievement of specified events if (1) the eiesubstantive in nature and the
achievement of the event was not reasonably assititeé inception of the
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agreement and (2) the fees are non-refundable amamreditable. Any event payments received prigatisfying these criteria are recorded as
deferred revenue.

Royalty revenue is recognized based on estgraftroyalties earned during the applicable peaiod adjusted for differences between the
estimated and actual royalties in the followingi@erIf royalties can not be reasonably estimatedenue is recognized upon receipt of royalty
statements from the licensee. We have not receimgdoyalties from the sale of licensed pharmacalproducts.

Research and Devel opment Expenses

In accordance with Statement of Financial Actong Standards No. 2ccounting for Research and Development Coats expense
research and development costs as incurred. Résaadcdevelopment expenses include, among othmes itgersonnel costs, including salaries
and benefits, manufacturing costs, clinical, reguilg and toxicology services performed by contrasearch organizations (“CRQ’s”),
materials and supplies, and overhead allocationsisting of various administrative and facilitiedated costs. Most of our manufacturing and
clinical and preclinical studies are performed lnyd-party CRO’s. Costs for studies performed byGZ&are accrued by us over the service
periods specified in the contracts and estimatesdjusted, if required, based upon ours on-gamgew of the level of services actually
performed. To date, there have been no materiagegsato our estimates.

Additionally, we have license agreements whiihd parties, such as AECOM, IRL, and UAB, whigguire maintenance fees or fees related
to sublicense agreements. These fees are genexaysed as incurred unless they are related émuesg that have been deferred, in which
case the expenses are deferred and recognizetheveriated revenue recognition period.

We group our R&D expenses into two major catisg: direct external expenses and all other R&peases. Direct external expenses
consist of costs of outside parties to conductratooy studies, to develop manufacturing proceasdsmanufacture the product candidate, to
conduct and manage clinical trials and similar gostated to our clinical and preclinical studi€sese costs are accumulated and tracked by
program. All other R&D expenses consist of costsdmpensate personnel, to purchase lab supplieseamites, to maintain our facility,
equipment and overhead and similar costs of owares and development efforts. These costs applptk on our clinical and preclinical
candidates as well as our discovery research sffdltese costs have not been charged directlyctogagram historically because the number
of product candidates and projects in researchdamdlopment may vary from period to period and heeave utilize internal resources across
multiple projects at the same time.
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The following table summarizes our R&D expenf® the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Direct external R&D expenses by program

PNP Inhibitor (forodesine HC $19,351,78 $17,667,59 $ 9,256,41

PNP Inhibitor (BC>-4208) 211,92: 643,60! 3,563,96!

Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivi 50,302,01 11,352,73 1,454,73:

Hepatitis C Polymerase Inhibit 951,20° 1,673,48 446,82¢

Other 2,503,51. 206,17t 46,23¢
All other R&D expenses:

Compensation and fringe bene! 11,357,03 6,870,19 3,813,28.

Supplies and service 1,888,55! 3,366,68. 572,05t

Maintenance, depreciation, and amortiza 1,391,733 975,79( 984,68

Overhead allocation and otf 6,094,24. 4,327,10: 3,504,17.
Total R&D expenses $94,051,99 $47,083,37 $23,642,37

At this time, due to the risks inherent in thiaical trial process and given the stages ofvarious product development programs, we are
unable to estimate with any certainty the costswillencur in the continued development of our dreandidates for potential
commercialization. While we are currently focusedaolvancing each of our development programs,urd R&D expenses will depend on
the determinations we make as to the scientificdinital success of each drug candidate, as wealingoing assessments as to each drug
candidate’s commercial potential. As such, we a@le to predict how we will allocate availableaesces among our product development
programs in the future. In addition, we cannot éais with any degree of certainty the developmengness of our existing partnerships for
drug candidates, which drug candidates will be esetlip future collaborations, when such arrangemeiit be secured, if at all, and to what
degree such arrangements would affect our developptens and capital requirements.

The successful development of our drug cane&a uncertain and subject to a number of ridks cannot be certain that any of our drug
candidates will prove to be safe and effective itirmeet all of the applicable regulatory requirarteeneeded to receive and maintain marki
approval. Data from preclinical studies and clihicials are susceptible to varying interpretatidimst could delay, limit or prevent regulatory
clearance. We, the FDA, or other regulatory auttesrimay suspend clinical trials at any time if ovehey believe that the subjects participa
in such trials are being exposed to unacceptasits or if such regulatory agencies find deficieadiethe conduct of the trials or other
problems with our products under development. Detayrejections may be encountered based on addalitimvernmental regulation,
legislation, administrative action or changes inA=@ other regulatory policy during developmenttoe review process. Other risks associated
with our product development programs are describb@&lisk Factors in Part I, Item 1A of this AnniRegport on Form 10-K, as updated from
time to time in our subsequent periodic reports @ndent reports filed with the SEC. Due to theseautainties, accurate and meaningful
estimates of the ultimate cost to bring a prodaceharket, the timing of completion of any of ouoguct development programs and the period
in which material net cash inflows from any of guoduct development programs will commence are aifele.

Accrued Expenses

As part of the process of preparing finanstatements, we are required to estimate accrueshegp. This process involves reviewing open
contracts and purchase orders, communicating wittapplicable personnel to identify services traatehbeen performed on our behalf and
estimating the level of service performed and #soaiated cost incurred for the service when we lmat yet been invoiced or otherwise
notified of actual cost. The majority of our servigroviders invoice us monthly in arrears for segsiperformed. We make estimates of our
accrued expenses as of each balance sheet datefinamcial statements based on facts and circamess
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known to us. We periodically confirm the accuraéyor estimates with the service providers and naljastments if necessary. To date, there
have been no material changes to our estimatesnfiiga of estimated accrued expenses include:

. fees paid to contract research organizations imection with preclinical and toxicology studies atlidical trials;
. fees paid to investigative sites in connection wlthical trials;
. fees paid to contract manufacturers in connectiibh the production of our raw materials, drug sahse and drug products; a

. professional service fee

We base our expenses related to clinicaktoal our estimates of the services received amdtefxpended pursuant to contracts with
multiple research institutions and clinical reséascganizations that conduct and manage clinigabkton our behalf. The financial terms of
these agreements are subject to negotiation, vamy €ontract to contract and may result in unevamgent flows. Payments under some of
these contracts depend on factors such as thessfictenrollment of patients and the completiowlofical trial milestones. In accruing servi
fees, we estimate the time period over which sesvigill be performed and the level of effort toegended in each period. If the actual tirr
of the performance of services or the level of eff@ries from our estimate, we will adjust theraed accordingly. To date, there have been no
material changes to our estimates. If we do nattiflecosts that we have begun to incur or if weleirestimate or overestimate the level of
services performed or the costs of these servicesactual expenses could differ from our estimates

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2007, we have two stock-baseployee compensation plans, the Stock Incentiae 8hd the Employee Stock Purchase
Plan. Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted feselplans under the recognition and measuremevisjmos of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employeasd other related Interpretations, as permitie8tatement of Financial Accounti
Standards No. 123 ccounting for Stock-Based Compensati@tatement No. 123"). No stock-based compensatast related to our
employees was recognized in the Statements of @gesdor any period ending prior to January 1,&08s all options granted to our
employees had exercise prices equal to the madtae wf the underlying common stock on the datgrant. Effective January 1, 2006, we
adopted the fair value recognition provisions @&t&ment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 188i¢ed 2004)Share-Based Payment
(“Statement No. 123R"), using the modified prospectransition method. Results for prior periodsénaot been restated.

Under the fair value recognition provisionsStatement No. 123R, stock-based compensatioriscestimated at the grant date based on the
fair value of the award and is recognized as expensr the requisite service period of the awaahgstent with the valuation method we L
for disclosure-only purposes under the provisidnStatement No. 123, we use the Black-Scholes ogtitting model to estimate fair value
under Statement No. 123R. Determining the approgpfar value model and the related assumptionghii®model requires judgment, includ
estimating the life of an award, the stock pricéatitity, and the expected term. Compensation ostcognized on a straighite basis over tt
requisite service period.

7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK.

The primary objective of our investment adi@s is to preserve principal while maximizing theome we receive from our investments
without significantly increasing our risk. We int&xcess cash principally in U.S. marketable séiegrirom a diversified portfolio of
institutions with strong credit ratings and in Ugevernment and agency bills and notes, and byydlmit the amount of credit exposure at
any one institution. Some of the securities we shve may have market risk. This means that a chamgrevailing interest rates may cause
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principal amount of the investment to fluctuate.rfimimize this risk, we schedule our investmenthdge maturities that coincide with our
expected cash flow needs, thus avoiding the neegtli®em an investment prior to its maturity datecaxdingly, we believe we have no
material exposure to market risk arising from oweistments. Therefore, no quantitative tabularaksee is provided.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
BALANCE SHEETS

Assets

Cash and cash equivalel

Marketable securitie

Receivables from collaboratiol

Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse

Marketable securitie
Furniture and equipment, n
Patents and licenses, net of accumulated amodizafi$32,094 in 200
Deferred collaboration expen
Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Accrued vacatiol
Deferred revenu

Total current liabilities
Deferred revenu

Stockholder’ equity:

Preferred stock: shares authorized - 5,000,00@S$&iJunior Participating Preferred stock, $.001 pa
value; shares authoriz+~ 45,000; shares issued and outstan- none
Common stock, $.01 par value; shares authorizéd008,000; shares issued and outstanding - 37,94’

—2007; 29,248,84- 2006
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Accumulated defici

Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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2007 2006
$ 31,15532 $ 4,417,52
19,542,19  33,040,03
39,127,67 4,556,14!
1,879,46. 3,775,97!
91,704,65  45,789,68
34,310,98 8,778,02
5,294,07! 3,029,27.
— 290,69
11,407,12 _ 10,597,75
$142,716,83 $ 68,485,42
$ 19,771,37 $ 5,886,96
2,863,81! 1,506,71;
824,14 641,47
4,658,261 2,699,46
28,117,59 10,734,61
49,694,18  36,595,79
379,67 292,48
288,683,36  216,310,57
378,05' 32,46
(224,536,04) (195,480,52)
64,90505 _ 21,155,00
$142,716,83 $ 68,485,42
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STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues
Collaborative and other research and developt

Expenses
Research and developme
General and administratiy
Total expense
Loss from operation

Interest and other incon

Net loss
Basic and diluted net loss per common sl

Weighted average shares outstanc

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Years Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

$ 7123790 $ 6,211,93¢ $ 151,86

94,051,99 47,083,37. 23,642,37
9,465,96. 6,108,37 3,686,32.
103,517,95 53,191,74 27,328,70

(32,280,05)  (46,979,80)  (27,176,83)

3,224,53. 3,361,95! 1,078,06!

$(29,055,52) $(43,617,85) $(26,098,76)

$ (0.89 $ (150 $ (1.07)

32,770,92 29,147,39 25,721,03
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Balance at December 31, 20C

Net loss

Unrealized gain on marketak
securities availab-for-sale

Comprehensive incorr

Sale of common stock, 6,578,8
shares

Exercise of stock options, 450,717
shares

Employee stock purchase plan sale
25,700 share

Stoclk-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 20C

Net loss

Unrealized gain on marketak
securities availab-for-sale

Comprehensive incorr

Exercise of stock options, 409,328
shares, ne

Employee stock purchase plan sales,
25,988 share

Stoclk-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 20C

Net loss

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities availab-for-sale

Comprehensive incorr

Issue of restricted common stock,
60,000 share

Sale of common stock, 8,315,5
shares, ne

Exercise of stock options, 308,0
shares, ne

Employee stock purchase plan sale
34,855 share

Stoclk-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 20C

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Additional Other Total Stock-
Common Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated holders’ Comprehensive
Stock Capital Income Deficit Equity Income
$217,58. $154,880,52 $ = $(125,763,89) $ 29,334,21
— — — (26,098,76)  (26,098,76) $(26,098,76)
$(26,098.76)
65,78¢ 52,498,06 — — 52,563,85
4,507 2,473,39! — — 2,477,90.
257 136,56 — — 136,82:
— 26,39: — — 26,39:
288,13! 210,014,94 — (151,862,66) 58,440,41
— — — (43,617,85)  (43,617,85) $(43,617,85)
— — 32,46: — 32,46: 32,46
$(43,585,39)
4,09: 2,765,80. — — 2,769,809
26C 191,07( — — 191,33(
— 3,338,76. — — 3,338,76.
292,48t 216,310,57 32,46: (195,480,52) 21,155,00
= = - (29,055,52)  (29,055,52) $(29,055,52)
— — 345,59 — 345,59: 345,59:
$(28,709,93)
60C (600) — — —
83,15¢ 65,034,93 — — 65,118,09
3,08( 1,378,09! — — 1,381,17
34¢ 269,32¢ — — 269,67
— 5,691,02 — — 5,691,02
$379,67. $288,683,36 $ 378,05 $(224,536,04) $ 64,905,05
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Operating activities
Net loss

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2007

2006

2005

$(29,055,52)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities

Depreciation, amortization, and impairmu

Stocl-based compensation expel
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Receivables from collaboratio

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Deferred collaboration expen

Accounts payable and accrued expet

Deferred revenu

Net cash used in operating activitie

Investing activities

Acquisitions of furniture and equipme
Purchases of patents and licer
Purchases of marketable securi
Maturities of marketable securiti

Net cash used in investing activitie

Financing activities

Sale of common stock, net of issuance ¢
Exercise of stock optior

Employee stock purchase plan si

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivs
Cash and equivalents at beginning of y

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei

See accompanying notes to financial statements

$(43,617,85)

$(26,098,76)

1,369,71: 810,31( 1,018,21"
5,691,02: 3,338,76. 26,39:
(34,571,53)  25,443,85  (30,000,00)
1,896,51; (2,936,31) (140,37
(809,370  (4,772,50)  (5,825,24)
15,424,18 (2,472,82) 7,673,62:
15,057,19 8,995,25'  30,000,00
(24,997,79)  (15,211,31)  (23,346,15)
(3,343,82)  (1,398,31) (497,28
— (136,37;) (50,78:)
(62,907,14)  (42,870,52)  (29,695,35)
51,217,61  31,916,00 18,729,36
(15,033,35)  (12,489,20)  (11,514,05)
65,118,09 —  52,563,85
1,381,17: 2,769,89. 2,477,90;
269,67 191,33( 136,82
66,768,94 2,961,22.  55,178,57
26,737,79  (24,739,29)  20,318,36
4,417,521  29,156,82 8,838,46.
$31,15532 $ 441752 $ 29,156,82
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies
The Company

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Compang’Pelaware corporation, is a biotechnology comphat designs, optimizes, and develops
novel drugs that block key enzymes involved in esncardiovascular diseases, autoimmune diseasésjral infections. The Company
integrates the necessary disciplines of biologystetlography, medicinal chemistry, and computedeiing to effectively use structure-based
drug design to discover and develop small molephermaceuticals. The Company has multiple resqanajbcts in different stages of
development from early discovery to a pivotal PhHaseal of the Company’s most advanced drug cdatk, forodesine HCI. While the
prospects for a project may increase as the prajhances to the next stage of development, agirode be terminated at any stage of
development. Until the Company generates reveroes éither a research project or an approved ptothuee Company'’s ability to continue
research projects is dependent upon its abilitaige funds through the sale of equity securitrehimugh collaborative arrangements with
government agencies or third-party partners.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company generally considers cash equitaterbe all cash held in money market accounisvastments in debt instruments with
maturities of three months or less at the timeuwtpase in accordance with Statement of FinanaabAnting Standards No. 9Statement of
Cash Flows

Marketable Securities

In accordance with Statement of Financial Astimg Standards No. 11Bccounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgB8ecurities
the Company is required to classify securitiegading, available-for-sale, or held-to-maturity .€Téppropriateness of each classification is
assessed at the time of purchase and at eachingpadate. At December 31, 2007, the Company ha¢B$33181 marketable securities of
which $43,770,636 is classified as available-fde-sand $10,082,545 is classified as held-to-maturit

Securities available-for-sale consisted of.lA§ency securities carried at estimated fair veldéne estimated fair value of these securities
was based on independent quoted market priceseé¢mber 31, 2007, the amortized cost of secudtrafiable-forsale was $42,918,200. T
following table summarizes by year the scheduletunts for the securities available-for-sale.

2008 $10,955,09
2009 26,152,77
2010 5,616,92
2011 1,045,83

$43,770,63

Unrealized gains and losses on securitiedablaifor-sale are recognized in other comprehengsigome. Securities held-to-maturity
consisted primarily of U.S. Agency securities cadfrat amortized cost. The estimated fair valueeofisties held-to-maturity at December 31,
2007 was $10,096,160 based on independent quotéetimaices. At December 31, 2007, all of the narrent portions of securities held-to-
maturity mature in 2009.

Receivables from Collaborations

Receivables are recorded for amounts duest@€timpany related to reimbursable research andageuent costs and event payments. T
receivables are evaluated to determine if any veser allowance should be established at eachtiepatate. At December 31, 2007, the
Company had the following receivables from collattians.

Billed Unbilled
U.S. Department of Health and Human Serv $23,089,94 $13,443,86
Mundipharma, Shionogi & Roct 258,80 2,335,06.
Total $23,348,74 $15,778,92

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are recorded at &egpreciation is computed using the straight-linghue with estimated useful lives of five and
seven years. Laboratory equipment, office equippeased equipment, and

53




Table of Contents

software are depreciated over a life of five yeRtgniture and fixtures are depreciated over adffeeven years. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over their estimated useful lives orréraaining lease term, whichever is less. In acewrdavith Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 14#ccounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longdd Assetsthe Company periodically reviews its furnituredan
equipment for impairment when events or changesraumstances indicate that the carrying amoustuch assets may not be recoverable.
Determination of recoverability is based on anmeate of undiscounted future cash flows resultiognfthe use of the asset and its eventual
disposition. In the event that such cash flowsnateexpected to be sufficient to recover the cagyamount of the assets, the assets are written
down to their estimated fair values. Furniture agdipment to be disposed of are reported at therofvcarrying amount or fair value less ¢

to sell.

Patents and Licenses

The Company seeks patent protection on aiatly developed processes and products. All pagdsited costs are expensed to general anc
administrative expenses as incurred, as recovéyabilsuch expenditures is uncertain.

Accrued Expenses

The Company records all expenses in the pénimgred. In addition to recording expenses feoines received, the Company estimates the
cost of services provided by third parties or matempurchased for which no invoices have beenivedeas of each balance sheet date. Acc
expenses as of December 31, 2007, 2006, and 20@%sted primarily of development and clinical triedpenses payable to contract research
organizations in connection with the Company’s aeske and development programs.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used in accounting ifilcome taxes in accordance with Statement of Eia&dAccounting Standards No. 109,
Accounting for Income Tax(“Statement No. 109”). Under this method, defeti@dassets and liabilities are determined basadifterences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assetdiabilities and are measured using the endetethates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adofttegrovisions of Financial Accounting Standardsi Interpretation No. 48Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretatafiFASB Statement No. I” (“FIN No. 48”). FIN No. 48 clarifies the accountiriigr
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an en&|s financial statements in accordance withedtaint No. 109, and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement processnandial statement recognition and measurementax position taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive | ncome

Accumulated other comprehensive income is gweg of unrealized gains and losses on secudtiagable-for-sale and is disclosed as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. The fizom had $345,594 and $32,463 of unrealized gairiss ®ecurities that are included in
accumulated other comprehensive income at Dece&ih@007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenues have generally bedtelino license fees, event payments, researclidevnelopment fees, government contracts,
and interest income. Revenue is recognized in deome with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10Revenue RecognitidtSAB No. 104”) and
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 00Rdyenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveral{l&dTF Issue 00-21"). License fees, event
payments, and research and development fees agnized as revenue when the earnings process igletarand the Company has no further
continuing performance obligations or the Compaay tompleted the performance obligations undetettms of the agreement. Fees received
under licensing agreements that are related todytarformance are deferred and recognized ovestimated period determined by
management based on the terms of the agreementseaptbducts licensed. In the event a licenseemgeat contains multiple deliverables, the
Company evaluates whether the deliverables areatepar combined units of accounting in accordamite EITF Issue 00-21. Revisions to
revenue or profit estimates as a result of chaimgthe estimated revenue period are recognizepotwely.
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Under the guidance of Emerging Issues Taskd-tssue 99-1Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus BlenaAgen{“EITF
Issue 99-19”) and Emerging Issues Task Force IB&ub4,Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursentatgived for “Out-of-
Pocke” Expenseq“EITF Issue 01-14"), reimbursements received fioect out-of-pocket expenses related to researdidamelopment costs
are recorded as revenue in the income statemdéaridian as a reduction in expenses.

Event payments are recognized as revenue tlieagaichievement of specified events if (1) the eiseaubstantive in nature and the
achievement of the event was not reasonably assiitbe inception of the agreement and (2) the deeson-refundable and non-creditable.
Any event payments received prior to satisfying¢heriteria are recorded as deferred revenue.

Royalty revenue is recognized based on estsnaftroyalties earned during the applicable pesiod adjusted for differences between the
estimated and actual royalties in the followingi@erIf royalties can not be reasonably estimatedenue is recognized upon receipt of royalty
statements from the licensee. The Company hasneived any royalties from the sale of licensedplaaeutical products.

The Company recorded the following revenuesfcollaborations for the years ended December 31.:

2007 2006 2005
U.S. Department of Health and Human Serv $55,449,09 $ — $ =
Shionogi 8,515,71. — —
Mundipharme 5,298,27. 5,086,92! —
Roche 1,898,40: 1,093,75i —
Other 76,41¢ 31,25( 151,86°
Total $71,237,90 $6,211,93 $151,86°

Research and Development Expenses

In accordance with Statement of Financial Astimg Standards No. 2ccounting for Research and Development Cofts Company
expenses research and development costs as incResearch and development expenses include, aotbegitems, personnel costs,
including salaries and benefits, manufacturingssadinical, regulatory, and toxicology servicesfpemed by contract research organizations
(“CRO’s"), materials and supplies, and overheadcaltions consisting of various administrative aadilities related costs. Most of the
Company’s manufacturing and clinical and preclihgtadies are performed by third-party CRO’s. Cdstsstudies performed by CRO’s are
accrued by the Company over the service periodsifigein the contracts and estimates are adjusteelguired, based upon the Company’s
on-going review of the level of services actuakyfprmed.

Additionally, the Company has license agreemeiith third parties, such as Albert Einstein €g# of Medicine of Yeshiva University
(“AECOM?"), Industrial Research, Ltd. (“IRL"), andhé University of Alabama at Birmingham (“UAB"Which require maintenance fees or
related to sublicense agreements. These fees aeeadly expensed as incurred unless they are celateevenues that have been deferred, in
which case the expenses are deferred and recogmveedhe related revenue recognition period.

Stock-Based Compensation

In accordance with Statement of Financial Actong Standards No. 123 (revised 20@BhHare-Based PaymefiStatement No. 123R"), all
share-based payments, including grants of stodkmpivards and restricted stock awards, are rezedrin the Company’s income statement
based on their fair values. Statement No. 123Ragapted by the Company on January 1, 2006 usingrtbdified prospective” transition
method. Under the fair value recognition provisiofi$tatement No. 123R, stock-based compensatistnicestimated at the grant date based
on the fair value of the award and is recognizeeb@®nse on a straight-line basis over the regussitvice period of the award.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had tacksbased employee compensation plans, the Staehtive Plan (“Incentive Plan”) and
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (‘ESPP”). In addithe Company made an inducement grant outditteedncentive Plan and ESPP to
recruit a new employee to a key position
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within the Company. Prior to January 1, 2006, tenPany accounted for all share-based payments tineeecognition and measurement
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion.\5,Accounting for Stock Issued to Employg@$B Opinion No. 25”), and other
related interpretations, as permitted by StateroBRtnancial Accounting Standards No. 128counting for Stock-Based Compensatidio
stock-based compensation cost related to the Coytgpamployees was recognized in the Statementgpef&ions for any period ending prior
to January 1, 2006. Stock-based compensation exuéi$5,691,028 ($5,428,505 of expense relatedadricentive Plan, $150,245 of expense
related to the ESPP, and $112,278 of expense detathe inducement grant) was recognized durir@y 2@hile $3,338,761 ($3,243,751 of
expense related to the Plan and $95,010 of expefated to the ESPP) was recognized during 2006.

In accordance with the modified prospectiamsition method adopted, results for the year efmstmber 31, 2005 have not been restated
The following table illustrates the pro forma effea net loss and net loss per share had the Comgppiied the fair value recognition
provisions of Statement No. 123R for the year erdedember 31, 2005. For purposes of the belowgmrod disclosure, the value of the stock
option awards was estimated using a Black-Schgiésropricing model and amortized to expense olvenesting periods of the stock option
awards using a straight-line expense attributiothoek For the year ended December 31, 2005, staskebcompensation cost of $26,392 was
recognized by the Company for stock option awardstgd to non-employee consultants.

2005

Net loss as reporte $(26,098,76)
Add stocl-based compensation expense for consultants incindegorted net los 26,39:
Deduct total stoc-based compensation expense for employees and tamsiuds determined under Statement No. (1,779,99)
Pro forma net los $(27,852,36)
Amounts per common shai

Net loss per share, as repor $ (1.07)
Pro forma net loss per she $ (.08

As of December 31, 2007, there was approxipm&E3,740,154 of total unrecognized compensatust telated to non-vested employee
stock option awards and restricted stock awardstgdaby the Company. That cost is expected to degrézed as follows: $5,255,676 in 2008,
$4,542,234 in 2009, $3,341,547 in 2010, and $600i62011.

Statement 123R also requires that the berfedits tax deductions in excess of recognized corsgion cost should be reported as a
financing cash flow rather than as an operating) fiasv. The Company has never recognized any benfefim such tax deductions, as the
Company has always maintained a loss position.

Net Loss Per Share

The Company computes net loss per share oréacce with Statement of Financial Accounting 8tads No. 128Earnings Per Share
Net loss per share is based upon the weighted gerenamber of common shares outstanding duringehiegh Diluted loss per share
equivalent to basic net loss per share for allqusrpresented herein because common equivalemtssttam unexercised stock options and
common shares expected to be issued under the @gapanployee stock purchase plan were anti-didutiv

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements infoomity with accounting principles generally acasgpin the United States requires manage
to make estimates and assumptions that affecttioiats reported in the financial statements. Exampiclude accrued clinical and preclin
expenses. Actual results could differ from thodereses.
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Note 2 — Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment consisted of the ity at December 31.:

Furniture and fixture
Office equipmen
Software

Laboratory equipmer
Leased equipmel
Leasehold improvemen
Constructiorin-progress

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize
Furniture and equipment, n

Note 3 — Concentration of Credit and Market Risk

2007 2006
$ 49182 $ 406,86
907,38 685,20
1,015,06: 516,28
6,361,49! 4,802,48
62,71 62,71
5,082,55. 4,731,40
883,77 309,00
14,804,81 11,513,94
(9,510,73)  (8,484,67)
$ 5,294,070 $ 3,029,27

The Company invests its excess cash pringiiall.S. marketable securities from a diversifpgtfolio of institutions with strong credit
ratings and in U.S. government and agency billsraotds and, by policy, limits the amount of crediposure at any one institution. These
investments are generally not collateralized antureawithin less than three years. The Companynbasealized any losses from such
investments. At December 31, 2007, $14,358,885imeested in the Merrill Lynch Premier Institutiorfalind, a money market mutual fund
that invests in near cash securities with weiglategtage maturities of less than 90 days. The NMésrich Premier Institutional Fund is not

insured.

The Company’s raw materials, drug substaraxes drug products are manufactured by a limitedigiaf suppliers and some at a single
facility. If any of these suppliers were unabletoduce these items, this could significantly intghe Company’s supply of drugs for further

preclinical testing and clinical trials.

Note 4 — Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses were comprised of the folgvat December 31:

Accrued research and clinical expen
Accrued professional fet

Stock purchase plan withholdin
Accrued bonu:

Other

Accrued expense

Note 5 — Lease Obligations and Other Contingencies

The Company has the following lease obligatiahDecember 31, 2007:

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
Thereaftel

Total minimum payment
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2007

2006

$1,675,66!
126,50(
167,36¢
756,53¢
137,75!

$1,155,84
177,95!
106,67(
45,00(
21,24

$2,863,81!

$1,506,71

Operating

Leases
$ 619,34¢
623,89
554,28
525,95¢
535,82¢
1,408,79.
$4,268,10:
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Rent expense for operating leases was $5758588,524, and $560,322 in 2007, 2006, and 2@&pectively. The commitment for
operating leases is primarily related to buildiagdes in Birmingham, Alabama and Cary, North CaaolThe lease for the building in
Birmingham, Alabama expires June 30, 2015. Thisdeas amended effective August 7, 2007 for ar@s® in occupied space and lease term,
currently requires monthly rents of $39,100 in Oeber 2007 and escalates annually to a minimum 8f0%2 per month in the final year. The
Company has an option to renew the Birmingham, &dad lease for an additional five years at the ctimmearket rate on the date of
termination. The lease for the building in Cary rthaCarolina expires February 28, 2010. This leasegmended effective August 9, 2007 for
an increase in occupied space, requires monthtg mr$7,652 in December 2007 and escalates artoadl minimum of $8,118 per month in
the final year. The Company has an option to twéreew the Cary, North Carolina lease for an additichree years at the current market rate
prior to lease termination.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company has asadletter of credit of $1.8 million. This lettafrcredit was originally obtained for a
customs bond that was required in order to impertain compound into the country that was manufactabroad. The Company does not
anticipate drawing any funds against this lettecreflit in the future, but it could remain in forfoe up to one year or until customs closes the
file on the particular receipt of goods for whitte hond was required.

Note 6 — Income Taxes

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adofttegrovisions of FIN No. 48, which clarifies thecounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an enterprisefinancial statements in accordance with StatemMdentL09 and prescribes a recognition thresholdraedsuremet
process for financial statement recognition andsaeament of a tax position taken or expected taben in a tax return. The Company has
concluded that there were no significant uncertaxnpositions requiring recognition in its financiéatements. Tax years 2004-2006 remain
open to examination by the major taxing jurisdicido which the Company is subject. Additionallgays prior to 2004 are also open to
examination to the extent of loss and credit camyards from those years.

During the current period, the Company utdizeportion of its net operating loss (“NOL”) cdiogwards. Accordingly, there was a decrease
in the deferred tax assets and a correspondingaeeiin the valuation allowance related to the Méricyforwards. As of December 31, 2007,
the majority of the deferred tax assets relate@_Marryforwards that can only be realized if thentpany is profitable in future periods and it
is uncertain whether the Company will realize aayhenefit related to the NOL carryforwards. Acéoglly, the Company has provided a
valuation allowance against the net deferred tartasdue to uncertainties as to their ultimatdézatbn. The valuation allowance will remair
the full amount of the deferred tax asset unts imore likely than not that the related tax besefiill be realized.

The Company has significant net operating &g business credit carryovers which are subjeatvaluation allowance due to the uncer
nature of the realization of the losses. The IrteRevenue Code imposes certain limitations oruttization of net operating loss carryovers
and other tax attributes after certain ownershgnges. During the year, the Company performedailddtanalysis and determined that there
was no resulting limitation to the Company’s ne¢igting loss and credit carryforwards.

The Company will recognize interest and péesithiccrued related to unrecognized tax benefit®agponents of its income tax provision.
The Company did not have any interest and penaltiesued upon the adoption of FIN No. 48 and 8exfember 31, 2007, the Company does
not have any interest and penalties accrued retatadrecognized tax benefits.
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The provision for income taxes differs frone timounts computed by applying the statutory fédiecame tax rate to income before inco
taxes. The sources and tax effects of the differgiace as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Federal tax benefit at statutory rate on incomeneeincome taxe $(10,169,43) $(15,266,24) $(9,134,56))
State tax benefit, net of federal income tax bel (1,231,31) (1,931,360 (1,120,78)
Increase in valuation allowan 16,143,86 21,011,95 12,706,72
Permanent items (federal effe 3,943,98! 2,338,85 1,488,58!
R&D credit (9,214,62) (6,561,95) (4,237,250
Othernet 527,52¢ 408,75: 297,29:
Total tax expens $ — 9 — 3 —

The Company has not had taxable income sira@poration and, therefore, has not paid any irectares. Significant components of the
Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities arlows:

2007 2006
Deferred tax asset
Net operating losse $ 61,544,21 $66,146,99
General business cred 32,067,93 23,098,88
Fixed asset 845,62 696,82:
Accrued expense 433,09: 252,327
Reserve for doubtful accour — —
Deferred revenu 9,827,25! 113,40(
Stoclk-based compensatic 1,734,16 —
Other — —
Total deferred tax asse 106,452,29 90,308,422
Total deferred tax liabilitie — —
Net deferred tax ass 106,452,29 90,308,422
Valuation allowanct (106,452,29) (90,308,42)
Net deferred tax asse $ — % —

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had petating loss and research and development craditforwards of approximately
$157,962,000 and $32,068,000, respectively, whigire at various dates from 2008 through 2026. Appnately $2,265,000 of the net
operating loss carryforward is comprised of exdagdenefit that will reverse through additionaidpen capital.

Note 7 — Stockholders’ Equity

On August 6, 2007, the Company entered irBtoak and Warrant Purchase Agreement with a gréepisting stockholders for the private
placement of 8,315,513 shares of the Compaoginmon stock at a purchase price of $7.80 pee sivad warrants to purchase 3,159,895 sl
of the Company’s common stock at a purchase pfi§®d25 per warrant. The aggregate proceeds fhensale were approximately
$65.3 million. The exercise price of the warrast$10.25 per share. The participants in the traisamclude funds managed by Baker
Brothers Investments, Kleiner Perkins Caufield &By; EHS Holdings, OrbiMed Advisors, Texas Pad#ioup Ventures, and Stephens
Investment Management, all of whom are currentedi@ders in the Company. The Company has regis&et,000 of the shares under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, but the rem@ihv5,513 and the warrants included in the priptseement have not been registered and
may not be offered or sold in the United Stateeabeegistration or an applicable exemption frogiseation requirements. The Company has
agreed to register the remaining shares, the watrand the shares of common stock issuable upentieg of the warrants for resale. If
registration is not completed within the perioddfied in the Stock and Warrant Purchase AgreentaatCompany will be subject to pay
liguidated damages of $164,000 to the group oftirtiinal investors, which represents 12% of tleesaction value related to the remaining
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unregistered common stock. The Company expectseféstration of the remaining shares will occuthivi the timeframe specified in the
Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement. Therefoeertiount of the liquidated damages has not beenextas of December 31, 2007.

On May 16, 2007, the stockholders approvedraandment to the Company’s third restated certdicfincorporation to increase the
number of shares of common stock authorized teigsum 45,000,000 to 95,000,000. All shares ofGeenpany’s common stock, including
the additional shares authorized by the amendraemqual in rank and have the same voting, diddend liquidation rights.

On December 14, 2005, the Company enteredaistock purchase agreement with Kleiner Perkindi€ld & Byers Holdings, LLC,
KPTV, LLC and TPG Biotechnology Partners, L.P. @npection with a registered direct offering of B829 shares of its common stock at an
offering price of $13.46 per share. The commonlsteas issued pursuant to prospectus supplemeetkviith the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) of the SéiesriAct of 1933, as amended (“the Securities Adt’)connection with a shelf takedown
from the Company'’s registration statement on ForB(833-111226), which was filed on December 1®38nd which became effective on
January 5, 2004, and the Company'’s registratidesiant on Form S-3 (33828087), which was filed on September 2, 2005 ahidiwbecam
effective on September 20, 2005. On December 185,20e Company issued the total 2,228,829 shdresnomon stock to the aforementiol
investors and received total proceeds of approxdm&30 million (approximately $29.9 million net ekpenses).

On February 9, 2005, the Company enteredaritacement Agency Agreement with Leerink Swanna8n@any in connection with a
registered direct offering of 4,350,000 sharego€ommon stock at an offering price of $5.50 ferrs. The common stock was issued purs
to a prospectus supplement filed with the Secsriied Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 424(bjthe Securities Act in connection
with a shelf takedown from the Company’s registratstatement on Form S-3 (333-111226), filed ondb@mer 16, 2003 and which became
effective on January 5, 2004.

On February 17, 2005, the Company enteredsitatck purchase agreements with a number of itistital investors for an aggregate of
4,350,000 shares of common stock at a gross pwgrae of $5.50 per share or approximately $23IBom (approximately $22.7 million net
of expenses). One of these agreements was withr Bakéhers Investments, L.P., Baker Brothers Inwestts Il, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund |,
L.P., Baker Biotech Fund Il, L.P., Baker BiotechEul (Z), L.P., Baker Biotech Fund Ill, L.P., BakBiotech Fund Il (Z), L.P., Baker/Tisch
Investments, L.P., and 14159, L.P., or the Bakeestors, for a total of 1,454,545 shares.

On February 4, 2004, the Company enteredaritacement Agency Agreement with Leerink Swannan@any in connection with a
registered direct offering of 3,571,667 sharegsoEommon stock at an offering price of $6.00 ferrs. The common stock was issued purs
to a prospectus supplement filed with the Secsritied Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 424(bj{e Securities Act in connection
with a shelf takedown from the Company’s registratstatement on Form S-3 (333-111226), filed ondb@mer 16, 2003 and which became
effective on January 5, 2004.

On February 17, 2004, the Company enteredar8tock Purchase Agreement with Caduceus Prinatstments I, LP, Caduceus Private
Investments Il (QP), LP and UBS Juniper CrossowsrdL.L.C. As part of this agreement, the Compgranted these investors the right to
appoint a member to its board of directors effectig of the closing of the offering. On February 24, the Company completed a
$21.4 million registered direct offering of 3,578 Bshares of its common stock to a group of insital investors.

In June 2002, our board of directors adoptetbekholder rights plan and, pursuant theretagdgreferred stock purchase rights (“Rights”)
to the holders of our common stock. The Rights haareain anti-takeover effects. If triggered, thHgtRs would cause substantial dilution to a
person or group of persons who acquires more tb&h (1.9.9% for William W. Featheringill, a Directstho owned approximately 10.1% as
August 15, 2007, but owned more than 15% at the tme Rights were put in place) of our common statkerms not approved by the board
of directors. In August 2007, this plan was amenfdeéd transaction involving funds managed by ditiafed with Baker Brother Investments
such that they could purchase up to 25% withoggéting the Rights. After closing of our August ZQfrivate placement, such group owns
approximately 19.0%
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of our stock. The rights are not exercisable uhgldistribution date, as defined in the Rightsefgnent by and between the Company and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Rigkdent. The Rights will expire at the close of besis on June 24, 2012, unless that final
expiration date is extended or unless the righgsearlier redeemed or exchanged by the Company.

Each Right entitles the registered holderuhase from the Company one one-thousandth odir@ gt Series B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (“Series B"), par value $0.001gware, at a purchase price of $26.00, subjectjtstdent. Shares of Series B purchasable
upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemabéeh share of Series B will be entitled to a divid of 1,000 times the dividend declared
share of common stock. In the event of liquidatiesch share of Series B will be entitled to a paymnoé 1,000 times the payment made per
share of common stock. Each share of Series Bhaile 1,000 votes, voting together with the comnmiooks Finally, in the event of any
merger, consolidation, or other transaction in \wtgbares of common stock are exchanged, each ah8ezies B will be entitled to receive
1,000 times the amount received per share of constomk. Effective in December 2005, we increasedaththorized shares available under
these rights to 45,000 to match the authorized comshares of 45,000,000 at that time. In additiam,Board of Directors has the authority to
issue up to 4,955,000 shares of undesignated pedfstock and to determine the rights, preferemmigleges and restrictions of those shares
without further vote or action by our stockholders.

Note 8 — Stock-Based Compensation
Stock | ncentive Plan

In November 1991, the Board of Directors addphe 1991 Stock Option Plan (1991 Plan”) for keyployees and consultants of the
Company and reserved 500,000 shares of common ftoidsuance. The 1991 Plan was approved by tiekisolders in December 1991. The
original term for awards granted under the 1991 Rlas for ten years and included provisions fanasee of both incentive stock options and
non-statutory options. Under the 1991 Plan, stqitioo awards are granted with an exercise pricalguhe market price of the Company’s
stock at the date of grant. Stock option awardatgrhto employees and consultants generally vést&Fer one year and monthly thereafte
a pro rata basis over the next three years uriiyl fested after four years. The vesting exercisev/igions of all awards granted under the 1991
Plan are subject to acceleration in the event dhtestockholder-approved transactions, or upernottcurrence of a change in control as
defined in the 1991 Plan.

In February 1993, the 1991 Plan was amendédestated to effect the following changes: (i)idiévthe 1991 Plan into two separate
incentive programs: the Discretionary Option Giardgram and the Automatic Option Grant Programdfdside Directors), (ii) increase the
number of shares of the Company’s common stocKabltaifor issuance by 500,000 shares and (iii) edghe level of benefits available. The
Board amended the 1991 Plan in December 1993 tedse the number of shares issuable by 500,008sshad subsequently amended and
restated the 1991 Plan in its entirety in Febrd®94. In March 1995, the Board authorized anotl@,@O0 shares for issuance under the 1991
Plan. The 1991 Plan was subsequently amended stade® in March 1997, which increased the numbshafes issuable by 1,000,000 she
The 1991 Plan (as so amended and restated) wheifarended in March 1999 to increase the shaegeveeby 400,000 shares. The Board
amended and restated the 1991 Plan in its entivélarch 2000, increasing the reserved shares2301000 and extending the term of the
1991 Plan for ten years from the date of the amemdnThis restatement was approved by the Compatytkholders in May 2000. The 1991
Plan was amended in March 2004 to increase the euaflshares reserved for issuance by 1,000,00@cezchend the automatic option grant
program related to initial grants, vesting, andapterms. The automatic option grant program graptions to purchase 10,000 shares to new
non-employee Board members, prorated from theiaimppointment to the next Annual Meeting, andadditional 10,000 shares annually
over such period of continued service (all of whiglst one-twelfth per month). Directors receivimgions under the automatic option grant
program will have the full term of the original apt to exercise all options vested at the timehefrtcessation from service. This amendment
was approved by the Company'’s stockholders in M¥342

In March 2006, the 1991 Plan was amended estdted by the Company’s Stock Incentive Plan girtive Plan”), which increased the
number of shares reserved for issuance by 1,50@/0@@s; increased the amounts of
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the initial automatic option grants to non-emplofsmrd members from 10,000 shares to 20,000 shamrsased the amounts of the annual
automatic option grants to non-employee Board mesitsem 10,000 shares to 15,000 shares; and aHevCbmpany to make discretionary
stock issuances. The Incentive Plan was subseguspitoved by the Company’s stockholders in May&20@ost recently, in March 2007, the
Incentive Plan was amended and restated and irectelae number of shares reserved for issuance20),000 shares. This amendment and
restatement was subsequently approved by the Congpstockholders in May 2007.

Related activity under the Incentive Plansgalows:

Weighted
Awards Options Average
Available Outstanding Exercise Price
Balance December 31, 20 1,035,77: 3,099,34. $ 7.8¢
Stock option awards grant (653,80)) 653,80: 4.6¢€
Stock option awards exercis — (450,71 5.5C
Stock option awards cancel 61,075 (61,077) 5.9¢
Balance December 31, 20 443,04 3,241,35: 7.6(C
Plan amendmer 1,500,001 — —
Stock option awards grant (1,222,15) 1,222,15: 12.3¢
Stock option awards exercis — (411,07¢) 6.82
Stock option awards cancel 99,86! (99,86)) 15.91
Balance December 31, 20 820,75« 3,952,56! 8.9
Plan amendmer 1,200,001
Stock option awards grant: (1,721,700 1,721,701 9.51
Restricted stock awards grant (50,000 — —
Stock option awards exercis — (308,03 4.4¢
Stock option awards cancel 342,97¢ (342,979 12.0z2
Balance December 31, 20 592,02° 5,023,25! 9.2C

For each stock option award granted undehtbentive Plan during 2007, 2006, and 2005, theviaue of the award was estimated on the
date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricimzdel and the assumptions noted in the table bélbw weighted average grant date fair
value of the stock option awards granted undetrtbentive Plan during 2007, 2006, and 2005 was@b6&.64, and $3.48, respectively. The
fair value of the stock option awards is amortiteeéxpense over the vesting periods using a stréilghexpense attribution method.

Weighted Average Assumptions for Stock Option Award Granted under the
Incentive Plan

2007 2006 2005
Expected Life 5.7 5.9 5.C
Expected Volatility 74.5% 82.€% 96.€%
Expected Dividend Yieli 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-Free Interest Rat 4.€% 5.C% 3.5%

The following explanations describe the assionp used by the Company to value the stock oieards granted during 2007. The
expected life is based on the average of the agsamipat all outstanding stock option awards Wwél exercised at full vesting and the
assumption that all outstanding stock option awaritidbe exercised at the midpoint of the valuatdate and the full contractual term. The
expected volatility represents an average of th@iéd volatility on the Company’s publicly tradegtmns, the volatility over the most recent
period corresponding with the expected life, arel@ompany’s londerm reversion volatility. The Company has assuneéxpected dividen
yield, as dividends have never been paid to stodption holders and will not be for the foreseedbture. The weighted average -free
interest rate is the implied yield currently avhl&aon zero-coupon government issues with a remgit@rm equal to the expected term.

The total intrinsic value of stock option adsexercised under the Incentive Plan was $1,38%Qling 2007 and $4,697,366 during 2006.
The intrinsic value represents the total proce&isifarket value at the date of exercise, less the
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exercise price, times the number of stock optioardw exercised) received by all individuals whoreised stock option awards during the
period.

The following table summarizes, at December28D7, by price range: (1) for stock option awardtstanding under the Incentive Plan, the
number of stock option awards outstanding, theighted average remaining life and their weightedrage exercise price; and (2) for stock
option awards exercisable under the Plan, the nuoftstock option awards exercisable and their Wweid average exercise price:

Qutstanding Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Remaining Exercise Exercise
Range Number Life Price Number Price
$0to 3 373,12¢ 5.C $ 1.1¢ 373,12¢ $ 1.1¢
3to6 660,35: 6.€ 4.1¢ 488,25: 4.1z
6to9 1,864,74i 6.7 8.0¢ 945,98 8.07
9to 12 957,18t 9.1 11.3¢ 72,55¢ 10.7:
12 to 15 932,54¢ 8.2 12.5¢ 454,62. 12.5¢
15t0 18 6,667 8.1 15.92 5,18¢ 15.7(C
18to 21 6,20( 8.2 19.3¢ 2,79¢ 19.3:
21t024 202,82( 2.C 22.8¢ 202,82( 22.8¢
24 to 27 13,62( 2.3 25.7¢ 13,62( 25.7¢
27 to 30 6,00( 24 29.2¢ 6,00( 29.2¢
$0 to 30 5,023,25! 7.1 9.2(C 2,564,96. 8.52

The weighted average remaining contractualdifstock option awards exercisable under thenliiee Plan at December 31, 2007 is
5.4 years. There were 2,304,988 and 2,199,129 sfoitién awards exercisable at December 31, 2002668, respectively. The weighted-
average exercise price for stock option awardscisadsle was $7.96 and $8.81 at December 31, 200@@05, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock op@i@rards outstanding under the Incentive Plan at mbee 31, 2007 is $3,200,924. The aggre
intrinsic value of stock option awards currentlyemisable under the Incentive Plan at Decembe2@17 is $2,887,389. The aggregate intri
value represents the value (the period’s closinkeigrice, less the exercise price, times the ramobin-the-money stock option awards) that
would have been received by all stock option avieniders under the Incentive Plan had they exerdiseid stock option awards at the end of
the year.

The total fair value of the stock option avsawested under the Incentive Plan was $5,613,76hgl2007 and $2,473,986 during 2006.

As of December 31, 2007, the number of stqatioo awards vested and expected to vest undenteative Plan is 4,630,505. The
weighted average exercise price of these stockwativards is $9.16 and their weighted average réntacontractual life is 7.1 years.

The grant date fair value of the 50,000 retgtd stock awards granted under the Incentive iRI2007 was $11.81. None of these restricted
stock awards have vested as of December 31, 2007.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In May 1995, the stockholders approved theEE8ffective February 1995. In May 2002, the stoddtéis approved an amendment to the
ESPP to reserve an additional 200,000 shares anohate the January 2005 termination date. The Gmyphas reserved a total of 400,000
shares of common stock under the ESPP, of whicFb84shares remain available for purchase at Dece®ih@007. Eligible employees may
authorize up to 15% of their salary to purchaseroomstock at the lower of 85% of the beginning $3of the ending price during the six-
month purchase intervals. No more than 3,000 shraegsbe purchased by any one employee at the six-
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month purchase dates and no employee may purctuasergving a fair market value at the commencerdate of $25,000 or more in any ¢
calendar year.

There were 34,855, 25,988, and 25,700 shdresnomon stock purchased under the ESPP in 20@g,20d 2005, respectively, at a
weighted average price per share of $7.74, $7186$a8.06, respectively. Expense of

$150,245 and $95,010 related to the ESPP ecgnized during 2007 and 2006, respectively, wdijgense of $73,381 related to the ESPP
would have been recognized during 2005 had the @agnpot followed the guidance of APB No. 25. Fdmpalriods, expense was determined
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Thegh&d average grant date fair values of sharesegtamder the ESPP during 2007, 2006,
and 2005 were $2.98, $4.57, and $2.55, respectively

Stock I nducement Grant

In March 2007, the Company’s Board of Direstapproved a stock inducement grant of 110,00k sipton awards and 10,000 restricted
stock awards to recruit a new employee to a keitiposwithin the Company. The stock option awardsevgranted in April 2007 with an
exercise price equal to the market price of the @amy’s stock at the date of grant. The awards 2&8%t after one year and monthly thereafter
on a pro rata basis over the next three years fufitilvested after four years. The stock optioraate have contractual terms of 10 years. The
vesting exercise provisions of both the stock eptiwards and the restricted stock awards grantderihe inducement grant are subject to
acceleration in the event of certain stockholdgrraped transactions, or upon the occurrence oba@hin control as defined in the respective
agreements.

For the stock option awards granted undeirttiecement grant, the fair value was estimatecherdate of grant using a Black-Scholes
option pricing model and the following assumptioaspected life of 5.7 years, expected volatility7@f9%, expected dividend yield of 0.0%,
and riskfree interest rate of 4.6%. The weighted averagatgtate fair value of these stock option awards $#25. The fair value of the stc
option awards is amortized to expense over thengeperiods using a straighihe expense attribution method. The expecteddifeased on tr
average of the assumption that all outstandingkstption awards will be exercised at full vestimglahe assumption that all outstanding stock
option awards will be exercised at the midpointhaf valuation date and the full contractual terime €xpected volatility represents an average
of the implied volatility on the Company’s publidsaded stock options, the volatility over the m&stent period corresponding with the
expected life, and the Company’s lotegm reversion volatility. The Company has assumzéxpected dividend yield, as dividends have n
been paid to stock or option holders and will nefdr the foreseeable future. The weighted averiagefree interest rate is the implied yield
currently available on zero-coupon government issuigh a remaining term equal to the expected term.

The exercise price of the stock option awamts the grant date fair value of the restrictedlstwards granted under the inducement grant
was $8.20. None of these restricted stock awards hested as of December 31, 2007.

Note 9 — Employee Benefit Plans

In January 1991, the Company adopted an eraplogtirement plan (“401(k) Plan”) under Sectiod 9 of the Internal Revenue Code
covering all employees. Employee contributions haynade to the 401(k) Plan up to limits establighethe Internal Revenue Service.
Company matching contributions may be made at igwretion of the Board of Directors. The Companydmanatching contributions of
$330,559, $252,735, and $205,524 in 2007, 20062808, respectively.

Note 10 — Collaborative and Other Research and Delapment Contracts

Shionogi & Co., Ltd. (“Shionogi). In March 2007, the Company entered into an estetulicense agreement with Shionogi to develop and
commercialize the Company’s lead influenza neur&ase inhibitor, peramivir, in Japan for the treaninof seasonal and potentially life-
threatening human influenza. Under the terms oftfreement, Shionogi obtained rights to injectédaimulations of peramivir in Japan in
exchange for a $14 million up-front payment. Thetise provides for future event payments for adhiespecified development, regulatory
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and commercial events (including certain salesllam®unts following a product’s launch) for certaidications. In addition, the Company

will receive royalties based on a percentage opneduct sales. Generally, all payments under gineeament are nonrefundable and non-
creditable, but they are subject to audit. The Camypdeveloped peramivir under a license from UAB waiil owe sublicense payments to
them on the upfront payment and any future eveyitneaits and/or royalties received by the Company f&hionogi. The Company retains all
rights to commercialize peramivir in North Ameri&yrope, and other countries outside of Korea apad. In accordance with SAB No. 104
and EITF Issue 00-21, the Company deferred thenfillbn up-front payment that was received from @tagi. This deferred revenue began to
be amortized to revenue in April 2007 and will doaé through December 2018. In December 2007, tragany received a $7 million
milestone payment from Shionogi for their initiatiof a Phase Il clinical trial with i.v. peramivir.

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS81 January 2007, the Company was awarded a fouregdract from HHS to
develop its influenza neuraminidase inhibitor, peikdr, for the treatment of seasonal and life-tie@#ng influenza, including avian flu. The
contract commits $102.6 million to support manufisicty, process validation, clinical studies andeothroduct approval requirements for
peramivir. The contract with HHS is defined asandard cost-plus-fixed-fee contract. That is, ten@any is entitled to receive
reimbursement for all costs incurred in accordanmitle the contract provisions that are related ®dkevelopment of peramivir plus a fixed fee,
or profit.

In January 2008, we announced that the dem&dap cost of our peramivir program to anticipateadpict approval would cost in excess of
the $102.6 million contract since the developméan ffor peramivir had changed from that outlinedhie original proposal to HHS. HHS has
indicated that they will fund certain elements af cevised program, including the ongoing Phase listudy evaluating peramivir in
hospitalized subjects, the planning and conduth@fiplanned Phase Il study of i.m. peramivir, dr@rhanufacturing and toxicology
components of the program. Each of these elemastsecific HHS funding limits and any costs oghie approved amounts by HHS may
be the responsibility of the Company. The origicattract of $102.6 million and the four year teemain unchanged.

Green Cross Corporation (“Green Cross'ln June 2006, the Company entered into an agreewiinGreen Cross to develop and
commercialize peramivir in Korea. Under the terrhthe agreement, Green Cross will be responsiblalfaevelopment, regulatory, and
commercialization costs in Korea. The Company ezl one-time license fee and may also receivedidvent payments as well as royalties
on product sales of peramivir. In addition, the @amy will share in any profits resulting from thedesof peramivir to the Korean government
for stockpiling purposes. Furthermore, Green Crafipay the Company a premium over its cost tomyperamivir for development and any
future marketing of peramivir products in Koreaalecordance with SAB No. 104 and EITF Issue 00#24 Company deferred the up-front
payment that was received from Green Cross. THeraa revenue began to be amortized to revenuaigti®P06 and will continue through
November 200¢

Mundipharma International Holdings Limited (“Mundiprma”). In February 2006, the Company entered into an skahroyalty bearing
right and license agreement with Mundipharma ferdbvelopment and commercialization of the Compmalggdd PNP inhibitor, forodesine
HCI, for use in oncology. Under the terms of thesagent, Mundipharma obtained rights to forodebiGéin markets across Europe, Asia,
and Australasia in exchange for a $10 million ugnfrpayment. Mundipharma will share 50% of the doented out of pocket development
costs incurred by the Company in respect of theeotitand planned trials as of the effective datdhefagreement provided that Mundipharsa’
maximum contribution to these trials shall be $lilion. In addition, Mundipharma will conduct aduibal clinical trials at their own cost up
a maximum of $15 million. The license providesfisiure event payments for achieving specified dgwelent, regulatory and commercial
events (including certain sales level amounts failhg a product’s launch) for certain indications.addition, the Company will receive
royalties based on a percentage of net producs,saldch varies depending upon when certain ingtinatreceive NDA approval in a major
market country and can vary by country dependintherpatent coverage or sales of generic compauaraparticular country. Generally, all
payments under the agreement are nonrefundableamdreditable, but they are subject to audit. Cohenpany licensed forodesine HCI and
other PNP inhibitors from AECOM and IRL and will ewgublicense payments to these third parties ongfrent payment, event payments,
and royalties received by the Company from Mundipta
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For five years, Mundipharma will have a rigiifirst negotiation on existing backup PNP inhilog the Company develops through Phas
in oncology, but any new PNP inhibitors will be exat from this agreement and the Company will retdimights to such compounds. The
Company retained the rights to forodesine HCI enthS. and Mundipharma is obligated by the term&®fagreement to use commercially
reasonable efforts to develop the licensed proiutte territory specified by the agreement. Theeament will continue for the commercial
life of the licensed products, but may be termiddig either party following an uncured materialdaie by the other party or in the event the
pre-existing third party license with AECOM and IRkpires. It may be terminated by Mundipharma up@mlays written notice without cause
or under certain other conditions as specifiechendgreement and all rights, data, materials, mtscand other information would be transfe
back to the Company at no cost. In the event thagamy terminates the agreement for material deautisolvency, the Company could have
to pay Mundipharma 50% of the costs of any indepahdata owned by Mundipharma in accordance withte¢hms of the agreement.

In accordance with SAB No. 104 and EITF 1s80e1, the Company deferred the $10 million up-fijoeyment that was received from
Mundipharma in February 2006. This deferred reveregan to be amortized to revenue February 2006&vdhend in October 2017, which is
the date of expiration for the last-to-expire patovered by the agreement. In accordance with E$§&e 99-19 and EITF Issue 01-14, the
costs reimbursed by Mundipharma for the current@adned trials of forodesine HCI are recordedeagmnue when the expense is incurred up
to the $10 million limit stipulated in the agreermen

The Company is currently in dispute with Mysttirma regarding the contractual obligations ofpies with respect to certain costs
related to the manufacturing and development afdesine HCL. Notwithstanding, the Company doesietieve that it is responsible for any
of the disputed amounts. The Company is engageddning discussion to resolve this dispute. Theimam potential exposure to the
Company is estimated to be approximately $5 mil(@oproximately 3.4 million euro). Because of thelipinary nature of the discussions, no
amounts have been accrued as of December 31, 2007.

F.Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd. and Hoffman-La Roche (fRoche”). In November 2005, the Company entered into an ekauicense with
Roche for the development and commercializatiotnefCompany’s second generation PNP inhibitor, B&2R8, for the prevention of acute
rejection in transplantation and for the treatn@frautoimmune diseases. Under the terms of theeaggat, Roche obtained worldwide rights to
BCX-4208 in exchange for a $25 million up-front pagnt and a $5 million payment as reimbursemend fanited supply of material during
the first 24 months of the collaboration. Accordinghe terms of the license, there could alsovemepayments for achieving specified
development, regulatory and commercial milestoireduding sales level milestones following a protitaunch) for certain indications. In
addition, the Company will receive royalties basad percentage of net product sales, which vdepgnding upon when certain indications
receive NDA approval in a major market country aad vary by country depending on the patent coveaagales of generic compounds in a
particular country. The Company licensed this commgband other PNP inhibitors from AECOM and IRL avil owe sublicense payments to
these third parties on the upfront payment, fuauent payments, and royalties received by the Cognfia the sublicense of these inhibitors.

Roche will have a right of first negotiatiamder certain conditions, on existing backup PN#bitors the Company develops through Pt
IIb in transplant rejection and autoimmune diseglsesany new PNP inhibitors will be exempt fronmstagreement and the Company will
retain all rights to such compounds. The Compatgins the right to co-promote BCX-4208 in the Ud.several indications. Roche has
certain obligations under the terms of the agreentense commercially reasonable efforts to devatognufacture and commercialize the
licensed product. The agreement may be terminategither party following an uncured material breagithe other party or may be either
fully or partially terminated by Roche without causnder certain conditions and all rights, dataens, products and other information
would be transferred to the Company at no cost.

In accordance with SAB No. 104 and EITF 1s80e21, the Company recorded deferred revenue of$Bidn related to the Roche
collaboration. This deferred revenue began to bertired to revenue in October 2006, when the INB wansferred to Roche, and will end in
August 2023, which is the date of expiration fag thst-to-expire patent covered by the agreement.

Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva @nsity and Industrial Research, Ltish June 2000, the Company licensed a series of
potent inhibitors of PNP from AECOM and IRL. Thadkedrug candidates from this collaboration are #esmme HCI™ and BCX-4208. The
Company has obtained worldwide exclusive rights to
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develop and ultimately distribute these, or anyentdrug candidates that might arise from reseancthese inhibitors. The Company has
agreed to pay certain milestone payments for fullereelopment of these inhibitors, certain royaltassales of any resulting product, and to
share in future payments received from other tpady partners, if any. In addition, the Compangead to pay an annual license fee that is
non-refundable, but is creditable against actugdlt@es and other payments due to AECOM and IRLs Bigreement may be terminated by the
Company at any time by giving 60 days advance aaidn the event of material uncured breach by ®ECand IRL.

Upon completion of the collaborations with Miiwharma for BCX-1777 and Roche for BCX-4208, tlwr(pany was obligated to pay
AECOM/IRL approximately $8.4 million. These paymemtere capitalized as a deferred expense and evéhiortized into expense in
proportion to the revenue recognized from the rethpe agreements.

The University of Alabama at Birminghairhe Company currently has agreements with UABrifluenza neuraminidase and complement
inhibitors. Under the terms of these agreements3 pArformed specific research for the Company farrefor research payments and license
fees. UAB has granted the Company certain righentodiscoveries in these areas resulting fromaresedeveloped by UAB or jointly
developed with the Company. The Company has adcepdy royalties on sales of any resulting procdunt to share in future payments
received from other third-party partners. The Conyplaas completed the research under the UAB agmatsiriEhese two agreements have
initial 25-year terms, are automatically renewdblefive-year terms throughout the life of the lpstent and are terminable by the Company
upon three months notice and by UAB under certaigumstances. There is currently no activity betwtee Company and UAB on these
agreements, but when the Company licenses thisddmy, such as in the case of the Shionogi an@G@ross agreements, or commercialize
products related to these programs, we will owdiseise fees or royalties on amounts we receive.

Emory University (“Emory”).In June 2000, the Company licensed intellectugbgry from Emory related to the hepatitis C polyaser
target associated with hepatitis C viral infectiddader the original terms of the agreement, tiseaech investigators from Emory provided the
Company with materials and technical insight ifte target. The Company has agreed to pay Emonjties/an sales of any resulting product
and to share in future payments received from dthiegt party partners, if any. The Company can teate this agreement at any time by gi
90 days advance notice.

Novartis Corporation (“Novartis”).The Company granted Novartis, formerly Ciba-Geigygoration, an option in 1990 to acquire
exclusive licenses to a class of inhibitors aridiogn research performed by the Company by Febrli@®l. The option was exercised and a
$500,000 fee was paid to the Company in 1993. Mikespayments are due upon approval of a new gplication. The Company will also
receive royalties based upon a percentage of ehlasy resultant products. Up to $300,000 of thiéailfee received is refundable if sales of
any resultant products are below specified levetstzas been recorded as deferred revenue. Thisragre has been inactive for several years.

Note 11 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accountiren8ards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Findnsi@ounting Standards No. 15Fair
Value Measuremen(sStatement No. 157”). The standard provides enbdmuidance for using fair value to measure assetdiabilities and
also responds to investorgquests for expanded information about the exttemthich companies measure assets and liabilitiésravalue, the
information used to measure fair value, and thectf fair value measurements on earnings. Whéestandard applies whenever other
standards require (or permit) assets or liabilittebe measured at fair value, it does not exphedise of fair value in any new circumstances.
Statement No. 157 is effective for financial stagens issued for fiscal years beginning after Novenib, 2007, and interim periods within
those fiscal years. Management of the Companyatuating the impact of this standard, but doesamtitipate that it will have a significant
impact on its financial statements.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued Statemefirancial Accounting Standards No. 138e Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (“Statement No. 159”). Statement No9l&llows companies to voluntarily choose, at spediélection dates, to measure
any financial assets and financial liabilities @t f/alue (the “fair value option”). The electianrmade on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
is irrevocable. If the fair value option is elecfed an instrument, all unrealized gains or logedair value for that instrument shall be reported
in earnings at each subsequent reporting dateerS¢gat No. 159 is effective for fiscal years thagibeafter November 15, 2007. Managemet
the Company is evaluating the impact of this stashdaut does not anticipate that it will have angfigant impact on its financial statements.

In June 2007, the Emerging Issues Task FOEI& ") reached a final consensus on Emerging Isstesk Force Issue 07-3, Accounting for
NonrefundabléAdvance Payments for Goods or Services Receivadsiin Future Research and Development ActivitiesTF Issue 07-3").
The EITF concluded that nonrefundable advance patgyfer goods or services to be received in theréufor use in research and developn
activities should be deferred and capitalized. ddggitalized amounts should be expensed as thedal@ods are delivered or the services are
performed. If a company’s expectations change, shahit does not expect the goods will be delidesethe services rendered, the capitalized
nonrefundable advance payments should be chargedgnse. EITF Issue 07-3 is effective for new i@mts entered into during the fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2007, includiterim periods within those fiscal years. This sensus may not be applied to eat
periods and early adoption is not permitted. Culyethe Company charges nonrefundable advance eatgfor future research and
development activities to expense as payments adenTherefore, the adoption of this standardheilte an impact on the Company’s
financial statements when adopted.

Note 12 — Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) (In thousands, except per share)

First Second Third Fourth

2007 Quarters

Revenue! $9,15¢ $ 13,44« $ 20,46 $ 28,17:

Net loss (8,825 (6,969) (20,989 (2,289

Net loss per shai (.30 (.29 (.32) (.0€)
2006 Quarters

Revenue! $ 771 $ 1,55¢ $ 1,79( $ 2,092

Net loss (7,882 (20,089) (15,609 (20,050

Net loss per shat (:27) (.35 (.53 (-39
2005 Quarters

Revenue! $ 41 $ 58 $ 32 $ 21

Net loss (5,645 (5,64¢) (7,645 (7,167

Net loss per shat (.29 (.22 (.29 (.27)

Net loss and net loss per share each yeadiffay from the total of the individual quarterselto rounding.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm on Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance slhé&ioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of Decer33¢2007 and 2006, and the related
statements of operations, stockholders’ equityaasth flows for each of the three years in the pegitcded December 31, 2007. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compamgdsagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wittstaadards of the Public Company Accounting Ovéaidgpard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refdrto above present fairly, in all material respethe financial position of BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. at December 31, 2007 and, 20@bthe results of its operations and its cashdIfor each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.Sageally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial staets, in 2006, the Company changed its methodaufiatting for stock-based compensation
upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accountitgndards No. 123 (revised 2008hare Based Payment

We also have audited, in accordance with thedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.’s internal control over ficiahreporting as of December 31, 2007, based iberier established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report dated March 4, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLF

Birmingham, Alabama
March 4, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm on Internal Control

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inctariral control over financial reporting as of Det®m31, 2007, based on criteria
established itnternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission (i
COSO criteria). BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.’sxagement is responsible for maintaining effectiterinal control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriatecontrol over financial reporting included iretaccompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigternal control over financial reporti
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfg&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordwer financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiagutne design and operating effectiveness oftiratecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftaipeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdaces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ntaimed, in all material respects, effective intéeantrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the balance sheets
of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of Decembe2B8D7 and 2006, and the related statements o&tpes, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeehBecember 31, 2007 of BioCryst Pharmaceuticats,dnd our report dated March 4, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Birmingham, Alabama
March 4, 2008
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure controls ammt@dures that are designed to ensure that infoomeglating to BioCryst Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. required to be disclosed in our periodic fisnunder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, anded (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported in a timely erammder the Exchange Act of 1934. We carried aw\aluation as required by paragraph
(b) of Rule 13a-15 or Rule 15d-15 under the Excleafigt,, under the supervision and with the paréitign of management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officef the effectiveness of the design and operaifaur disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15 utidefExchange Act). Based upon that evaluationCthief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that, as of December28ID7, our disclosure controls and proceduregfieetive. The Company believes that its
disclosure controls and procedures will ensureitifatmation required to be disclosed in the repdited or submitted by it under the Excha
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and repuiithth the time periods specified in the rules &mans of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and include controls and procedureigded to ensure that information required to beldsed by BioCryst in such reports is
accumulated and communicated to our managemehiding the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer @tdef Financial Officer of
BioCryst, as appropriate to allow timely decisioagarding required disclosure.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Ithe {Company”) is responsible for establishing amaintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting and for the assessmeth®effectiveness of internal control over finahecggporting. As defined by the Securities and
Exchange Commission, internal control over finah@aorting is a process designed by, or undestipervision of our principal executive and
principal financial officers and effected by ourdd of Directors, management and other persormekdvide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the pegption of the consolidated financial statementscicordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Our internal control over financial reportirsgsupported by written policies and procedures (hiapertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faglect our transactions and dispositions of ouetsg2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepiagation of the consolidated financial statemengcordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and exjperes of BioCryst are being made only in accor@awith authorizations of our management
and directors; and (3) provide reasonable assurayzeding prevention or timely detection of unawited acquisition, use or disposition of
our assets that could have a material effect ordhsolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of our aarfinancial statements, management has under@mkassessment of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of [@etber 31, 2007, based on criteria establishedt@rrial Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission (the COSO Frameworlgndfjement’'s assessment
included an
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evaluation of the design of our internal controépfinancial reporting and testing of the operatiozffectiveness of those controls.

Based on this assessment, management hasideddhat as of December 31, 2007, our internakrcbaver financial reporting was
effective. Management believes our internal contkar financial reporting will provide reasonabgsarance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordante WiS. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registgoatilic accounting firm that audited our financitdtements included in this report, has is:
an attestation report on the Company’s internatrebover financial reporting, a copy of which appe on page 64 of this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our internata@aover financial reporting that occurred durithg quarter ended December 31, 2007 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdincial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None

PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

Incorporated by reference from our definitfi@xy Statement to be filed in connection with sbécitation of proxies for our 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference from our definitRmxy Statement to be filed in connection with sbécitation of proxies for our 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Incorporated by reference from our definitixy Statement to be filed in connection with sbécitation of proxies for our 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

Incorporated by reference from our definitRiexy Statement to be filed in connection with sbécitation of proxies for our 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference from our definitixy Statement to be filed in connection with sbécitation of proxies for our 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements

Page in
Form 10K
The following financial statements appear in Itewf is Form 1-K:

Balance Sheets at December 31, 2007 and 49
Statements of Operations for the years ended Desegih 2007, 2006 and 20 50
Statements of Stockhold’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 20@06200¢ 51
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Desxe®ih 2007, 2006 and 20 52
Notes to Financial Statemer 53 to 68
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimg on Financial Statemer 69
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimg on Internal Contrc 70

No financial statement schedules are included Isecthe information is either provided in the fin@hstatements or is not required under
related instructions or is inapplicable and sudiedales therefore have been omitted.

(b) Exhibits. See Index of Exhibits.

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, tlegiBtrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized on this 4th day of March, 2008.
BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/Jon P. Stonehous
Jon P. Stonehous
Chief Executive Office
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934 this report has been sigwyetid following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities indicated on MakcP008:

Signature Title(s)
/s/Jon P. Stonehou President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc
(Jon P. Stonehous
/s/Stuart Gran Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Stuart Grant
/s/J. Claude Benne Chief Operating Officer and Direct
(J. Claude Bennett, M.D
/sIMichael A. Darwir Principal Accounting Officer and Treasu
(Michael A. Darwin)
/sIStephen R. Bigg: Director

(Stephen R. Biggar, M.D., Ph.C

/s/William W. Featheringil Director
(William W. Featheringill)

/s/John L. Higgin: Director
(John L. Higgins

/s/Zola P. Horovit: Director
(Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.D.

/s/Beth C. Seidenbel Director
(Beth C. Seidenberg, M.D

/slJoseph H. Sherrill, J Director
(Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr

/s/William M. Spence Director
(William M. Spencer, IlI)

/s/Randolph C. Stes Director
(Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.L
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Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1&

10.2&

10.3&

10.4&

10.5&

10.€

10.7&

10.8¢4

10.9*

10.10&

10.11&

10.1%

10.1:

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Sequentially
Numbered
Description Page

Third Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Regint. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1the® Company’s
Form &K filed December 22, 200!

Certificate of Amendment to the Third Restated ifleate of Incorporation of Registrant. Incorpordigy referenci
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Compa’s Form K filed July 24, 2007

Bylaws of Registrant as amended and restated effeldovember 6, 2007. Incorporated by referendéxoibit 3.1 tc
the Compan’s Form K filed November 13, 2007

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, bypatwleen the Company and American Stock Transférust
Company, as Rights Agent, which includes the Jeati€ of Designation for the Series B Junior Piuéiting
Preferred Stock as Exhibit A and the form of Rigbestificate as Exhibit B. Incorporated by referene Exhibit 4.1
to the Compar’s Form A filed June 17, 200z

Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of Augu087. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2hef
Compan’s Form 1-Q filed August 9, 2007

Annual Incentive Plar 77
Executive Relocation Polic! 82

Amendment to Employment Letter Agreement for St@ent Dated Jul 84
23, 2007

Form of Notice of Grant of Nc-Employee Director Automatic Stock Optir 87
and Stock Option Agreemel

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option and Stogition Agreement 93

Amendment #3 to the Agreement between BioCrystrheeuticals, Inc
and the Department of Health and Human Servicésddactober 2, 200°

Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restatedigffédarch 2007. Incorporated by reference to EiHib.1 of the
Compan’s Form 1-Q filed August 9, 2007

Agreement dated January 3, 2007, between BioChatrPaceuticals, Inc. and the Department of Healthtduman
Services, as amended by Amendment number 1 datedrya3, 2007 and Amendment number 2 dated Maady?
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thenpany s Form 1-Q filed August 9, 2007

License, Development and Commercialization Agredrdated as of February 28, 2007, by and betwee
Company and Shionogi & Co., Ltd. Incorporated bigmence to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 16+
May 10, 2007

Employment Letter Agreement dated April 2, 2007 abgl between the Company and David McCullough.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to thenpany s Form 1-Q filed May 10, 2007

Amended and Restated Employment Letter Agreemeatidéebruary 14, 2007, by and between the Compaahy a
Jon P. Stonehouse. Incorporated by reference thERD.12 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 2006, filed March 14, 20

Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP ahlAlabama Limited Liability Company and the Retgint
for office/warehouse space. Incorporated by refezen Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for second
quarter ending June 30, 2000 filed August 8, 2

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Augu20@7, by and between Riverchase Capital LLC, aidior

limited liability company, Stow Riverchase, LLCFéorida limited liability company, as successordemd to RBP,
LLC and the Company. Incorporated by referencexuaitiit 10.4 of the Compars Form 1-Q
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Number

10.1¢

10.15&

10.1¢

10.174

10.18&

10.194

10.204

10.21

10.22

23

31.1

31.z

32.1

32.2

Sequentially
Numbered
Description Page

filed August 9, 2007

Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated asgiiigi®, 2007, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceutitats
and each of the Investors identified on the sigrapages thereto. Incorporated by reference todibéhil of the
Compan’s Form K filed August 7, 2007

Employment letter agreement between BioCryst Pheentécals, Inc. and Stuart Grant dated July 237200
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of therpany s Form &K filed July 26, 2007

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februa30DB, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Baker Bros
Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund Il, L.P., 8aBros. Investments Il, L.P., Baker Biotech Fuh¢), L.P.,
Baker/Tisch Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech Fuhd_LP., Baker Biotech Fund I, L.P., Baker Biotdeand Il (Z),
L.P. and 14159, L.P. Incorporated by referencextuittit 4.1 to the Compar's Form K filed February 17, 200

Development and License Agreement dated as of Bepfy 2006, by and between BioCryst Pharmacestitad.
and Mundipharma International Holdings Limited (fRors omitted pursuant to request for confiderttiehtment.)
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany's Form -K/A filed May 2, 2006.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated byaeéerto Exhibit 99.1 to the Compi's Form {8 Registratior
Statement filed June 14, 2002 (Registration N0-90582).

License Agreement dated as of June 27, 2000, byerwhg Albert Einstein College of Medicine, Indisdt
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July 26, 2002 and the Second Amendment Agreemeed @ of April 15, 2005. (Portions omitted purdutan
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November 30, 200¢
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the Compan’'s Form K filed December 16, 200!
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December 16, 200!

Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Registerdali®édccounting Firm. 10z
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 104
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 10t

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanks+@ct of 10€
2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 107
2002.
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BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Annual IncentivenPla

Effective January 1, 2007
Plan Summary
Objective

The BioCryst Pharmaceuticals Annual Incentive RFlR) is designed to provide senior leaders withirexentive to achieve critical Company
objectives and to perform on an individual bastse RIP offers Executive Directors and above an ojpmity to share in the Company’s
success on an annual basis.

Overview
As a participant in the AIP, you are eligible tee&ve an annual incentive award based on two padoce components:

» BioCrysf's performance relative to annual business objectgtablished for the plan ye

» Your individual performance during the plan yeafiged as the degree to which you achieve youwiddal objectives and carry o
ongoing responsibilities, and the competenciesdbiens/skills) you exhibit as you work toward thehgvement of result:

Your award opportunity is expressed as an anngehitive range, which is stated as a percentagewflyase salary. Your incentive range
includes a minimum, a target, and a maximum. Ingenargets are established based on competitaetipe and vary by organizational level.
Based on BioCryst's actual performarared your performance, your actual incentive award in giwen year may vary from $0 (0% of base
salary)to a maximum incentive opportunity established forryorganizational level.

Awards are typically paid during mid-March in theay following the completion of the plan year. Ripants must be employed by BioCryst
on the date of payout to eligible to receive anrawa
Annual Incentive Opportunity

At the beginning of each plan year, eligible empley are notified of their participation in the nglan year and the annual incentive range
based on their position’s assigned organizatiana!l Annual incentive targets and ranges varyrggmizational level and are expressed as a
percentage of base salary. (An individual’'s basargas of the end of the plan year is used fozudation purposes.) A range includes a
minimum (0%), a target, and a maximum.

Performance Components and Measures
Annual incentive awards are based on two performaoemponents: BioCryst’'s Performance and IndividReformance. The following
provides further details so that you can understaovd the Plan works.

Company Performance Component

At the beginning of the plan year, BioCryst estslindis a set of critical performance objectives tti@iCompany must strive to achieve during
the year. These objectives represent BioCryst'ssganad reflect the Company’s top priorities for than year. The objectives typically vary
from year-to-year and focus on research milestanésoutcomes, clinical development milestones, pgdional processes, financial targets,
and other short-term objectives and initiativese Bhjectives are reviewed and approved by
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BioCryst's Board of Directors.

At the completion of the plan year, BioCryst's mperiance is assessed against the established aisinjestives for the plan year. This
assessment is based on the extent to which Bio€ystual objectives are achieved — either meaihjgctives, partially meeting objectives,
exceeding objectives, or not meeting objectivess Bksessment serves as a basis for the deternti@rannual incentive pool available for
eligible plan participants.

If BioCryst meets all its objectives, the pool aughly equal to the sum of the individual targetsthe eligible participants in the Plan. As a
simplistic example, if there were ten participantthe AIP who all have a base salary of $100,00atarget of 20%, the annual incentive
pool if the Company met all its objectives wouldrbaghly $200,000 ( $100,000 x .20 x 10 ). Thislpuay be adjusted upward or downward
based on actual Company performance during theyadan

Individual Performance Component

As a participant, your annual incentive is deteedibbased on your overall performance during the péar: the degree to which you achieve
your annual objectives and carry out your ongoggponsibilities, and the competencies (behavidhs)siou exhibit in the process
achieving results. This year-end assessment isiigapin your Performance Plan for the year as agf@ioCryst’'s Performance Management
Program.

The individual incentive target is only relevantemhBioCryst achieves all of its objectives. Foraryin which the Company does achieve all
its objectives, an employee who is rated as afigtierformer” would be eligible to receive an awatar close to target. Under BioCryst’s
Performance Management Program, a “strong perfdrimelefined as:

» Achieved all individual objective

» Most competencies are stro

» Fully meets all defined performance expectationgasfition

» Consistently carries out ongoing responsibilitisglafined by rol
» Strong contributions consistently made during thar

» Solid performer, someone you can always cour

Incentive Award Calculation

Once the overall annual incentive pool is determhjrtiee individual incentive targets are adjustesklleon actual Company performance for the
plan year. Individual incentive awards are detegdibased on the adjusted incentive targets andidudil performance.

Incentive awards will vary relative to the incemtiranges, with differentiation based on individpaiformance. In all cases the approved
incentive pool must be maintained. In addition, itidividual maximums (expressed as a percentapasd salary) always represent the
maximum incentive possible.

Annual incentive awards are typically paid by Mafléhof the year following the completion of themlgear and are subject to applicable tax
withholding based on the current tax laws at theetof distribution.
lllustration

To illustrate, assume an individual’s annual inoentange is: 0% (minimum), 20% (target) and 25%ximum). If, based on BioCryst's
performance, the annual incentive pool is deterthinebe 75% of the target incentive pool, thenitigividual’s target is adjusted accordingly

to 15% ( 20% x .75)) for the plan year. In ordartfie employee to receive an incentive at rougbBpLhe or she would need to be assessed as
a “strong performer” under the Performance ManagerReogram. The maximum incentive possible rematr5%.
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Administrative Information
Plan Participation

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals employees whose posidoasissigned to organizational levels 1, 2 andk8c¢#ive Director and above) are eligi
to participate in the BioCryst Annual Incentive ®la

New eligible employees hired on November 1 throtighend of the plan year will wait until the nelampyear to participate. New eligit
employees who join BioCryst prior to November 1 aligible for a pro rata incentive award basedtrentime period the employee was
employed by BioCryst during the year. Such prorai@dulations are made based on whole months (msmibunted in calculation if new hire
date is the 1% or earlier).

Changes in Employment

If you separate from BioCryst during the plan ydae to death, retirement, or permanent disability, are eligible to receive a pro rata award
based on your base salary on the date of sepaiiiimg the plan year which you were considered&ive employee and the number of wt
months actively worked. If you voluntarily or inwsitarily terminate employment with BioCryst beféhe annual incentive awards are paid,
you will forfeit all incentive award opportunitiesegardless of individual and Company performanaénd the plan yea

Promotions and Demotions

If an eligible employee is promoted or demoted tiredchange in position results in a change in argdional level, BioCryst will calculate the
employee’s incentive based on the annual inceméinges in the old and new positions. This pro cataulation rounds to the number of full
months in each position.

Questions and Answers

Question: Will BioCryst's Company performance objexs change from year-to-year?

Answer: Most likely. Because the Annual Incentive Plan &hart-term plan, it focuses on the achievemeibusiness and individual
objectives for a specific plan year. Although theng financial measure, performance measure ortailesnay be used from year-to-year,
performance objectives and achievements will babdished and assessed for the specific plan year.

Question: Will BioCryst establish an annual incentve pool for every plan year?

Answer: The annual incentive pool is determined based o€Bist’'s performance during the year and the exteathich Company objectives
are achieved. If BioCryst does not achieve its dbjes and performance thresholds are not attamegpool will be established and no annual
incentive awards will be earned. Conversely, if@igst exceeds performance expectations, the pdioba/set at a level above the target
incentive pool. In all cases, the distribution nffancentive pool is based on the performance efitdividuals participating in the AIP.

BioCryst's Board of Directors also reserves thétrigot to establish an incentive pool or to redileepool if the financial health of the
Company is in jeopardy, regardless of performanagend a plan year.

Question: Will | have to pay taxes on my annual inentive award?

Answer: After the completion of a plan year, awards ara tthetermined based on the extent to which BioGngtits objectives and based on
your performance during the year. If you are eliggifor an award, your award will be paid and wal $ubject to applicable withholding ta>
based on the current tax laws at the time of distion.

Question: Am | eligible for an annual incentive ad/i& my performance warrants being placed on af@enance Improvement Plan?
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Answer: No annual incentive is paid for any individual wherforms poorly and is assessed as a “weak perfgrmegardless of whether the
individual is placed on a Performance Improvemeéan Br not. If such an employee subsequently imgsdvs or her performance, the
employee will become eligible for an incentive lire following plan year.

Question: If | leave BioCryst before awards aredyam | entitled to receive a portion of the Annlredentive Award?
Answer: If you voluntarily or involuntarily leave the Compabefore payment of the award, you will forfeituy@ntire annual incentive awa
If, however, you leave the Company due to otherucirstances, different rules may apply (see above).

Question: What happens if | am on a leave of abseaeduring the plan year?
Answer:Awards are prorated based on the time actively worked and time spent on a paid leave of absence. Any period of time on an unpaid
leave of absence will not be counted and the award will be prorated accordingly.

A Final Word

This Plan Summary describes the provisions of i®€B/st Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Annual Incentive PRinCryst Pharmaceuticals has the full
right to amend, suspend or terminate the planatiare. The Compensation Committee of the Boardthasight to interpret, modify or adjust
any Plan provision. Enrollment in this plan is agjuarantee of employment.

For illustration purposes, a hypothetical emploged award have been used in this plan summaryaRatuards, if any, will be determined by
the performance of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals andritligidual participant.
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EXHIBIT 10.2

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Executive Relocation Policy

Individuals who are offered employment with BioQrifharmaceuticals to fill a position in organizatiblevel 3 or above and who live greater
than 45 miles from a BioCryst location are eligifile relocation benefits under the Executive ReimeaPolicy. The following summarizes the
components of the policy.

Closing Cost Reimbursement — Departure Home

BioCryst will reimburse normal closing costs oncgl@sing statement is submitted to the Companymiibclosing costs related to the sales of
your previous home includ

. Title fees including title examination, title trdasand binde
. Attorney fee<— related to title transfer on

. Tax service and tax registration fees, if requivgdstate

. Documentary stamps, if need

. Inspections and surveys, only if required by Idaat

Buyer Value Option (under consideration; subject tocost analysis)

BioCryst will provide you with a home sale optidmdugh Cartus called the Buyer Value Option, whichimed at simplifying the home sale
process for you. Prior to listing your home youlw#éed to work with Cartus to include an exclusitause and to register your agent. By
utilizing the Buyer Value Option, you are providedh numerous benefits and services. Realtors Casion and Closing Costs (normal for
the area) will be billed directly to BioCryst by a#s. Once you have sold your home, Cartus wilti@at with you and assume the sale. You
will not need to attend the closing with the buy@artus or its representative attends the closiitig tve buyer. Further details will be provided
to you on this proces§.f this option isused, the language will change in appropriate sectionsto reflect coverage of closing costs and
reimbursement to Cartus, not employee.)

Realtor Fees — Departure Home

BioCryst will reimburse normal closing costs indlugl realtor commissions on the sale of your fornesidence. Commissions will not exceed
what is local custom for the area, up to a maxinudfi®%b.

Closing Cost Reimbursement — Purchasing a Home iné\v Location

Normal closing costs related to the purchase avaimome include the following items, subject to@imum of 2% of the purchase pric
. Appraisal and appraisal inspecti

. Credit repori

. Tax service fe

. Document preparatic

. Settlement or closing fe

. Title fees including title insurance, binder, tileordination, abstract or title sea

. Escrow documentation fe

. Notary and attorney, if need:

. Deed and mortgage transfer f¢

. City, county and/or state stam

. Endorsement

. Inspections, only if required by local law (fee altbnot exceed normal rate for ar
. Power of Attorney document preparation and ret

. Underwriting fee

Non-reimbursable purchase closing costs include:

. Prepaid property taxes, insurance or inte
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. Construction loan procurement expense and int
. Mortgage loan credit insuran

. Discount/buy down points or fe:

. Home warranty insurance progr:

. Private mortgage insuran

. Expenses normally charged to the se

House Hunting Trip

One house hunting trip is available to locate a@eal residence before relocating. This trip isvghed for you and your spouse for up to seven
days. This includes coach airfare, car rental, maatl lodging. Trip should be made over a weekentdst airfare available.

Return Trips

BioCryst will the cover your coach airfare assasibtvith making return trips to your current cityreéidence every other weekend for a three-
month period from your hire date.

Household Goods

Arrangements with a moving company of BioCryst’sick will be made to pack, load, unload and unpextk household goods. Storage of
household goods is available for up to 90 daystit a personal residence is located, whichevégss. You will be invoiced and responsible
for payment for storage costs beyond 90 days.

Final Move — Includes Meals, Lodging, Mileage or Aifare

Coach air travel to your new location will be prdeidl for you and your spouse. If you drive, reastinabd actual traveling expenses such as
lodging, meals and mileage using the most diraateravill be reimbursed at the prevailing IRS rdfieals shall not exceed $50 per day per
person.

Temporary Housing

Temporary housing will be provided to you for up@days or until a personal residence is locatbichever is less. BioCryst will work with
you to locate a suitable c-bedroom apartment or temporary residence.

Rental Car While in Temporary Housing

Upon arrival at destination, a rental car will beydded for up to 7 days. If you drive to your neation, this benefit will not be provided.

Relocation Allowance

A one-time payment equal to one month’s base sadatyject to a maximum of $5,000, is provided ta ywapply toward miscellaneous
incidental incurred during your relocation that yame not otherwise reimbursed. Examples of suddémtal items include:

. Utility hook-up/installation

. Driver's license and automobile registrati
. Retuning of pianc

. Pet boarding fee

. Cable hoo-up

. Trash remova

Repayment of Relocation

If you voluntarily terminate your employment fromioBryst for any reason before you have completezhvtgvmonths of active employment
from your hire date, you will be responsible foinmbursing the Company for any relocation expenségd o you or incurred by the Company
on your behalf, on a pro-rated monthly basis.
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EXHIBIT 10.3

November 7, 200

Mr. Stuart Grant
240 Summer Street
Norwell, MA 02061

RE: Amendment to Employment Letter Agreement for Stiart Grant Dated July 23, 2007.

Dear Mr. Grant:

This letter amendment (the “Amendment”) effeetas of the date above, will serve to amendétted agreement dated July 23, 2007 (the
“Agreement”) regarding the terms and conditiongair employment with BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, [tice “Company”).

1. Section 2(c) of the Agreement shall be deleted its entirety and the following paragraphs shall ke substituted in lieu thereof:

2(c) In addition to the basic compensaset forth in (a) and (b) above, Employee shakiitled to receive such other benefits and
perquisites provided to other executive officer8mfCryst which benefits may include, without lititon, reasonable vacation (currently
4 weeks), sick leave, medical benefits, life insess and participation in profit sharing or retiemplans.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, the Company and the Employee hereby agaténtlieu of the standard execut
relocation policy provisions, the Employee will migin his current home in the Boston area and semuapartment in the Research Triangle
Park area and the Company agrees to provide tloaviah travel perquisites for the Employee under ttrms set forth below:

(i) Coverage of temporary living exses for a period of three months beginning onl&ee’s initial start date with the Company;

(i) Flight expenses for coach classel between Boston and Research Triangle Reurk period of three months beginning from
Employee’s initial employment with the Company;

(iii) Shipment of selected goodsfr8oston to Employee’s Research Triangle Park apant, in such amounts as to be reasonably
approved by Company;

(iv) Flight expenses for coach claasel from Research Triangle Park to Boston oeaery other week basis during the initial three-
year term of Employ¢'s contract, or until earlier termination of the ikgment; and

(v) Gross- up to cover taxes onithms listed above.

The parties further agree that the Company’s otitigavith respect to total travel expenses sehfart(iv) above shall not exceed $20,000.00
per year, with the first-year-period beginning oty 23, 2007.

If at any time during the Employee’s employmenthwilie Company as Chief Financial Officer, the hogsnarket improves such that
Employee is able to sell his residence in the Boatea, then upon agreement by both parties, Eraplmay relocate to the Research Triangle
Park area and take advantage of the executiveatgocpolicy in effect as of the date hereof; pded, however, that the total compensation
paid to
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Employee under such executive relocation policyl sfeareduced by the amount of total compensatiteady paid to Employee in travel
perquisites as set forth above.

2. All other terms and conditions of the Agreemenshall remain in full force and effect.

3. The Agreement together with this Amendment congutes the entire agreement between the parties rafing to the employment
of the Employee by the Company and there are no ters relating to such employment other than those camined in the Agreement, as
amended by this Amendment.

[Signature Page to Follow]

85




If the foregoing correctly sets forth our undersliag, please signify your acceptance of such téaynaxecuting this Agreement, thereby
signifying your assent, as indicated below.

Yours very truly,

/s/ Jon P. Stonehouse

Address:

2190 Parkway Lake Drive

Birmingham, Alabama 35244

AGREED AND ACCEPTED, as of thist7day of November, 2007

/s/ Stuart Grant

Address:

240 Summer Street
Norwell, MA 02061






EXHIBIT 10.4

BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF GRANT OF NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR
AUTOMATIC STOCK OPTION

Notice is hereby given of the following stomtion grant (the “Option”) to purchase shareshef Common Stock of BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) pursuanhtdutomatic grant program in effect under the Byg€CPharmaceuticals, Inc. Stock
Incentive Plan (the “Plan”):

Optionee:

Grant Date:

Option Price: $ per share

Number of Optioned Shart: shares

Expiration Date:

Type of Optior: Non-Statutory Stock Optio

Exercise Schedul:

Optionee understands that the Option is gdasibject to and in accordance with the expressst@nd conditions of the Plan and agrees to
be bound by and conform to the terms and conditidriBe Plan, the Plan Prospectus, this Notice raihGof Non-Employee Director
Automatic Stock Option and its accompanying Non-Eyge Director Stock Option Agreement. Optioneenaekledges that copies of the
Plan, the Plan Prospectus, and the Non-Employescir Stock Option Agreement have been made alaitalDptionee.

No Guarantee of Board Servitonthing in the Non-Employee Director Stock Optiogréement or the Plan shall confer upon the Optionee
the right to continue in the Service of the Compforyany period of specific duration or interferéwor otherwise restrict in any way the rig
of the Company or the stockholders to remove Opgdinom the Board in accordance with applicable law

By my signature below, | hereby acknowledgeeit of this Option granted on the Grant Date #jgetabove and issued to me under the
terms and conditions of the Plan.

Optionee BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
Address: By:
Dated: Name

Title:
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BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
WITNESSETH:

RECITALS

A. The Company has approved an autonogtion grant program under the Company’s Stockrtige Plan (the “Plan”) pursuant to
which the non-employee members of the Company’sdofDirectors (the “Board”) will receive automatption grants under the Plan.

B. Optionee is a n@mployee member of the Board, and this Agreemestésuted pursuant to, and is intended to carrgteupurpose
of, the Plan in connection with the automatic gi@mthis day of a stock option to purchase shafréseoCompany’s Common Stock under the
Plan.

C. The granted option is intended to Im@m@-statutory option which does moeet the requirements of Section 422 of the Interna
Revenue Code and is designed to provide Optiontteawineaningful incentive to serve as a membeneBoard.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows:

1. Grant of Option . Subject to and upon the terms and conditions s#t fio this Agreement, the Company hereby grant3ptionee,
as of the grant date (the “Grant Date”) specifiethie accompanying Notice of Grant of Non-Emplopéector Automatic Stock Option (the “
Grant Notic€"), a stock option to purchase up to that numbeshafres of the Company’s Common Stock (the “ OptioBhare¥) specified in
the Grant Notice. The Optioned Shares shall belasable from time to time during the option ternthatoption price per share (the “ Option
Price”) specified in the Grant Notice.

2. Option Term . This automatic option grant shall expire at theselof business on the Expiration Date specifiettiéenGrant Notice
(which shall be ten (10) years measured from ttenGDate), unless sooner terminated in accordaitbethis Agreement.

3. Limited Transferability . During the lifetime of the Optionee, this optiondéether with its tandem stock appreciation rigstgll be
exercisable only by the Optionee and shall notdségaable or transferable by the Optionee exce foansfer by will or by the laws of
descent and distribution following the Optioneegsmith. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this automafiion may, in connection with the
Optionee’s estate plan, be assigned in whole parhduring the during Optionee’s lifetime either(g as a gift to one or more members of
Optionee’s immediate family, to a trust in whichtf@pee and/or one or more such family members hace than fifty percent (50%) of the
beneficial interest or an entity in which more thidty percent (50%) of the voting interests arerad by Optionee and/or one or more such
family members, or (ii) pursuant to a domestictiels order. The assigned portion shall be exebtésanly by the person or persons who
acquire a proprietary interest in the option punsta such assignment. The terms applicable tasisggned portion shall be the same as thc
effect for this option immediately prior to sucts@gmment and shall be set forth in such documeastseid to the assignee as the Plan
Administrator may deem appropriate.

4. Exercisability . This option shall become exercisable for the OmibShares in installments as is specified in th@nGXotice. As th
option becomes exercisable for one or more instils) the installments shall accumulate and themghall remain exercisable for the
accumulated installments until the Expiration Datéhe sooner termination of the option term urttlier Agreement.

5. Cessation of Board ServiceShould Optionee cease to serve as a Board membanyaeason while holding this option, then
Optionee shall have the remainder of the ten (&@) yerm of this option in which to exercise suplian for any or all of the Optioned Shares
for which it is exercisable at the time of suchsag®n of Board service. This option shall immeeliaterminate and cease to be outstanding, at
the time of such




\

cessation of Board service, with respect to OptidBkares for which this Option is not otherwiséhat time exercisable. Upon the death of the
Optionee, whether resulting in cessation of Sergiceccurring thereafter, the personal represemtati the Optionee’s estate or the person or
persons to whom this Option is transferred purstatiie Optionee’s will or in accordance with thevs of descent and distribution may
exercise this Option for the remainder of the tHD) fyear term with respect to the Optioned Shasewhich the Option was exercisable at the
time of Optionee’s death.

6. Corporate Transaction.

(a) In the event of one or morehef following transactions (a “Corporate Transacion

(1) a merger or consolidatiomihich the Company is not the surviving entitycept for a transaction the principal purpose of
which is to change the State of the Company’s ipoxation,

(2) the sale, transfer or ottlisposition of all or substantially all of the asof the Company in liquidation or dissolutiontoé
Company, or

(3) any reverse merger in whiod Company is the surviving entity but in whidtgrities possessing more than fifty percent
(50%) of the total combined voting power of the Qamy’s outstanding securities are transferred tdere different from those who held such
securities immediately prior to such merger,

then the exercisability of this option (if outstamgiat the time) shall automatically acceleratéhed such option shall, immediately prior to the
specified effective date for the Corporate Trarisacthecome fully exercisable for all of the Op&anShares and may be exercised for all or
any portion of such shares.

(b) This option, to the extent nagydously exercised, shall terminate upon the comaation of the Corporate Transaction and cease
to be exercisable, unless it is expressly assumelebsuccessor corporation or parent thereob frevided by the terms of the Corporate
Transaction, Optionee shall receive a cash payoreatcount of such termination of this option, inaanount equal to the excess (if any) of
(A) the Fair Market Value (as defined below) of thptioned Shares subject to this option as of #ie df the Corporate Transaction, over
(B) the Option Price for such shares.

(c) In the event of a Change in Canfas defined in the Plan), the exercisabilitytoé option (if outstanding at the time) shall
automatically accelerate so that such option simfhediately prior to the specified effective dadethe Change in Control, become fully
exercisable for all of the Optioned Shares and begxercised for all or any portion of such shares.

(d) This Agreement shall not in amgy affect the right of the Company to adjust, asslfy, reorganize or otherwise make changes in
its capital or business structure or to merge, cliaete, dissolve, liquidate or sell or transfdraalany part of its business or assets.

7. Adjustment in Optioned Shares.

(a) In the event any change is madbhe Common Stock issuable under the Plan byreakany stock split, stock dividend,
recapitalization, combination of shares, excharfgdhares, or other change affecting the outstan@mgmon Stock as a class without receipt
of consideration, then appropriate adjustmentd leainade to (i) the total number and/or class ptidhed Shares subject to this option and
(i) the Option Price payable per share in ordeeftect such change and thereby preclude a didgicenlargement of benefits hereunder.

(b) If this option is to be assunoeds otherwise to remain outstanding after a Caf@Transaction, then this option shall be
appropriately adjusted to apply and pertain toninaber and class of securities which would have liesiable to the Optionee in the
consummation of such Corporate Transaction
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had the option been exercised immediately pricuith Corporate Transaction, and appropriate adgrasrshall also be made to the Option
Price payable per share, provided the aggregatei®ptice payable hereunder shall remain the same.

8. Privilege of Stock Ownership. The holder of this option shall not have any shalddr rights with respect to the Optioned Shares
until such individual shall have exercised the @ptand paid the Option Price.

9. Manner of Exercising Option.

(a) In order to exercise this optwith respect to all or any part of the Optionec®is for which this option is at the time exercisab
Optionee (or in the case of exercise after Optieneéeath, the Optionee’s executor, administrateir, br legatee, as the case may be) must take
the following actions:

(1) Provide the Plan Administra(or its designee) with written notice of thetiop exercise (the “Exercise Notice”) specifyingth
number of Optioned Shares for which the optioneism exercised.

(2) Pay the aggregate OptidnePfior the purchased shares in one of the follgvahernative forms:
(A) full payment in cashaheck payable to the Company’s order; or

(B) full payment in sha#sCommon Stock held by Optionee for the requiggeod necessary to avoid a charge to the
Company'’s reported earnings and valued at Fair Btavialue on the Exercise Date; or

(C) full payment in a coimdtion of shares of Common Stock held for the igtpiperiod necessary to avoid a charge to the
Company’s earnings and valued at Fair Market Valu¢he Exercise Date and cash or check drawn t€d¢mepany’s order; or

(D) If the Company’s oatstling Common Stock is registered under Sectiog)1df(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “1934 Act”), at the time this optisrekercised, then payment of the Option Price nisylze effected through a broker-dealer
sale and remittance procedure pursuant to whiciofige shall provide irrevocable written instrucBd@) to a designated brokerage firm to
effect the immediate sale of the purchased shar@seanit to the Company, out of the sale proceed#able on the settlement date, an amount
equal to the aggregate Option Price payable foptiiehased shares and (B) to the Company to deheecertificates for the purchased shares
directly to such brokerage firm in order to comel#te sale.

(E) Furnish to the Compampropriate documentation that the person or psrsgercising the option (if other than Optionee)
have the right to exercise this option.

(b) For purposes of subparagraplalf@ye and for all other valuation purposes unldisrAgreement, the Fair Market Value per share
of Common Stock on any relevant date shall be detexd in accordance with the following provisions:

(2) If the Common Stock is mbthe time listed or admitted to trading on antiamal securities exchange but is traded in the-ove
the-counter market, the Fair Market Value shaltiteemean between the highest bid and lowest agfkeesgor, if such information is
available, the closing selling price) per shar€ofmmon Stock on the date in question in the overetbunter market, as such prices are
reported by the National Association of Securifleslers through the Nasdaq system or any succegsiam. If there are no reported bid and
asked prices (or closing selling price) for the @oon Stock on the date in question, then the mean
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between the highest bid price and lowest askea facthe closing selling price) on the last prégdiate for which such quotations exist shall
be determinative of Fair Market Value.

(2) If the Common Stock istat time listed or admitted to trading on any nal@ecurities exchange, then the Fair Market Value
shall be the closing selling price per share of @am Stock on the date in question on the secuetiebange determined by the Plan
Administrator to be the primary market for the Coamstock, as such price is officially quoted in doenposite tape of transactions on such
exchange. If there is no reported sale of CommookStn such exchange on the date in question,tteeRair Market Value shall be the
closing selling price on the exchange on the lastgding date for which such quotation exists.

(3) If the Common Stock is te date in question neither listed or admittedadihg on any stock exchange nor traded in the-ovel
the-counter market, then the fair market valueldf@betermined by the Plan Administrator aftefirtigkinto account such factors as the Plan
Administrator shall deem appropriate.

(c) The Exercise Date shall be tateadn which the Exercise Notice is delivered sRtan Administrator. Except to the extent the
sale and remittance procedure specified abovaliseut for the exercise of the option, paymenthaf Option Price for the purchased shares
must accompany such notice.

(d) As soon as practical after thxer€ise Date, the Company shall issue to or onlbeh®ptionee (or other person or persons
exercising this option) the purchased Optioned &hsia electronic means or by delivery of a cexdifié or certificates representing the
purchased Optioned Shares.

(e) In no event may this option kereised for any fractional share.

10. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

(a) The exercise of this option@bits tandem stock appreciation right) and theasee of Common Stock hereunder shall be subject
to compliance by the Company and Optionee witlaailicable requirements of law relating thereto @it all applicable regulations of any
stock exchange or over-the-counter market on wsigres of the Company’s Common Stock may be Istéhded at the time of such
exercise and issuance.

(b) In connection with the exeroidethis option (or its tandem stock appreciatiaght), Optionee shall execute and deliver to the
Company such representations in writing as mayeheested by the Company in order for it to compljrwhe applicable requirements of
Federal and State securities laws.

11. Successors and Assign&xcept to the extent otherwise provided in Pardgfpghe provisions of this Agreement shall inurehte
benefit of, and be binding upon, the successorgjrastrators, heirs, legal representatives andyassdf Optionee and the successors and
assigns of the Company.

12. Liability of Company .

(a) If the Optioned Shares covengdhis Agreement exceed, as of the Grant Datentimeber of shares of Common Stock which may
without shareholder approval be issued under the,Rhen this option shall be void with respeciuoh excess shares unless shareholder
approval of an amendment sufficiently increasirggiimber of shares of Common Stock issuable uhégrtan is obtained in accordance v
the provisions of the Plan.

(b) The inability of the Companydbtain approval from any regulatory body havinghatity deemed by the Company to be
necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of amyn@m Stock pursuant to this Agreement shall relibeeCompany of any liability with
respect to the non-issuance or sale of the Comrtamk &s to which such approval shall not have lmgained. The Company, however, shall
use its best efforts to obtain all such approvals.
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13. No Guarantee of Board ServiceThis Agreement shall in any way be construed @rpreted so as to affect adversely or otherwise
impair the right of the Company or the stockholdersemove Optionee from the Board at any timecicoadance with the provisions of
applicable law.

14. Notices. Any notice required to be given or delivered to @Gempany under the terms of this Agreement shaith lveriting and
addressed to the Company in care of the Corpoeteefary at its principal corporate offices. Anyiioe required to be given or delivered to
Optionee shall be in writing and addressed to Metoat the address indicated below Optionee’s signéine on the Grant Notice. All notices
shall be deemed to have been given or delivered pposonal delivery or upon deposit in the U.S.Inpaistage prepaid and properly addre:
to the party to be notified.

15. Construction. This Agreement and the option evidenced herebymame and granted pursuant to the Plan and arériespects
limited by and subject to the express terms andigians of the Plan, including the automatic optigant provisions of the Plan.

16. Governing Law. The interpretation, performance, and enforcemettisfAgreement shall be governed by the laws ef3tate of
Alabama without resort to that State’s conflictlatfvs rules.

17. Tandem Stock Appreciation Right Optionee is hereby granted a tandem stock aieeiright, which entitles Optionee to
surrender all or part of this option with respecOptioned Shares for which it is then vested amiasable, for a distribution from the
Company in an amount equal to the excess of (AjtieMarket Value (on the option surrender dafehe Optioned Shares for which the
option is surrendered, over (B) the Option Prigesiach Optioned Shares. The distribution shall beerin shares of Common Stock valued at
Fair Market Value on the option surrender date. pagtion of this option that is surrendered in ademce with this Paragraph shall cease t
outstanding and shall no longer be exercisable [iyjoBee.
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Exhibit 10.5

BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF GRANT OF STOCK OPTION

Notice is hereby given of the following stogfition grant (the “Option”) to purchase shareshef Common Stock of BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) pursuanhtsBioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Stock Incentilea Bthe “Plan”):

Optionee:

Grant Date

Option Price:

Number of Optioned Share

Option Expiration Date

Type of Option: Incentive Stock Option (ISC
(up to tax code limit— any portion
of the option covering Option Shares
excess of tax code limits shall
accounted for as a n-qualified stock
option)
Non-Statutory Stock Option (NSC

Exercise Schedule / Vesting Terms:

Optionee understands that the Option is goasidject to and in accordance with the expressst@nd conditions of the Plan and agrees to
be bound by and conform to the terms and conditidrise Plan, the Plan Prospectus, this Notice raihGof Stock Option and its
accompanying Stock Option Agreement. Optionee asletiges that copies of the Plan, the Plan Prospeahd the Stock Option Agreement
are available to Optionee on the Company'’s intranethave been made available to Optionee.

No Employment or Service Contra®iothing in the Option Agreement or the Plan shafifer upon the Optionee the right to continue in
the Service of the Company for any period of speditration or interfere with or otherwise restiitiany way the rights of the Company or
Optionee, which rights are hereby expressly resebyeeach, to terminate Optionee’s Service at ang for any reason whatsoever, with or
without cause.

By my signature below, | hereby acknowledgeeit of this Option granted on the Grant Date #jgetabove and issued to me under the
terms and conditions of the Plan.

Optionee BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
Address: By:

Name
Dated: Title:

93




BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
WITNESSETH:

RECITALS

A. The Board of Directors of the Company hdspied the Company’s Stock Incentive Plan (theriBléor the purpose of attracting and
retaining the services of selected key employeeduding officers and directors), non-employee Bloamembers and consultants and other
independent contractors who contribute to the fifelrsuccess of the Company or its parent or sidsgi¢orporations.

B. Optionee is an individual who is to rendaluable services to the Company or its parentibsigliary corporations, and this Agreement is
executed pursuant to, and is intended to carryhmupurposes of, the Plan in connection with them@any’s grant of a stock option to
Optionee.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows

1. Grant of Option . Subject to and upon the terms and conditions s#t fio this Agreement, the Company hereby gran@tionee, as (
the grant date (the “ Grant Ddfespecified in the accompanying Notice of GrantSdéck Option (the “ Grant Notic®, a stock option to
purchase up to that number of shares of the Com@&uommon Stock (the “ Optioned Shatgspecified in the Grant Notice. The Optioned
Shares shall be purchasable from time to time dutie option term at the option price per share {t@ption Price’) specified in the Grant
Notice.

2. Option Term . This option shall expire at the close of businasshe Expiration Date specified in the Grant Natizeless sooner
terminated in accordance with Paragraph 5, 6 af1Bis Agreement.

3. Limited Transferability . During the lifetime of the Optionee, this optiondéther with its tandem stock appreciation rigitall be
exercisable only by the Optionee and shall notdséggaable or transferable by the Optionee exce foansfer by will or by the laws of
descent and distribution following the Optioneegsth. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this optionypta the extent it is a non-statutory stock
option, in connection with the Optionee’s estatmpbe assigned in whole or in part during therdu@®ptionee’s lifetime either as (i) as a gift
to one or more members of Optionee’s immediatelfana a trust in which Optionee and/or one or mauweh family members hold more than
fifty percent (50%) of the beneficial interest or entity in which more than fifty percent (50%)tbé voting interests are owned by Optionee
and/or one or more such family members, or (iijlspant to a domestic relations order. The assigngibp shall be exercisable only by the
person or persons who acquire a proprietary intémelie option pursuant to such assignment. Thageapplicable to the assigned portion s
be the same as those in effect for this option idiately prior to such assignment and shall bea#h fin such documents issued to the assi
as the Plan Administrator may deem appropriate.

4. Exercisability . This option shall become exercisable for the Omtib8hares in installments as is specified in trenGXotice. As the
option becomes exercisable for one or more instalis) the installments shall accumulate and thiemghall remain exercisable for the
accumulated installments until the Expiration Dat¢he sooner termination of the option term urttiesr Agreement.

5. Acceleration; Termination . The option term specified in Paragraph 2 shall teate (and this option shall cease to be exera@$adslor
to the Expiration Date should one of the followjmgvisions become applicable:

(a) Except to the extent otherwise provideduhparagraphs (ii) through (v) below, should apti® cease to remain in Service at any time
during the option term, then the period for exengjghis option shall be reduced to a three (3)-th@eriod commencing with the date of such
cessation of Service, but in no event shall thisoopbe exercisable at any time after the Expirafiate. Upon the expiration of such three
(3) month period or (if
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earlier) upon the Expiration Date, this option skeiminate and cease to be outstanding. Howetieyld Optionee die during the three (3)-
month period following his or her cessation of $egythe personal representative of the Optionestate or the person or persons to whon
option is transferred pursuant to the Optioneelsaviin accordance with the laws of descent otritigtion shall have a twelve (12)-month
period following the date of the Optionee’s deathiry which to exercise this Option.

(b) Should Optionee, after completingf(®) full years of Service, die while in Servitiegen the exercisability of each of his or her
outstanding options shall automatically accelesatéhat each such option shall become fully exabtéswith respect to the total number of
Optioned Shares at the time subject to such optimhmay be exercised for all or any portion of ssitéres. The personal representative of the
Optionee’s estate or the person or persons to whaoption is transferred pursuant to the Optitamedl or in accordance with the laws of
descent and distribution shall have a twelve (18)h period following the date of the Optionee’sitheduring which to exercise this option,
but in no event shall this option be exercisablarat time after the Expiration Date.

(c) Should Optionee die while in Servicer to completing five (5) full years of Servidben the period for which each outstanding
vested option held by the Optionee at the timeeaitld shall be exercisable by the Optionee’s estatee person or persons to whom the option
is transferred pursuant to the Optionee’s will hallimited to the twelve (12)-month period follmg the date of the Optionee’s death, but in
no event shall this option be exercisable at amg tafter the Expiration Date.

(d) Should Optionee become permanendgtded (as defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the hdkRevenue Code) and cease by reason
thereof to remain in Service at any time duringdpg&on term, then the period for exercising thgsi@n shall be reduced to a twelve (I8pnth
period commencing with the date of such cessati@eovice, but in no event shall this option bereigable at any time after the Expiration
Date. Upon the expiration of such twelve (12)-mamehiod or (if earlier) upon the Expiration Dateistoption shall terminate and cease to be
outstanding.

(e) Should (1) the Optionee’s Servicadyeinated for misconduct (including, but not liedtto, any act of dishonesty, willful
misconduct, fraud or embezzlement) or (2) the Om@#omake any unauthorized use or disclosure ofdemtfal information or trade secrets of
the Company or its parent or subsidiary corporatidimen in any such event this option shall terteiframediately and cease to be exercisable.

(f) During the limited period of exerciskity applicable in accordance with subparagraf#)shrough (d) above, this option may not be
exercised for more than the number of the OptidBleares (if any) for which this option is, at thaei of the Optionee’s cessation of Service,
exercisable in accordance with the exercise prongsspecified in this Agreement and the Grant Motic

(g) For purposes of this Paragraph 5fandll other purposes under this Agreement, tieviong definitional provisions shall be in
effect:

(1) The Optionee shall be deemertitoain in Service for so long as the Optionee oot to render periodic services to the
Company or any parent or subsidiary corporatioretiver as an Employee, a non-employee member @dhgany’s Board of Directors or an
independent consultant or advisor.

(2) The Optionee shall be deemeoketan Employee and to continue in the Company’d@nfpr so long as the Optionee remains in
the employ of the Company or one or more of iteptor subsidiary corporations, subject to the m@ind direction of the employer entity as
to both the work to be performed and the mannemaeithod of performance.

(3) A corporation shall be considkte be a subsidiary corporation of the Comparityisf a member of an unbroken chain of
corporations beginning with the Company, providadresuch corporation in the chain (other thanadkedorporation) owns, at the time of
determination, stock possessing 50% or more ofdtaé combined voting power of all classes of stockne of the other corporations in such
chain.

(4) A corporation shall be considkte be a parent corporation of the Company & & member of an unbroken chain ending with the
Company, provided each such corporation in thencf@her than the

95




Company) owns, at the time of determination, sfoaésessing 50% or more of the total combined vgimger of all classes of stock in one of
the other corporations in such chain.

6. Corporate Transaction.

(a) In the event of one or more of thiéofeing transactions (a “Corporate Transaction”):

(1) a merger or consolidation in gfhthe Company is not the surviving entity, exdepta transaction the principal purpose of which
is to change the State of the Company’s incorpomati

(2) the sale, transfer or other dsfion of all or substantially all of the assetdsh®e Company in liquidation or dissolution of the
Company, or

(3) any reverse merger in which@uenpany is the surviving entity but in which setias possessing more than fifty percent (509
the total combined voting power of the Company’sstanding securities are transferred to holdefemifit from those who held such securities
immediately prior to such merger,

then the exercisability of this option (if outstémglat the time) shall automatically acceleratéhsd such option shall, immediately prior to the
specified effective date for the Corporate Trarisactbecome fully exercisable for all of the OponShares and may be exercised for all or
any portion of such shares. No such acceleratighisfoption, however, shall occur if and to théeex: (i) the option is, in connection with the
Corporate Transaction, either to be assumed bgubeessor corporation or parent thereof or be ceglavith a comparable option to purchase
shares of the capital stock of the successor catiporor parent thereof or (ii) the option is torkplaced by a comparable cash incentive
program of the successor corporation based ongtiernospread (the excess of the fair market vafubeshares of Common Stock at the time
subject to the option over the Option Price payédiesuch shares) at the time of the Corporate Saation. The determination of comparability
under clause (i) or (ii) of the preceding sentesitall be made by the Plan Administrator and iteheination shall be final, binding and
conclusive.

(b) This option, to the extent not preasty exercised, shall terminate upon the consunumaiti the Corporate Transaction and cease to
be exercisable, unless it is expressly assumelbébguccessor corporation or parent thereof. The Adeministrator shall have complete
discretion to provide, on such terms and condita# sees fit, for a cash payment to be madeptmfee on account of such termination of
this option, in an amount equal to the excessfj)) af (A) the Fair Market Value (as defined belaf}he Optioned Shares subject to this
option as of the date of the Corporate Transactigar (B) the Option Price for such shares.

(c) In the event of a Change in Conted defined in the Plan), the exercisability of thyigion (if outstanding at the time) shall
automatically accelerate so that such option stmaihediately prior to the specified effective dedethe Change in Control, become fully
exercisable for all of the Optioned Shares and beagxercised for all or any portion of such shares.

(d) The exercisability of this optionas incentive stock option under the Federal taxsl@fwdesignated as such in the Grant Notice)
shall, in connection with any such Corporate Tratisa or Change in Control, be subject to the ayafiie dollar limitation of Paragraph 17.

(e) This Agreement shall not in any wéfget the right of the Company to adjust, reclagsi€organize or otherwise make changes in its
capital or business structure or to merge, conatdidlissolve, liquidate or sell or transfer albay part of its business or assets.

7. Adjustment in Optioned Shares.

(a) In the event any change is madegdt®mmon Stock issuable under the Plan by reasanyo$tock split, stock dividend,
recapitalization, combination of shares, excharfgdhares, or other change affecting the outstan@mgmon Stock as a class without receipt
of consideration, then appropriate adjustmentd leainade to (i) the total number and/or class ptidhed Shares subject to this option and
(i) the Option Price payable per share in ordeneftect such change and thereby preclude a diluicenlargement of benefits hereunder.
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(b) If this option is to be assumed ootiserwise to remain outstanding after a Corpofasasaction, then this option shall be
appropriately adjusted to apply and pertain toninaber and class of securities which would have ligsuable to the Optionee in the
consummation of such Corporate Transaction hadpkien been exercised immediately prior to suchpGrate Transaction, and appropriate
adjustments shall also be made to the Option Pagable per share, providédte aggregate Option Price payable hereunder igraliin the
same.

8. Privilege of Stock Ownership. The holder of this option shall not have any shatder rights with respect to the Optioned Shargi
such individual shall have exercised the option jpaid the Option Price.

9. Manner of Exercising Option.

(a) In order to exercise this option witispect to all or any part of the Optioned Shéresvhich this option is at the time exercisable,
Optionee (or in the case of exercise after Optiengéeath, the Optionee’s executor, administrateir, br legatee, as the case may be) must take
the following actions:

(1) Provide the Plan Administrator its designee) with written notice of the optexercise (the “Exercise Notice”) specifying the
number of Optioned Shares for which the optioneism exercised.

(2) Pay the aggregate Option Pricelie purchased shares in one of the followingradttive forms:
(A) full payment in cash or ckhegayable to the Company’s order;

(B) full payment in shares adrmon Stock held by Optionee for the requisiteqekriecessary to avoid a charge to the
Company'’s reported earnings and valued at Fair Btavialue on the Exercise Date;

(C) full payment in a combirmatiof shares of Common Stock held for the requisitéod necessary to avoid a charge to the
Company’s earnings and valued at Fair Market Valu¢he Exercise Date and cash or check drawn tGd¢mepany’s order; or

(D) If the Company’s outstarglidommon Stock is registered under Section 12(¢heSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “1934 Act”), at the time this optisrekercised, then payment of the Option Price nisylze effected through a broker-dealer
sale and remittance procedure pursuant to whiciofge (i) shall provide irrevocable written insttioas to a designated brokerage firm to
effect the immediate sale of the purchased shareseanit to the Company, out of the sale proceeddable on the settlement date,
sufficient funds to cover the aggregate Optionépayable for the purchased shares plus all afydideederal and state income and
employment taxes required to be withheld by the Gamy by reason of such purchase and (ii) shalligeowritten directives to the
Company to deliver the certificates for the pureubashares directly to such brokerage firm in otderomplete the sale.

(3) Furnish to the Company apprdpri@documentation that the person or persons exagdise option (if other than Optionee) hi
the right to exercise this option.

(b) For purposes of subparagraph (a) elaowd for all other valuation purposes under tigse&ment, the Fair Market Value per share
of Common Stock on any relevant date shall be detesd in accordance with the following provisions:

(1) If the Common Stock is not & thme listed or admitted to trading on any natiaegurities exchange but is traded in the over-
the-counter market, the Fair Market Value shaltiteemean between the highest bid and lowest agkeesgor, if such information is
available, the closing selling price) per shar€ofmmon Stock on the date in question in the overetbunter market, as such prices are
reported by the National Association of Securifdeslers through the Nasdag system or any succegsiam. If there are no reported bid
and asked prices (or closing selling price) for@wnmon Stock on the date in question, then thenrrhetween the highest bid price and
lowest asked price (or the closing selling price)toe last preceding date for which such quotatedst shall be determinative of Fair
Market Value.
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(2) If the Common Stock is at thmadilisted or admitted to trading on any nationalusiies exchange, then the Fair Market Value
shall be the closing selling price per share of @am Stock on the date in question on the secuetiebange determined by the Plan
Administrator to be the primary market for the Coomstock, as such price is officially quoted in doenposite tape of transactions on s
exchange. If there is no reported sale of CommookStn such exchange on the date in question,tteeRair Market Value shall be the
closing selling price on the exchange on the lastgding date for which such quotation exists.

(3) If the Common Stock is on théeda question neither listed or admitted to trgdim any stock exchange nor traded in the over
the-counter market, then the fair market valueldf@betermined by the Plan Administrator aftefirtigkinto account such factors as the Plan
Administrator shall deem appropriate.

(c) The Exercise Date shall be the datevbich the Exercise Notice is delivered to thenFA@ministrator. Except to the extent the sale
and remittance procedure specified above is utilfpe the exercise of the option, payment of theéi@pPrice for the purchased shares must
accompany such notice.

(d) As soon as practical after the Exarddate, the Company shall issue to or on beh&@fpionee (or other person or persons exerc
this option) the Purchased Options Shares viareleictmeans or through delivery of a certificatecertificates representing the purchased
Optioned Shares.

(e) In no event may this option be exsdifor any fractional share.

10. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

(a) The exercise of this option (or sftandem stock appreciation right) and the issuah@ mmon Stock hereunder shall be subject to
compliance by the Company and the Optionee witagdlicable requirements of law relating theretd atith all applicable regulations of any
stock exchange or over-the-counter market on wsigres of the Company’s Common Stock may be Istéchded at the time of such
exercise and issuance.

(b) In connection with the exercise asthption (or its tandem stock appreciation rigitptionee shall execute and deliver to the
Company such representations in writing as mayehaested by the Company in order for it to comphthwhe applicable requirements of
federal and state securities laws.

11. Successors and AssignExcept to the extent otherwise provided in Paragfpr 6, the provisions of this Agreement shalréto the
benefit of, and be binding upon, the successorgjrastrators, heirs, legal representatives andyassdf Optionee and the successors and
assigns of the Company.

12. Liability of Company .

(a) If the Optioned Shares covered by Agreement exceed, as of the Grant Date, the nuofitshares of Common Stock which may
without shareholder approval be issued under tag,Bhen this option shall be void with respectuoh excess shares unless shareholder
approval of an amendment sufficiently increasirggiimber of shares of Common Stock issuable uhédrtan is obtained in accordance v
the provisions of the Plan.

(b) The inability of the Company to oltaipproval from any regulatory body having autlyodiéemed by the Company to be necessary
to the lawful issuance and sale of any Common Spockuant to this Agreement shall relieve the Camypa any liability with respect to the
non-issuance or sale of the Common Stock as tohwich approval shall not have been obtained. Tmepany, however, shall use its best
efforts to obtain all such approvals.

13. No Employment or Service Contract. Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan shall @nipon the Optionee any right to continue in
the Service of the Company (or any parent or sidosidtorporation of the Company employing or reitagnOptionee) for any period of time or
interfere with or otherwise restrict in any way tiights of the Company (or any parent or subsidamporation of the Company employing or
retaining Optionee) or the Optionee, which rights lzereby expressly reserved by each, to termthat®©ptionee’s Service at any time for any
reason whatsoever, with or without cause.
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14. Notices. Any notice required to be given or delivered to @@mpany under the terms of this Agreement shaith veriting and
addressed to the Company in care of the Corpoeteetary at its principal corporate offices. Anyioe required to be given or delivered to
Optionee shall be in writing and addressed to Oetoat the address indicated below Optionee’s signéine on the Grant Notice. All notices
shall be deemed to have been given or delivered pposonal delivery or upon deposit in the U.S.|npaistage prepaid and properly addre:
to the party to be notified

15. Construction . This Agreement and the option evidenced herebyrnage and granted pursuant to the Plan and arériesakcts limite
by and subject to the express terms and provigibtise Plan. All decisions of the Plan Administratgth respect to any question or issue
arising under the Plan or this Agreement shalldelusive and binding on all persons having arr@siein this option.

16. Governing Law. The interpretation, performance, and enforcemetthisfAgreement shall be governed by the laws ef3tate of
Alabama without resort to that State’s conflictkaivs rules.

17. Additional Terms Applicable to an Incentive Stock Qption . In the event this option is designated as an imeeistock option in the
Grant Notice, the following terms and conditionslshlso apply to the grant:

(a) This option shall cease to qualifyflovorable tax treatment as an incentive stocioapinder the federal tax laws if (and to the
extent) this option is exercised for one or mordi@yed Shares: (i) more than three (3) months #fiedate the Optionee ceases to be an
Employee for any reason other than death or perntatgability (as defined in Paragraph 5) or (ipmathan one (1) year after the date the
Optionee ceases to be an Employee by reason ofjpermhdisability.

(b) No installment under this option (uler annual or monthly) shall qualify for favoralbdex treatment as an incentive stock option
under the Federal tax laws if (and to the extdme)aggregate fair market value (determined at tfamt@ate) of the Common Stock for
which such installment first becomes exercisabtetneder will, when added to the aggregate fair mtavklue (determined as of the
respective date or dates of grant) of any eamistailments of Common Stock for which this optiorone or more other incentive stock
options granted to the Optionee prior to the GEatte (whether under the Plan or any other optian pf the Company or any Parent or
Subsidiary corporations) first become exercisabiéng) the same calendar year, exceed One Hundreds@ind Dollars ($100,000) in the
aggregate.

(c) Should the exercisability of this ioptbe accelerated upon a Corporate TransactienGirange in Control, then this option shall
quality for favorable tax treatment as an incensitexk option under the Federal tax laws only ®édhtent the aggregate Fair Market Value
(determined at the Grant Date) of the Common Stockvhich this option first becomes exercisabl¢hia calendar year in which the
Corporate Transaction or Change in Control occoesdot, when added to the aggregate Fair Markege\(determined as of the respective
date or dates of grant) of any earlier installmeaftSommon Stock for which this option or one orrmother incentive stock options gran
to the Optionee prior to the Grant Date (whethetaurthe Plan or any other option plan of the Comparany Parent or Subsidiary
corporations) first become exercisable during Hraes calendar year, exceed One Hundred Thousandr®¢#100,000) in the aggregate.

(d) To the extent this option should failualify as an incentive stock option underFeeeral tax laws, the Optionee will recognize
compensation income in connection with the acqaisiof one or more Optioned Shares hereunder, l@®ptionee must make appropriate
arrangements for the satisfaction of all Feder@lteSor local income tax withholding requirememsd &ederal social security employee tax
requirements applicable to such compensation income

18. Additional Terms Applicable to a Non-Statutory Stock Option . In the event this option is designated as a notusty stock option
in the Grant Notice, Optionee hereby agrees to ragkeopriate arrangements with the Company or paresubsidiary corporation employing
Optionee for the satisfaction of any federal, statkbcal income tax withholding requirements aeddral social security employee tax
requirements applicable to the exercise of thisoopt

19. Tandem Stock Appreciation Right. Optionee is hereby granted a tandem stock appitiaght,
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which entitles Optionee to surrender all or parthid option with respect to Optioned Shares forchlit is then vested and exercisable, for a
distribution from the Company in an amount equaheexcess of (A) the Fair Market Value (on th&éapsurrender date) of the Optioned
Shares for which the option is surrendered, ovgtl{B Option Price for such Optioned Shares. Th&idution may be made in cash, or partly
in shares and partly in cash, as the Plan Admat@trdetermines in its sole discretion. Any portidrihis option that is surrendered in
accordance with this Paragraph shall cease to ts¢amding and shall no longer be exercisable byobee.
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Exhibit 10.6

AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT
1. CONTRACT ID CODE

PAGE OF PAGES
1 2

2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO.
Three (3)

3. EFFECTIVE DATE
See Block 16C

4. REQUISITION/PURC
N/A

5. PROJECT NO. (If applicable)
N/A

6. ISSUED BY CODE

Office of Preparedness and Response

Office of Medical Countermeasures

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
330 Independence Avenue, SW Room G640
Washington, DC 20201

7. ADMINISTERED BY (If other than Item 6) CODE
8. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR (No., street, county, State and Zip Code)

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc
2190 Parkway Lake Drive
Birmingham, AL 35244

DUNS 61-819-4609

TIN 62-1413174

9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.

9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 11)

10A. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT/ORDER
HHS0100200700032C
10B. DATED (SEE ITEM 13)
01-03-07

CODE FACILITY CODE
11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS

O The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 14. The hour and date specified for receipt of Offers O is
extended, O is not extended.

Offer must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended, by one of
the following methods: (a) By completing Items 8 and 15, and returning copies of the amendment; (b) By
acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer submitted; or (c) By separate letter or telegram which includes
a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers. FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE RECEIVED AT THE
PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN
REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER. If by virtue of this amendment, you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may
be made by telegram or letter, provided each telegram or letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is
received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA (If required)
SOCC: DOC# TIN# LOC# CAN#

13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS; IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO.



AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14.

A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO: (Specify authority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE

MADE IN THE CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.

B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as
changes in paying office, appropriation date, etc.) SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR

43.103(b).

C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:

D. OTHER (Specify type of modification and authority)

E. IMPORTANT: Contractor is not, O is required to sign this document and return copies to the issuing office.
14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION (Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitation/contract subject

matter where feasible)

The purpose of this modification is to change the government Project officer assigned to contract HHS0O100200700032C as

specified on the continuation sheet hereto attached.

The total contract amount remains unchanged.

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions referenced in item 9A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remains full force and

effect.
15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)
Michael Darwin

16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print)
Schuyler T. Eldridge

15B. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR

(Signature of person authorized to sign)

15C. DATE SIGNED
10/2/2007

16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BY
(Signature of Contracting Officer)

16C. DATE SIGNED
10/2/2007

NSN 7540-01-152-8070 OMB No0.0990-0115
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Contract No. HHS1002007000032C
Modification No. Three (3)

CONTINUATION SHEET FOR BLOCK 14 OF SF30
Article G.2 PROJECT OFFICER, are hereby revised as follows
FROM:

Dr. Robin Robinson
DHHS/OS/OPHEP/ORDC

330 Independence Ave S.W., Room G640
Washington, DC 20201

TO:

Dr. Kevin Gilligan
DHHS/OS/ASPR/BARDA

330 Independence Ave, SW
Room, G640

Washington, DC 20201
Telephone: 202-205-1710
Email: Kevin.Gilligan@hhs.gov
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EXHIBIT 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdlewing Registration Statements:

Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-120335-39484 and 333-30751) pertaining to the BieCBharmaceuticals, Inc. 1991
Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated as rahi\8a 2004

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-90582) pertaining to the BioCryst Pharmaceutidals, Employee Stock Purchase Pl

Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 32B087) pertaining to the registration of up to $898,000 of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals,
common stock

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-136703) pertaining to the BioCryst Pharmaceutidals, Stock Incentive Plan, whic
amended and restated the BioCryst Pharmaceutinals1991 Stock Option Plan as of May 17, 2C

Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-145638) pertaining to the registration of up to4®,000 shares of common stock; ¢

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-145@2raining to the BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inocktncentive Plan as amended
and restated effective March 2007 and Employmettet dgreement dated April 2, 2007 between BioCBfsarmaceuticals, Inc. and

David McCullough.

of our reports dated March 4, 2008 with respethéofinancial statements of BioCryst Pharmaceugjdakc. and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting of BioCryst Phameaticals, Inc. included in this Annual Report (fat0-K) for the year ended December 31,

2007.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 4, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Jon P. Stonehouse, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi:
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officerés)d | are responsible for establishing and maiimgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared

b) designed such internal control over finahagaorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataroece with generally accepted accounting princjj

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintbprocedures, as of the end of the period covgydhis report based on
such evaluation; an

d) disclosed in this report any change in ggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internafrobover financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thewedent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internairobaver financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize aqubrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabiwes management or other employees who have dis#gnt role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 4, 200¢ /s/ JON P. STONEHOUSE
Jon P. Stonehous
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Stuart Grant, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi:
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officerés)d | are responsible for establishing and maiimgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared

b. designed such internal control over finah@porting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataroece with generally accepted accounting princjj

c.  evaluated the effectiveness of the regisgalisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintbprocedures, as of the end of the period covgydhis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. disclosed in this report any change in ggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internafrobover financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thewedent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and materiakkeesses in the design or operation of internairobaver financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize aqubrt financial information;
and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have dis#gnt role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 4, 200¢ /sl STUART GRANT
Stuart Grant
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bio€ryPharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForrKlfor the period ending December 31,
2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Jorsfdnehouse, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 8§ 1380adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-@xlegf 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Jon P. Stonehouse
Jon P. Stonehouse
Chief Executive Officer
March 4, 2008

This certification is furnished with this Repon Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the S8adsOxley Act of 2002 and shall not, exc
to the extent required by such Act, be deemed bikethe Company for purposes of Section 18 of theuBties Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such certificatiofi mdot be deemed to be incorporated by referentedny filing under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, excepetextent that the Company specifically incorporétey reference.
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bio&ryharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForrKlfor the period ending December 31,
2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, St@rant, Chief Financial Officer of the

Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135(Gdapted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley#2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgwAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Stuart Grant

Stuart Grant

Chief Financial Officer
March 4, 2008

This certification is furnished with this Repon Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the 8adsOxley Act of 2002 and shall not, exc
to the extent required by such Act, be deemed bikethe Company for purposes of Section 18 of theuBties Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such certificatiofi mdot be deemed to be incorporated by referentedny filing under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, excepetextent that the Company specifically incorpor@tey reference.
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